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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Electronically Filed
Nov 02 2021 10:Q0 p.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme|Court

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, CASE NO.: 83165
Appellant,
Vs.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,

ON APPEAL FROM THE FIFTH JUDICAL DISTRICT COURT IN AND
FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE, THE HONORABLE KIMBERLY WANKER|
PRESIDING

APPELLANT’S APPENDIX ON APPEAL

VOLUME 11
David H. Neely III, Esq. Aaron Ford, Esq.
NV. Bar No. 3891 Nevada Attorney General
3520 E. Tropicana Ave., Suite D-1 100 North Carson Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121 Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
Attorney for Appellant _
Chris Arabia, Esq.
Nye County District Attorney
P.O. Box 39

Pahrump, Nevada 89041
Attorneys for Respondent
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Appellant, MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, by and through his attorney of
record, David H. Neely III, Esq., hereby files the following as his Appendix on
Appeal Volume Two, containing the documents deemed pertinent to the issues on
appeal.

Appellant reserves the right to file supplemental appendixes as required in
Opening, Answering or Reply Briefs.

I hereby certify that I have read this Appendix on Appeal Volume Two and
to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, it is not frivolous or
interposed for any improper purpose such as to harass or to cause unnecessary
delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation. I further certify that this
Appendix complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in
particular NRAP 28(e), which requires every assertion in the Brief regarding
matters in the record be supported by a reference to the page and volume number
of this appendix where the matter is relied on is to be found. I understand that I
may be subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying Brief is not in
conformity with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

VERIFICATION
1. I hereby certify that this Appellant’s Appendix on Appeal Volume

Two complies with the formatting requirements of NRAP 32(a)(6) because:
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proportionally spaced typeface using Microsoft Word 2016 in Times New Roman

14.

with the page limitation of NRAP 32(a)(7).

This Appellant’s Appendix on Appeal Volume Two has been prepared in a

2. I further certify that the Appendix on Appeal Volume Two complies

N
SUBMITTED this Q‘_(g/ay of November, 2021.

DAVID I NEELY III

NV. Bar No. 003891 Q

3520 E. Tropicana Ave., Suite D-1
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121
Attorney for Appellant
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INDEX TO APPENDIX ON APPEAL VOLUME TWO

DATE

12/04/2013
12/05/2013
12/06/2013
03/21/2014
03/25/2014
02/19/2015
02/19/2015

02/19/2015

02/19/2015
02/19/2015
02/23/2015
02/25/2015
02/25/2015
02/27/2015

04/07/2015

05/12/2015

08/25/2015

DESCRIPTION

Change of Plea Hearing Transcript
Second Amended Information
Change of Plea Hearing Transcript
Sentencing Hearing Transcript
Judgment of Conviction

Notice of Appeal

Affidavit

Motion for the Appointment of Counsel and Request
for Evidentiary Hearing

Case Appeal Statement

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
Order Appointing David Neely, Esq.
Motion to Amend Notice of Appeal
Amended Notice of Appeal

Order Dismissing Appeal

Stipulation and Order for Extension of Time to File
Supplemental

Answer and Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)

Order

PAGE

0250

0254

0257

0285

0305

0309

0311

0312

0316

0318

0348

0350

0351

0353

0355

0357

0368
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DATE

09/22/2015

05/04/2016

11/27/2017
01/26/2018
07/23/2018

08/02/2018

08/06/2018

08/29/2018
06/24/2021
07/02/2021
07/07/201

07/12/2021

DESCRIPTION

Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (_Post-
Conviction)

Petitioner’s Opposition and Reply to State’s Answer
and Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)

Order for Hearing on Writ of Habeas Corpus

Order to Transport Prisoner to Court Hearing

Order for Hearing on Writ of Habeas Corpus

Ex Parte Application for Order to Transport Prisoner to
Court for Evidentiary Hearing

Order to Transport Prisoner to Court for Evidentiary
Hearing

Writ of Habeas Corpus Hearing Transcript
Order Denying Writ of Habeas Corpus
Case Appeal Statement

Notice of Appeal

Request for Transcript of Proceedings

PAGE

0383

0383

0398

0400

0402

0404

0407

0409

0474

0495

0498

0500

ALPHABETICAL INDEX TO APPENDIX ON APPEAL VOLUME TWO

DATE

02/19/2015

02/25/2015

09/22/2015
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Amended Notice of Appeal

Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (_Post-
Conviction)
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DATE

05/12/2015

02/19/2015
07/02/2021
12/04/2013
12/06/2013
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03/25/2014

02/19/2015

02/25/2015
02/19/2015
07/07/201

08/25/2015
02/23/2015
06/24/2021
02/27/2015
11/27/2017
07/23/2018

08/06/2018

DESCRIPTION

Answer and Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)

Case Appeal Statement
Case Appeal Statement
Change of Plea Hearing Transcript
Change of Plea Hearing Transcript

Ex Parte Application for Order to Transport Prisoner to
Court for Evidentiary Hearing

Judgment of Conviction

Motion for the Appointment of Counsel and Request
for Evidentiary Hearing

Motion to Amend Notice of Appeal

Notice of Appeal

Notice of Appeal

Order

Order Appointing David Neely, Esq.

Order Denying Writ of Habeas Corpus
Order Dismissing Appeal

Order for Hearing on Writ of Habeas Corpus
Order for Hearing on Writ of Habeas Corpus

Order to Transport Prisoner to Court for Evidentiary
Hearing
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01/26/2018

02/19/2015

05/04/2016

07/12/2021
12/05/2013
03/21/2014

04/07/2015

08/29/2018

DESCRIPTION

Order to Transport Prisoner to Court Hearing
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

Petitioner’s Opposition and Reply to State’s Answer
and Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction)

Request for Transcript of Proceedings

Second Amended Information

Sentencing Hearing Transcript

Stipulation and Order for Extension of Time to File
Supplemental

Writ of Habeas Corpus Hearing Transcript
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an agent or employee of the above
attorney, and that on theci day of November, 2021, I served the above and
foregoing APPELLANT’S INDEX TO APPENDIX ON APPEAL VOLUME
TWO by depositing a copy in the United States mails, postage prepaid, addressed

to the f or parties at their last known addresses as indicated below:

Chris Arabia, Esq.

Nye County District Attorney
P. O. Box 39

Pahrump, NV 89041

Aaron Ford, Esq.

Nevada Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
Attorneys for Respondents

agent or employee of
DAVID H. NEELY, III, ESQ.
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CASE NO. 74444

DEFPT NO. 1

IN AND FOR THE FIFTH JUDICTAL DIS

COUNTY OF NYE, STATE OF NEVADZ

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, ;TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

ve. % CHANGE OF PLEA

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, %
Defendant. ;

)

BEFORE THE HONORABLE KIMBERLY WANKER,

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

1520 EAST BASIN AVENUE, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89060

' ON WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2013

AT 9:04 A_M.
APPEARANCES :
For the State: Tim Treffinger, Esq.
Nye County Deputy District Attorney

For the Defendant: Thomas Gibson, Esg,

Reported By: Tracy A. Manning, CCR No. 785

s

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 S. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

Docket 83165 Document 2021(-)321§91



Ul W N

L= (o ER o - T o A + 1

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK

Change of Piea, on 12/04/2013 Page 2

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2013
~~--000~=~

THE COURT: PBefore that I'm geing to call
Mr. Gibson's case. Case No. CR 7444A, State of
Nevada versus Michael Allen Mack. This is also on
for a change of plea, but my understanding is
Mxr. Mack is in the hospital; is that right?

MR. GIBSON: That's my understanding,
Judge, that he had an apparent stroke. I think it
was yesterday or the day before. And family members
called us to iﬁform us of that. We -- my secretary
called over to the jail and they also confirmed.

THE COURT: Do we know where he's at and
what his condition is?

MR, GIBSON: No.

MR. TREFFINGER: I know he's in the
hospital. That's all the jail could give me this
morning. They're going to have a sergeant go over
and find out what his actual status is around noon
today.

THE COURT: 1Is he at Desert View Hospital
or was he taken to Las Vegas?

MR. TREFFINGER: I don't have that
information, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay, all right. So we'll get

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-508-3121
7835 5. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0251
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STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK

Change of Plea, on 12/04/2013 Page 3

an update on that, and then I'm going to leave the
trial on. I'm going to leave the Quiroga trial on
until this gets resolved. So I'm here the rest of
the week dﬁring this trial. So if something
changeé, I'm happy to take a change of plea. But at
this point I can't accept a plea of guilty on behalf
of Mr. Quiroga.

Thank you for coming in, Mr. Gibson.

MR. GIBSON: I apologi;e, Judge. I was
thinking it was 9:00 and not 8:15.

THE COURT: That's fine. Thank you.

{Proceedings concluded at 92:05 a.m.)

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 8. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0252




10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

12

20

21

22

23

24

25

STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK
Change of Plea, on 12/04/2013

Page 4

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEVADA)
) =8
COUNTY OF CLARK)

I, Tracy A. Manning, a duly commissioned
Certified Court Reporter, Clark County, State of
Nevada, do hereby certify: '

That I reported the taking of the proceedinas,
at the time and place aforesaid;

That I thereafter transcribed my said shorthand
notes into typewriting and that the typewritten
transcript of said proceeding is a complete, true
and accurate record of statements provided by the
parties at said time to the best of my ability.

I further certify that I am not a relative,
employee, or independent contractor of counsel of
any of the parties involwved in said action; nor a
person financially interested in the actlion; nor do
I have any other relationship with any of the
parties or with counsel of any of the parties
involved in the action that may resasonably cause my
impartiality to be guesticned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this 5th
day of March 2014.

DosMona -

Tracy A. Manning, CCRJ} 785

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 8. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0253



NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
P.O. BOX 39
PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041

(775) 751-7080
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Case No. CR7444A ol ol

The undersigned affirms that
this document does not contain
the social security number of
any person,

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

Vs, . SECOND AMENDED INFORMATION

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,

Defendant. f
. ERIJ}N T. KUNﬁI, District Attcrﬁey within and for the County of Nye, State of
Neﬁéda, iﬁfﬁrmé the Court that MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, _before the filing of this
Second Amended Information, did then and'ﬂ'lé_re, in' Nye County, Nevada, commit the
following offense, to wit: “

ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT, in violation of NRS 200.366/1 93.330,
A CATEGORY 'B' FELONY, committed in the following manner, to wit:
That ON OR ABOUT OR BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 10, 2012 AND
APRIL 9, 2013, in Pahrump Township, Nye County, Nevada, said
Defendant MICHAEL ALLEN MACK did willfully and unlawfully attempt
to subject another person, to wit: NCSO pseudonym “COURTNEY”, to
sexual penetration, against the victim's will, or under conditions in which
said Defendant knew or should have known that the victim was mentally
or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of her
conduct, by attempting to penetrate the victim's vagina;

HH

i
111

0254




PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041
(775) 751-7080
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All of which is contrary to the form, force, and effect of the statutes in such
cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity for the State of Nevada.
Witnesses and thelr addresses known to the District Attorney of Nye County,

State of Nevada, at the time of the filing of this Amended Information:

SERGEANT KELLY JACKSON EMILY SMITH -

NYE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 821 S. BLAGG

PAHRUMP, NEVADA PAHRUMP, NEVADA
DEPUTY ROBIN BECHT | JANE DOE

NYE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE clo NYE COUNTY DISTRICT

PAHRUMP, NEVADA ATTORNEY'S OFFICE
- T PAHRUMP, NEVADA
DETECTIVE DAVID BORUCHOWITZ

NYE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE SUSAN KALLAHER

PAHRUMP, NEVADA 3100 W. SAHARA AVENUE, SUITE
: 204

DEPUTY JOHN KAKAVULIAS LAS VEGAS, NEVADA

NYE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
PAHRUMP, NEVADA

DEfECTwE MICHAEL EISENLOFFEL
NYE COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE
PAHRUMP, NEVADA

DATED this 5" day of December, 2013.

BRIAN T. KUNZI
NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

TMMOTHY R. TREFFINGER
Deputy District Attorney
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, Nikki McPherson, Executive Legal Secretary, Office of the Nye County District

Attorney, P. O. Box 39, Pahrump, Nevada 89041, do hereby certify that | have served

the following:

SECOND AMENDED INFORMATION in

5™ JDC Case No(s). CR7444A

STATE v. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK
upon said Defendant herein by delivering a true and correct cop'} thereof, on
December 5, 2013 to the following:

Thomas Gibson, Esquire
at the Nye County District Attorney's office

in Pahrump, Nevada
| N\%@\

Nikki McPherson

0256
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CASE NO. CR 7444

DEPT NO. 1

IN AND FCR THE FIFTH JUDICTH

Vot

COUNTY OF NYE, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
va. CHANGE OF PLEA

MICHAEIL MACK,

B i

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE KIMBERLY WANKER, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
1520 BAST BASIN AVENUE, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89060
ON FRIDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2013

AT 5:19 A.M.

LPPEARANCES:
For the State: Tim Treffinger, Esg.

Nye County Deputy District Attorney
For the Defendant: Thomas J. Glbson, Esg.

Nye County Public Defender

Reported by: Deborah Ann Hines, CCR #473, RPR

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 0257
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FRIDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2013
—=——olo-——

THE COURT: We're just waiting I think on
Mr. Mack. | |

MR, GIBSON: Judge, we have a 1little
housekeeping matter.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. GIBSON: We have interlineated that the
third "1I" to make it a tier III from iI;

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GIBSCN: S50 neo photocopies. We only
have one copy. That is an original so we'll need to
make coplies.

THE COURT: We'll make copies of that. I'm
not sure where Christel is.

Good morning, Mr. Mack. How are you?

fHE DEFENDANT: ©h, I'm hanging in there.

THE CQOURT: Hopefully you're feeling better.
I understand you've been under the weather.

THE DEFEWNDANT: Oh, yes, I hawve,
unfortunately.

THE COURT: Do you have the executed guilty
plea agreement?

MR. GIBSON: Right here in front of me.

THE COURT: And Mr, Mack initialed that

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.0, BOX 4546, PRHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 (258
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MR. GIEBSON: Yocur Honor, I suggest that both
counsel also initial too -=- |

THE COURT: Yes.

MR, GIBSON: -- showing we're all in
agreement.

Need your si@natura and make copies.

MR. TREFFINGER: My signature would be
helpful. Tcﬁay is the &th.

MR. GIBSON: And, your Honor, can we all get
copies of thisg, since we're going to be --

THE COURT: Would you instant message
Christel or Carla.

We'll get copies before we begin.

MR. GIRBSON: Excuse mé, your Honor.

THE COURT: BSure.

ThE DEFENDANT: Can I sit down, your Honor?

THE CQOURT: Absolutely.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE CLERK: Do you want your copies filed?

MR. GIBSON: Yes, I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Rachel, I handed you the
original.

Okay. Are we ready?

MR. GIBSON: I believe so, Judge, yes.

DERBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.O. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 (0259

P



[ %]

15
16
17
18
18
20
21
22
23
24

23

MR. TREFFINGER: Yesg.

THE COURT: This is the time and place set
for a change of plea and arraignment in case number
CR 7444A, 3tate of Nevada versus Michael Alan Mack.
The record will reflect the presence of Mr., Mack, his
attorney Tom Gibson, and we have Tim Treffinger on
behalf of the Nye County District Attorney's Cffice.

| Are the parties prepared to go forward?

MR. GIRBSON: Y¥Yes, vour Honor.

MR. TREFFINGER: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: From my understanding this
matter has been negotiated; is that right?

MR. GIBSOHN: Correct.

ME. TREFFINGER: (Nods head.)

THE COURT: Ckay. Mr, Mack, I know you're
not well so I'm going to let you stay seated, okay?

THE DEFENDANT: All right. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Mack, the second amended
Information in this case reads State of Nevada versus
Michael Alan Mack. Is that your true name-?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: And how old are you?

THE DEFENDANT: I'm 70, your Honmor. 70,

THE COURT: Okay. &And how far did you go in

school?

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 (260
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"THE DEFENDANT: I think it was eleventh I
think.

THE COURT: Eleventh grade, ockay. Do you
have any specialized training or anything?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. In what areas is that in?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, the areas have been
in -- I've worked in the past in credit management
and company evaluations, 1in that area.

THE CQURT: Do you read, write and
understand the English language?

THE DEFENDANT: Pretty much so. HNot as well
as I used to.

THE COURT: @Qkay. Have you ever been
treated for any sort a meﬁtal disorder?

THE DEFENDANT: Mg, ma'am,

THE COURT: 0Okay. &and do you have a copy of
the second amended Information?

THE DEFEMNDANT: ¥Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Have you read 1it?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. Second amended?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I read it. Yes.

THE COURT: I can tell you the change

between the second amended Information and the

DERBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR {(775)727-9715
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 83041 0261
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amended Information was they had left out the attempt
statute 183.330. That's the only change that I noted
between those two dgcuments. Ms. Aldana can read
the -- stand up and read the =second amgnded
Information in its entirety cr vyou can walve it.
What would you like to do?

THE DEFENDANT: Waive it.

THE CQURT: VYou'wve been provided a copy of
the second amended Informatlon wherein you've been

charged with attempted sexual assault. It’

]

a
violation of Nevada Revised Statute 200.336 and
Nevada Revised Statute 193.330. It's a category B
felony. Do you understand the nature of the charge
set forth in the second amended Informatiop?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: And have vou had the cpportunity
to discuss this charge with your attorney,
Mr. Gibson?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE COURT: And as to the charge set forth
in the second amended Information, how do you plead?
THE DEFENDANT: Guilty as ocffered.

MR. GIBSON: Under Alford.
THE DEFENDANT: Guilty under Alford.

THE COURT: You're make a guilty pursuant o

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR {7175)727-97175
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 0262
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Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yas, ma'am.

THE CODURT: Okayv. Alford wersus HNorth
Carolina iz a 0.85. Supreme Court decision from 1270
that is essentially -- it's a guilty plea but what
you're saying 1s the State can prove -- you're not
necessarily admitting that you're guilty, you're
saying that the State has sufficient evidence and caﬁ
prove the allegations qat forth in the Information
beyond a reasoﬁable doubt 1f the case went to trial.
So I want to be sure you understand that and that's
the plea you want to enter.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. And if you don't,
Mr. Mack, it's fine. We're happy to provide you with
a trial. It's really up to Qmu. T don't wént anyone
ever in my courtroom to feel pressured, that they'wve
been pressured --

THE DEFENDANT: No, I understand, your
Honor.

THE COURT: =-- into some type of plea
agreement,

Before I can accept your Alford plea, I want
to be certain that the plea has been knowingly,

treely and voluntarily entered into, and in addition

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11631, RFR (775) 7278715
p.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 0263
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the guilty plea agreement that vou signed, that you
signed it knowing the terms and conditions of that,
knewing and understanding the terms and conditions of
that agreément and knowing that you knowingly, freely
and voluntarily entered into that agreement, sc I'm
going teoc ask you some guestions.

Now do you understand that for purposes of
this case, an Alford plea will be treated no
differently than a guilty plea? So it's an Alford
plea, kind of 2 noclo contendsre plea but it's treated
for burposes of court proceedings as a pleé of
guilty. ﬁo-you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Now since this is an
Blford plea, Mr. Treffinger, what facts would the
State saék to prove if this matter went to trial?

MR._TREFEINGER: If this matter went to
trial, your Honor, the State would be seeking to
prove that on or about or between September 10th,
2012, and April 9th, 2013, in Pahrump Township, Nve
County, Nevada, that the defendant, Michael Alan
Mack, did willfully and unlawfully attempt to subject
another person, in this case using the NCS0 pseudonym
Courtney, to sexual penetration against the victim's

will or under conditions in which the defendant knew

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9%775
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or should have know that the victim was mentally or

paychically incapable of resisting or understanding

the nature of her copduct by attempting to penetrate
the wictim's wvagina.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Treffinger.

Mr. Mack, you understand that the court will
rely on the facts just stated by Mr. Treffinger in
determining the factual basis for your plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And do you agree that the State
has sufficient evidence to prove the charges against
you beyond a reascnable doubt to those facts as
stated?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, I don't know if they
have... |

THE COURT: .You know; Mr. Mack, if you don't
know, and, like I said, if you don't want to take
this plea, that"'s fine. I've got it set for trial
actually, and I can also resgset it for trial. B8o it's
really up to you. I don't want you in any way to
feel pressured into this plea.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, I understand that,
vour Honor. I agree.

THE COURT: Okay. I want to be sure that

you agree. You're kind of hesitant here. Do you

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-97175
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think that the State doesn't have sufficient evidences
or you just —- I'm really trying te figure out what
you're thinking here.

THE DEFEMDANT: Well, I don't —-=- I'll accept
what he's saying, but I don't -- how would I know if
he had insufficient evidence?

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GIBSON: Your Honor, I think what he's

trying to say is that it appears the State would be

able to prove their case beyond a reasocnable doubt.
He's not sure until he sees the whites ¢of everyone's
eyes, but to avoid that greater situaticn --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. GIBSON: -~ he's pleading gullty
pursuant to Alford.

THE COURT: Mr. Mack, have you made a
determination that it's in yoar best interest to
accept the plea bargain and enter this type of &
Quilty plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: And is cne of the reasons you
decided to enter this plea, this Alford plea, is to
aveid the possible harsher penalty if you were
convicted of the original charges at trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR $11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.O. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 (266




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
L
18
19

20

22
23

24

. . 11

THE COURT: And you understand that
originally you were charged with sexual assault on
Count 1, a cateqory-h felony; you were charged on
Count II with sexual assault, a category A felony;
you were charged with Count TII of preventing or
dissuading a victim from reporting a crime,
commencing prcsacutibn or causing arrest, it's a
category D felony; that you were charged with Count
IV of unlawful contact with a person with mental
illness, a gross misdemeanor; Count V, abuse of a
vulnerable person, it's a gross misdemeanor; and that
by -- but what you're doing in this case, instead of
being -- going to trial on those charges, you have
agreed to plead guilty pursuant to Alford to a single
count of attempted sexual assault?

THE DEFENDANT: I agree.

THE COURT: &2and do you think that it was in
your best interest to do that rather than to proceed
to trial on the original counts?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: COQkay. All right. Now,

Mr. Mack, are you a United States citizen?

THE DEFENDAMNT: Yes.

TEE COURT: 2Are you under the influence of

any drugs, alcohel or other medications at this time?

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #116%1, RPR (775)727-3775
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THE DEFENDANT: Well, just doctor's
medications, vyes.

THE CCURT: Are you under any medications
that would affect your ability to understand the
proceedings and what's going on today?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. Now do you understand
that when you enter an Alford plea, gquililty plea
pursuant to Alford, that you give up certain
constitutional rights? Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Have youw -- has Mr, Gibson gone
over the constitutional rights that you'll be glving
up by entering an Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT: ﬁo; not in detail, no.

THE COURT: Well --

ME. GIBSON: We --

THE DEFENDANT; Oh, agreement, okay.

THE COURT: Well, let me do that. I'm gecing
to go through them with you, okay? &And if yvou have
any questions, please feel free to stop me because I
want to be certain that you understand what you're
giving up by entering an Alford plea, okay?

You have a right to a speedy and public

trial before a jury of your peers. In fact, we have

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-8775
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a trial set, it's still on my calendar, beginning the
week of I believe the...
THE CLERK: 16th.

THE COURT: December 16th, 2013, Neow 1f you

enter an Alford plea, you're going to give up your

right to a jury trial and to go forward on that
trial, Dé you understand this? |

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I understand, yes.,

THE COURT: And do you understand that by
entering an Alford plga you aren't going to be able
to contest the criminal charge on file against you
gset forth in the second amended Information?

THE DEFENDANT: I understand.

THE COURT: You have the right to make the
State prove the charges against you beyond a
reasonable doubt at %kial, but by entering an Alford
plea you're giving up that right. Do you understand
this?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: You have the right to face your
accusers, to confront them in court and to have your
lawyer, Mr. Gibson, cross-examine them, but by
entering an Alford plea you're giving up that right.
There's not going to be a trial. There will be no

ocne coming to court that Mr. Gibson can

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
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cross-examine. Do you understand this?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE CCURT: Now do you understand that by
entering an Alford plea you're giving up the right to
present a defense to the charges against you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE COURT: You have the right to have
witnesses subpoenaed and ﬁompeiled to appear at trial
on your behalf, to aid in your defense, but by
entering an Alford plea you're giving up that right.
Do you understand this? | |

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE CQURT: Now in our system of justice you

do not have to convict yourself. You have the right

against self-incrimination. 1In other words, you have

the right to remain silent and not give any testimony
a2gainst yourself.

Should this case proceed to trial, you are
not required to take the witness stand. You are not
regquired to call any witnesses on your own behalf.
And, in fact, Mr. Gibson doesn't even have to
cross—examine the witnesses called by the State. And
the reason for that is because in a criminal case as
a defendant you have zero burden. The burden rests

exclusively with the State to prove the charges

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)}727-3775
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against you beyend a reascnable doubt.

By entering a gullty plea pursuant to
Alford, you're ining up your right against self
incrimination and you're, in fact, convicting
yourself because you're saying to the ccourt, I am
guilty of the crime of attempted sexual agsault, a
category B felaony. Do you understand this?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: Hﬁd do you want to do this?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Let's talk abocut what happens
with your appeal rights by.entering a gulilty plea
pursuant teo Alford. Do yvou understand that by
entering your Alford plea, you are, in fact, giving
up your rights teo an appéalr at least with respect to
the subject of gullt eor innccence?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: After today you can only appeal
for four reasons: The court has sentenced you
illegally, the State has failed to follow through
with the terms of the plea agreement, your Alford
plea was not entered voluntarily, or the law is
{llegal or unconstitutional. Other than these four
reasons you cannot appeal your Alford guilty plea.

Do you understand this?

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR $#11691, RPR (775)727-9775
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041 0271
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Now I have received a letter
from you that was dated November 19%th, 2013, that
you -- that was addressed to Mr. Gibson that you had
sent me indicating you were concerned because s WAL
the representation because he had not met with you,
and Mr. Zane, the investigator, had net met with you.
Do you still have conéerns regarding Mr. Gibson and
Mr. Zane?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I do not.

THE COURT: And at this point are you

satlsfied with the representation that's been

 provided to you by Mr. Gibson?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, your Honor.

MR. GIBSON: Your Honor, may I clarify
something? Mark Henry is our inﬁestigator.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, Mark Henry. I
apologize. This said Mark and I assumed it was
Mr. Zane.

MR. GIBSON: WNo, Henzry.

THE COURT: 8o Mr., Henry, ckay. And at this
point as of teday, December 6th, 2013, those concerns
that you set forth in your November 19th letter have
all been resolved; is that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, your Henor.

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #116391, RPR (775)727-9775
P.0. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041
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MR. GIBSON: Your Honor, for the record
Mzr. Henry and I have met with Mr. Mack. I met with
him on multiple cccasions since that letter, and
Mr. Henry did at least one meeting with him and.was
werking on the case uﬁ until the time we decided to
reach this agreement.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Gibson. I
appreciate that.

Now do you think you've had enough time to
discuss all the various aspects of this case with
Mr. Gibson?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE COURT: Okay. Let's talk about
gentencing when you enter a plea. Do you understand
that regardless of the plea negotlations between your
attorney and the prosecution and any representations
that they make on your behalf at the time of
sentencing, that all decisicons regarding sentencing
in this case are entirely up to the court?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE CQURT: New has anyone promised you
anything other than what's set forth in the guilty
plea agreement that was filed with the court today,

December 6th, 2013, in exchange for your plea of

guilty?

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #116%1, RPR (775)727-9775
P.O. BOX 4346, PAHRUMP, NEVADA B39041 0273




10
11
12
13
14
15

le

18
18
20
21
22
23
24

25

18

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COQURT: BAnd has anyone threatened you,
your family, or anyone close to you in order to get
you to enter your Alford guilty plea?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: TIs your Alford guilty plea the
result of your own cholce after consulting with your
attorney, Mr. Gibson?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: And did you enter this Alfcrd
guilty plea freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes,

THE COURT: Are you entering an Alford plea
to aveoid a possibkble harqher'penalty_at trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay; Now takinj a look at the
guilty plea agreement, I note that pursuant to the
terms of the agreement that you are going te enter an
hBlford plea to attempted sexual assault, and that at
the time of santeﬁcing both parties would retain the
right to argue for any lawful sentence. Is that your
understanding of the guilty plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Now I want to cover some things

with you about that guilty plea agreement. Do you

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
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understand that as a result of your plea, the maximum
possible sentence that the court could impose is
20 years in the Nevada Department of Corrections?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

.THE COURT: &And I want to be sure that
because this is a sex offense, do you understand that
you will be regquired to undergo a psychosexual
evaluation? _

'THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know that, but,
yes.

THE COURT: But dg you understand that that

3|

will —- now I'm ;elling you —-—

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: -- that you will be at some
point required to undergo a psychosexual evaluation?

‘THE DEFENDANT: Uh-huh.

THE-CDURI: Because this 1s a sex offense,
de you understand that you're going to have to have
certain sex offender registration reguirements and
supervision requirements, and the supervisicn
requirements will be lifetime, they will be lifetime
regquirements? Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, now.

THE COURT: Okay. And has Mr. Gibson talked

to you about the registratlion and the supervision

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
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requirements that you're going to be required to
follow pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes by
entering this plea?

THE DEFENDANT: He told me that I had to
reglster but I don't know thé details of the
regquirements, the procedure.

THE COURT: Would you like -- would you like
Mr., Gibson tc go through those requirements with you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. I don't have the
details. I mean, I know I saw it that I have to
register.

MR. GIBSON: We discussed this yvesterday.
Remember we talked about the 4B8-hour requirement and
that you're required to whenever you change
residences?

THE DEFENDANT: Yaah, I knew the residence
but, I mean, not all when and --

THE COURT: Do you understand that within 48
hours of entering this plea you're going to be
required to register with the Nye County Sheriff's
Office as a sex offender?

THE DEFENDANT: 48 hours of this plea, yeah,
register?

THE COURT: Right.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #1169%1, RPR (775)727-8775
P.O. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA BS9041 0276
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THE CQURT: OQkay.

THE DEFENDANT: I am.

THE COURT: Do you understand that as a
result of entering this plea that you will have ==
you will be subject to lifetime supervision by parole
and probation? Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I didn't know that, but
that's...

THE COURT: Okay. Knowing that --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: ~-- now, I'm telling you that you
will be required to be subject to lifetime
supervision by parole and probation, do you still
want to enter your Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT: T guess.

THE CCURT: Okay. Rnd you're also going to
have ceitain registration requirements. Those
registration requirements are geing to be with the
law enforcement agency. You're going to be in a
registry, a sex offense registry. Knowing, by me
telling you that, and you're alsc going to be
classified as a category tler three sex offender, do
you still want to enter your ARlford plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And do you understand

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727-9775
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that if you fail to register when you're required to
do so, that you can be subject to a separate category
D felony?

THE DEFEWNDANT: A separate what, ma'am?

THE COURT: Category D felony for failing to
register.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Ckay. All right. I alsc want
to be sure that you understand that you may be
subjgct to community notification provisions designed
to reach members of the public likely to encounter
vou. And so knowing that do you still want to enter
this Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE CDURT:I Okay. Ali right. Now I noticed
that on the Alford plea, on page six there's a
signature line for Michael E. Mack. Is that your
signature?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: And did you sign this agreement
on December 5th, 20137

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did.

THE COURT: Now I want to be sure one thing
on the agreement that was charged this morning, and

it is on page four, is that the consequences of this

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (FFEYTZT=9TT5
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SeX offense, the agreement originally read that you
would be considered a tier two =sex cffender, but it
is actually a tier three sex offender. Do you
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do.

THE COURT: And did you initial next to that
that you understood that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Now I notice in the bottom
right-hand corner of pages one through seven of the
agreement are some initials., Are those your
initials, MAM?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: OQOkay. And now prior teo the time
that yoﬁ signed and initialed this agreement, did vyou
read 1it?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did.

THE COURT: Did you understand everything
that was set forth in the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: ¥es, I did.

THE COURT: Prior to the time that yvou
signed and initialed the agreement, did you have the
Cpportunity to discuss the agreement with Mr. Mack --
I'm sorry, Mr. Gibson?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did.

DEBBTE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR {775J72?=323§
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THE COQURT: And did Mr. Gibson
satisfactorily answer any gquestions you might have
about the written guilty plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE CCQURT: Do.you have any guestions for
the court about the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:. Ne, I do not.

THE COURT: Did you sign and initial this
agreement freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did.

THE COURT: Did aﬁyone threaten you, coesrcge
you or otherwise forcé you in any way to enter into
the written guilty plea agreemant?

THE DEFENDAWNT: No.

THE COURT:  Now do you have any guesticns
about the court proceedings'so far?

THE DEFENDANT: No, I do not.

THE CCURT: Do you understand that by
entering an Alford plea, you waive or give up the
constitutional rights that we'we previously
discussed?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Here's your opportunity,

Mr. Mack, if you'd like to change your mind. And if

you truly feel you don't want to enter this plea, I'm

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11681, RPR (775)727-9775
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fine with that. I'm happy to set it for trial. What
I want to be certain is that you want to enter the --
You enter the plea that you want to enter, that you
don't feel pressured or otherwise forced in any way
to enter a plea. While we do have it set on calendar
next week, I'm even happy to continue the trial if
yeu would like that, if you decide that you want to
gc Lo trial, okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.,

THE CCURT: - So I'm going to ask you now,
here's going to'bé the moment of tfuth, it's yeour
kind of last and final chance to enter your plea
here. Based upon my guestions and our discussiocn
here this morning, what is your plea to the charge in
the second amended Informatién Dflattempted_sexual
assault, a category B felony?

THE DEFENDANT: Wﬁat is my plea? Guilty.
I'm sorry, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. And that guilty plea will
be entered pursuant toc Alford; is that right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Then the court finds that
Mr. Mack understands the nature of the offense
charged, the consequence of his plea, that he has

made a knowing, voluntary and intelligent waiver of

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (775)727%%(5
P.O. BOX 4546, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89041




"

10

el

13
14
1.4
16
L
18
19

20

22
23
24

25

26

his constitutional rights, and at this time,

Mr. Mack, I will accept your Alford plea to the
charge of attempted sexual assault, a category B
felony.

The court alaso finds that Mr. Mack
knowingly, freely and voluntarily entered into a
written guilty pléa agreement, that he undexstcod the
terms of that agreement, and that he is aware of the
consequences of enfering inte the written guilty plea
agreement and for gntering an Alford plea to
attempted sexual asséult-

This matter is going to the Department of
Parole and Probation for a presentence report. It's
going to be set for the entry of judgment and
imposition of sentence I believe on March Zlst, 2014
at 9:00 a.m.

How I do believe that may be dependent upon
getting the psychosexual evaluation, because this
jan't an offense that is probationable; however,
without that psychosexual evaluation I would -- I
believe that this is a probationable offense, and so
that as a conseguence it being that, that it 1is
necessary to get that psychosexual evaluation prior
to the time of sentencing. So that may delay the

sentencing. That will be arranged by parole and

DEBBIE HINES, CCR #473, CSR #11691, RPR (175) 727-8375
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probation.,

3o 1s there anything else that we need to
address?

ME. TREFFINGER: .I have nothing further,
your Honecr.

THE COURT: Mr. Gibson?

MR. GIBSON: Not that I can think of.

THE COURT: Mr. Mack, do you have any
concerns that we need to address?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am, not in relation
to this, no.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, then
thank you very much. The court will now be in
recess.

(Thereupon the proceedings

were concluded at 9:48 a.m.)

* * * - *
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CERTIFICATE OF REFORTER

-

STATE OF NEVADA ) -
85:

COUNTY OF NYE ) e

I, Deborah Ann Hines, certlfied cougf”
reporter, do hereby certify that I took down in
shorthand (Stenotype) all cf the proceedings had in
the before-entitled matter at the time and place
indicated; and that thereafter said shorthand notes
were transcribed into typéwritinq at and under my
direction and supervisioen and_ﬁhe foregoing
transcript constitutes a full, true and accurate
record of the procesdings had.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed

my hand this 29th day of December, 2013.

AN e Low Ko

Seborsh Ann Hines, CCR B473, RPR
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FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

CASE NO. CR 7444
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COUNTY OF NYE, STATE OF NEVADA
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Defendant.
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FRIDAY, MARCH 21, 2014
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THE COURT: Our first cage thig morning is
Case No. CR 7444, State of Nevada versus Michael
Allen Mack.

Good mo:ning, Mr. Mack.

THE DEFENDANT: Morning.

'THE COURT: This is the time and place set
for sentencing in Case No. CR 7444, Stﬁte of Nevada
versus Michael Allen Mack. The record will reflect
the presence of Hf. Madk, his attorney, Tom Gibson.
We have Tim Treffinger-on behalf of the Nye County

District Attorney's office and we have Lisa Thelaner

cn behalf of Parole & Probation.

Is there any legal reason why we should
not go forward with judgment and éentgncing now?

THE DEFENDANT: No, Your Honor.

MR. TREFFINGER: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Mack, I did see that you
had addressed a letter to my attention ind;cating
that yvou had not had the opportunity to speak to
Mr. Gibson and would have liked to have had about
half an hour before the start of sentencing today to
speak with him. Have you had that opportunity?

THE DEFENDANT: I talked to him briefly
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1 yesterday. But he's always got a short schedule
2 g0 =-- but I guess I'm --
3 THE COURT: If you're not ready, I'd be
4 happy to trail your matter and give you the
5 opportunity to speak with Mr. Gikson if ycu would
6 Like.
) THE DEFENDANT: He indicated yesterday we

8 would have some time to talk again this morning

9 about the -- but, you know, I don't really want to
10 throw your court off.
e THE COURT: Mr. Mack, I think it's -- if
12 you need the time tolspeak with your attorney, I
13 have absolutely no problem in calling another case
14 | and ining you that opporﬁunity. Would you like |
15 that? We can simply traii vou. It's not a problem.
16 THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, I'd like to confer
17 | with him. | |
18 MR. GIBSON: Judge, can we set it for,
19 like, the next date, then? Because unless there's
20 victime here ﬁhat need to speak. The reason being
21 is that I spent a half -- over half an hour with him
22 yesterday going over the PSI with him, amnswering
23 questions he had and -- I mean, there's only so much
24 time you can go over the same thing. So I don't

25 know.
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THE COURT: Mr. Treffinger, do you have
any victims that want to speak today at sentencing?

MR. TREFFINGER: I do not, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So Mr. Gibson, you have
two other matters, I think, that will probably --
they're both, I think, with guilty plea agreements,
or proposed guilty plea agreements.

MR. GIBSON: One is and the other one
lg -- |

THE COURT: So if we handle those matters,
those would be next. Perhaps you'd have time to
meet with Mr. Mack before you left today?

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honox, let's go ahead.
and proceed. I think I'm basically -- I'll go
ahead. | I ”

THE.COURT: Well, Mr. Mack, I want to be
sure that you're comfortable with it. I am --

THEIDEFEHDANT: There's a few questions.

THE COURT: -- time of arraignment, I will
not arraign and accept a guilty plea, nor will I
expect someone to move forward if they need
additional time with counsel.

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am. Go ahead.

THE COURT: Okay. You're sure that

you're --
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.
THE COURT: -~ comfortable?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes, ma'am.
THE COURT: That you've had the

opportunity -- you had the opportunity to speak to

Mr. Gibson yesterday? _
THE DEFENDANT: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. Then we'll move

forward.

This is the time and ~- as I mentioned,

this is the time and placé set for sentencing.
Ms. Thelaner, are there any'changés or
additions to the presentence report?
MS . THELANER: No, Your Honor.

‘THE COURT: 'The Court has & couple of

issues with the presentence investigation report.

And the first is on page 2, under the social

gsecurity number. There's four digits for the

first -- and that obviously can't ke. It should be

a three digit number. So I don't know what the

correct social security number is, but that needs to

be corrected.

The other izsue I have is on -- also on
page 2 of the PSI. It's under marital status. What

ig written in the PSI conflicts with what is written
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in the psychosexual evaluation report that was
prepared by John Pacault. So I'm not sure whether

Mr. Mack's been married three times or four times.

MS. THELANER: Your Honor, he listed thres

times on my questionnaire.

THE COURT: Okay. And Dr. -- or I'm
sorry, it's not doctor. But John Pacault's
psychosexual evaluation, family members. Mr. Mack
was divorced four times. |

MR. GIBSON: It was four.

THE COURT: Four. I just want to be sure
the PSI is correct. Because obviously that will
follow Mr. Mack. §So it's important that the
information'contained therein be correct. go I
should amend that tc Mr. Mack has been marriéd on-
four separate occasionsg? | |

THE DEFENDANT: VYes, ma'am,.

THE COURT: Okay. Those were the changes
I gaw. Counsel, does anycns have any changes or
additions to the presentence report?

MR. TREFFINGER: State has no changes,
Your Honor.

MR. GIBSON: I think it -- Judge, what

Mr. Mack is telling me is that he's not in agreement

with a couple of lines that were conclusory in the
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psychosexual evaluation, but not the PSI itself,

THE COURT: So the PST itself, you may
disagree with the information set forth by Jobn
Pacault, the géntieman who prepared the psychosexual
evaluation., But as far as the PSI is -- he doesn't
have any other changes or additions to that?

THE DEFENDANT: No, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. Well, then,
we're going to move forward. The Court's review of
thé file reflects the fellowing: On December 5th,
2013, the State filed an amended information
charging Mr. Mack with attempted sexual assault.
It's a Category B felony. M;. Mack was arraigped on
December 6th, 2013. He pled guilty pursﬁant td
Alford. He was canvassed by the court on his Alford
plea, and the Court found that Mr. Mack had
knowingly, freely and voluntarily entered his Alford
plea of guilty.

Mr. Mack also entered into a written
Alford guilty plea agreement. The Court canvassed
Mr. Mack concerning his understanding of the terms
of the written Alford guilty plea agreement, found
Chat he understood the terms of the agreement. The
Court further canvassed Mr, Mack and found that he

had knowingly, freely and voluntarily entered into

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 S. RAINBOW BL VD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0291




STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK
Sentencing, on 03/21/2014 Page 8

e R < B 2 ST S P S

o

10
13
12
13
14
15
16
L7
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

that written Alford guilty plea agreement which
leads to sentencing today;

Now pursuant to terms of the written
guilty piea agreement, both sides retain the right
to argue at the time of sentencing,

Therefore, Mr. Mack, at thie time the

Court hereby'aﬁjudges you guilty of attempted sexual

assault in violation cf Nevada Revised Statute

200.3661 and Nevada Revised Statute 193.330. It's a

Category B felony. -

Mr. Gibsen, you may proceed.

MR. GIBSON: Thank you, Judge.

_four Honor, the conclusion in the
recommendation by the department ie a little harsh,
in my opinion,'inlthig case. For a couple of
reasons. . - . .

First of all, if yﬁu look at Mr. Mack's
criminal history, wﬁich is really of paramount
importance when we're looking at a person and how
we're going to be sentencing them, it -- ha's got a
flawless criminal record. and 80, I mean, that
should ke taken into consideration by the Court and
the department -- I'm sure the department does take
that into consideration. We don't see many people

sentenced in this court that have complete zeros
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across the board. Usually, at least one misdemeanor
in there or something that will affect their -- and
show that they may not be a candidate for a minimum
t¥pe sentence. |

Secondly is the fact that Mr. Mack has
been very active in the community. He has a lot --
had a lot -- had a lot of community support. Your
Honor received, I'm sure, a number of letters that
were forwarded tc you by people who were supporting
him. 3And who wished to let the Court know that they
want to see Mr. Mack do well. And obviously they
don't want to see him go to prison for an exten&ed
period of time.

In my discussions with Mr. Mack yesterday,
he realizes that the odds'afe that he's going to
priscon for some time; however, we feel that the
recommendation by the Department of Parole &
Probation is a little harsh because of his lack of
record, and also because of his involvement in the
community through most of his lifetime.

And therefore, we'd ask that the Court to
sentence him to the minimum of two years -- I don't
know what the month category would be for that. BRut
we're asking that he be eligible for parole after

serving two years. Which in this case
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theoretically, and actuality, a first offense. 2and
at his age that's a pretty good thing.

So Your Honor, that's what we're asking
for, is the minimal sentence in this and let him get
on with his life.

THE COURT: Thank vou, Mr, Gibsoﬁ;

Mr. Treffinger? |

MR. TREFFINGER: Your Honor, Mr. Gibson
calls the recommendation by P & P a little harsh.
And I think that's completely ridiculous based on
the facts of this case.

Mr. Maﬁk committed a completely
reprehensible crime. Not only did he take advantage
of a mentally challenged woman, but oné who he had a
guardiaﬁship over and he ﬁas in a position of power
over.

When yoﬁ look at the character letters
that were sent in, they're gent in by people who
obviously -- in some cases have absclutely no idea
what his charges are. One of the letters says, I
don't know what he did, I don't want to know what he
did, but still recommends that this Court give him
prokaticn.

And I will note that pursuant to NRS

176A.110, he's not even eligible for probation

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 8. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0294




STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK .
Sentencing, on 03/21/2014 Page 11

(o T ¢ B - S FY At =

o e

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

because he came back as a high risk to offend. He

came back as a man who said he believes he has no

need for counseling or treatment. They found him to

be someone who minimizes what he's done, has no
remorse, has deviant sexual tendencies. This is a
man who poses an extreme risk to society. ﬁe'a a
danger to adults and jﬁvéniles, anyone who's
vulnerable.who's_aroﬁnd him. . .

And just because he hadn't gotten caught
until the age of 70, he does have other allégations
sitting out there in New Jersey. He has a
dishonorable discharge from the military that was
pctentlally sexually related And thefe were other
allegatlons even here in Pahrump that were sexual
*elated | .

So I believe that the max, %4 to 240, is
completely appropriate in this case, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Mack, the lawas give you the
opportunity to speak to me now, either to give me a
legal reason why I should not move forward with
judgment and sentencing at this time, or to tell me
anything you'd like me to consider before I impose
sentence. Is there anything you'd like te say?

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I mean -- I
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have.acknowledged -- the fact is that what toock
place between the.-- my sister-and--T was
inappropriate. Hoewever, I'm not :-- I'm not the only

one.: I mean, whatever I did, I mean, I'm not trying
to minimize the fact:ls, but she has had & - she's
been married before, she's'had-gexual -- active
{gexual_;iﬁe and such. . So, you know, trying teo say
thatii_preyed-mn-her-or did something.

I mean, you know, she's the one, also --
wanted .to actually -- you:kn0w,*touch me or do
things and. such,’ you know, when she was giving me a
massage. And:like I say, I did tell her not to do
that oxr such. So, I mean -- so the fact is that I
preyed on hetr, you know -- I mean, I know that it
wasg-.wrong, Your Honot.

But there was two other pecple that you
know of that she also brought charges against. I
mean, I don't know -- she knew them longer than I've
ever been in her actual contact life.

The thing of being her guardian. She
was -- I wag a guardian because of -- on my
mother -- when my mother was still living at the
home she got sick. And she went -- she asked if I'd

be her guardian because of her seizures, It was

nothing to do with the fact of -- she would not know
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right from wrong or things of this nature.

Also, my mother had her registered on a --
with the State, which you can vérify, that -- to
be -- to go into a group home. And she -- if need
be after my parents passed awaf, it was her plea to
me that she didn't want to go into a group home and
would she go -- live with when my parénté died. She
was afraid thatlwas going to happen when my mother
passed away and my dad passed away.

I made personal sacrifice to -- tb --
staying here in Pahrump and provide her a place to
live. And I really didn't take -- involved in her
day-to-day guardianship as a document was signed
years before. My mother made the applicaticn and
she asked the court to appoint me. And I -- so it
wasn't until after my dad passed away that I
actually was -- had to make a decision on what to
do. BAnd I elected to stay in the house, my parents’
house. The mortgage was upside down. There was

issues there. And so that's how that came about,

you know.

You know, I mean -- I know -- I have not
done anything to any -- any party here whatsocever in
the -- other than the situation I had with my

sister. In the community. I mean, that's a fact.
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have done going back years ago or something of this
nature. I mean, actually haé.ﬁo beariﬁg on this
case. You know, I mean, I'm 70 years of age. I've
been'an adult 50 vears. Take a timeline or
anything. I mean, it{s not that I?#elanuck around

or anything.  I've been arcund all kinds of people

and such, and day,:night,'a;ouﬁd and such, and, you

know, I'vé s if didn't -- anyone can vouéh on my
character. Very good character. |

And I had poor judgment on a gituation_
when I was sick and not feeling well and having a
lot of_pain and things._ I mean, you, know, it
doesn't meaﬁ that I made -- made aéthIEaﬁ to =-=- on
the community or anybody else. -.

THE COURT: Thaﬁk you, Mr. Mack.

Mr. Mack, I thought thét the psychosexual
evaluation that was dcne.by John Pacault, who has
been an expert frequently in my courtroom and has
done thousands, I think between 5- and 6,000
psychosexual evaluations was very telling in this

case. It was not at all favorable for you.

And the things that really stuck out to me

about this case was when he said, when asked about

INTEGRITY COURT REFORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 S. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89139

0298



G S L S C. SRS 1S B C R =

R
H o

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

STATE vs. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK
Sentencing, on 03/21/2014 Page 16

the need, about needing counseling concerning his
actions, Mr. Mack =zaid that he did not believe
there's a need for treatment. Remarking this is a
first-time situation and he has no prior record.

Well, most of the time, in cases of sexual
asgault or -- we don't -- or molestation, we don't
have repeat offenders. Tﬁefe is a first time. But
whabw&mthaughtwwas.abso~ﬁar?;telling;isuiMrmrMack
admits that he sexually abused his adult adopted
sister who:is mentally retarded.

He -- and he goes on to say, to date, the
most reliable determinant of a sexual behavior
problem is the honest acknowledgement by a defendant
that he is engaged in sexual misconduct and/or
inappropriate sexual behavior.

| Well, while you admitted it, you a#ém to
minimize®it, which is exactly what sex offenders.do.
You'¥e trying to blame your sister. When you
were '“--at the time you were arrested, you admitted
she had the mentality of a three- to four-year-old.
She may have had a chronologic. age of 45, but you
acknowledged you were her .guardian.

And what's telling, you are being
sentenced on this case. But going along with the

fact that people do not always get caught. This was
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from your own admissions. He admitted he was given
a dishonorable discharge from the U.S. Coast Guard
for sexual misconduct of some kind, which is exactly
how he described his sexual conduct with his foster
brother. Mr. Mack used the term grab assing to
explain both situations. He could not explain why
an adult male, he would be roughhousing or grab
assing with a pre-teen boy.

That is serious to me. Yﬁu seem to think
that just because you've been out and you'wve been
very active and a leader in this community. But
community leadership and what goes on behind the

scenes are two different things. And that does not
in any way excuse your behavior with your'sisﬂer,
with whom you were the guardian.

The evaluator raised a very seriocus
concern. And, in fact, the evaluator madé this
comment. Mr7 Mack made no effort to express any
genuine remorse or guilt-concerning his actions with
hié“adapted sister, who reportedly has a history, of
being taken advantage of by men in hexr life due to
hér’ disabilities. The evaluator suspects that |
Mr. Mack's deviant sexual interest involves males or
females, and has -- he has obviocusly preyed on

individuals with disabilities and weaknesses, which
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may be part of the arousal aspect for him, along

and are less likely to report and/or be believed if
and-when they do report.

And it went on to say, Mr. Mack's sister
satd she was threatened and/or hit with a belt if

she did not comply with his demands.
you did with your sister are atrocious to me. You

any sort of sexual conduct, whether she came on to

You or not, vou were her guardian. You knew what

book.

And I found the recommendations from

to do.

In accordance with the laws of the State
of Nevada, I'm going to assgess a $25 administrative
assessment fee, a $3 DNA administrative assessment
fee, a %150 DNA analysis fee, an %1110 psychosexual
evaluation fee.

It is the order and judgment of the Court
that defendant, Michael Allen Mack, is sentenced to

the Nevada Department of Corrections for a minimum

L

with seleeting victims who can be gasily manipulated

The fact that you admitted the things that

were her -- you were her guardian. 2nd to engaée in
her mental capacity was. And it's inexcusable in my

Mr. Pacault very telling. So this is what I'm going
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term of 96 months and a maximum term of 240 months.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute
175D.460, wvou shall reglster as a sex offender
within 48 hours of séntencing today. You will also
be subject to lifetime sgupervision as a Tier III sex
offender pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes
176.0831.,

I'm algo going to feollow the
recommendations of Dr. Pacault. 2And I'm going to
put this in because I think they're very telling.
This is the recommendation No. 2 sald, Mr. Mack
should be required to attend and successfully
complete a correctlons based sex offense specific
treatment program to assist him in understanding the
dynamics of his sexuélly offeﬁ&ing bahavio?é, Such
program should include at a minimum concepts
consisting of thinking érrors, cognitive
distortions, boundaries, deviant versus healthy
sexual fantasies, sexual assault cycles, maintenance
cycles, victim empathy and relapse prevention.

In addition, other areas that should be
addresgsed with counseling are problem solving and
communication skills, dating and relationship issues
and healthy lifestyle concepts.

In addition, Mr. Mack should also be
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required to submit to polygraph testing and/or othex
cexual interest measures, i.e., the Abel asmsessment,
g0 as to more accurately assess hig sexual history,
his sexual arousal pattern, and to assist the Court
in his treatment providing and ensuring comﬁliance
with Court stipulations and treatment requirements.
No. 3. Mr. Mack should not be allowed
conta;t of any kind: Direct, mail or third-party
with the victim. It's also recommended you have no
contact with minor children. And if you do, that it

be -- that it be approved by an officer of the court

~and it should be under the gupervision of an adult

who is aware of your sexual history.

Finally, you should not be allowed to work
as a volunteer for ény organization or church due to
the potential for him to haﬁe unsupervised ﬁontact
with vulnerable people.

Mr. Mack, I have to tell you, while you
may have minimized this, I did not. I think this is
very, wvery serious what you did. It's inexcusable.
And I wish you the best of luck. You'll receive
credit for 345 days time served. Thank you.

(Proceedings concluded at 9:27 a.m.)
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REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF NEVADA)
) @ae
COUNTY OF CLARK)

I, Tracy A. Manning, a duly commlissioned
Certified Court Reporter, Clark County, State of
Navada, do hereby certify:

That T reported the taking of the proceedangs;
at the time and place aforesaid;

That I thereafter transcribed my said shorthand
notes into typewriting and that the typewritten
transcript of said proceeding is a complete, true
and accurate record of statements provided by the
parties at sald time to the best of my ability.

I fuxther certify that I am not a relative,
employee, or independent contractor of counsel of -
any of the parties involved in sald action; nor a
person financially interested in the action; nor do
I have any other relationship with any of the
parties or with counsel of any of the parties
involved in the action that may reasonably cause my
impartiality to be guestioned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand
in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this 18th
day of June 2014,

haver Mo -

Tracy A. Mdnning, CCR-%85

INTEGRITY COURT REPORTING, LLC  702-509-3121
7835 §. RAINBOW BLVD., SUITE 4-25, LAS VEGAS, NV 89739
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Case No.CR7444A FILED
Dept 1P ' ﬁﬂl@

WL ¥AR 25 P w37
NYELOLUETY CLERK

CRRHEE

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-y JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
Defendant.

/

On the 6" day of December 2013, the above named defendant appeared before the
Court with his counsel, Thomas Gibson, Esq., and the defendant entered a guilty plea pursuant
to Alford, to the crime of Attempted Sexual Assault, a violation of NRS 193.330/200.366, a
Category “B” Felony.

On the 21" day of March 2014, the defendant appeared personally and with his
attorney, Thomas Gibson, Esq., for entry of Jadgment. No sufficient legal cause was shown hy
the defendant as to why judgment should not be pronounced against him.

The Court adjudged the defendant guilty of the crime of 4 ttempred Sexual Assault, a
violation of NRS 193.330/200.366, a Category “B” Felony.

The Court then ordered the defendant to the Nevada Department of Corrections for a

minimum term of ninety-six (96) months and a maximum of two hundred forty (240) months.

0305




Frra Junician Districr Coury

g
Z
=
8
w
2
a
Z
|
2
B
:
:
=
g

D O =~ @ O L W N =

-
o

11

Defendant shall receive credit for 345 days presentence incarceration,

Defendant having been convicted of a sexual offense, shall receive a special sentence
of lifetime supervision as a Tier I sex offender, to commence after any period of probation,
or any term of imprisonment, or after any period of release on parale.

Defendant shall register as a sex offender with a local law enforcement agency
pursuant 1o NRS 179D.450 within 48 hours of sentencing or release from custody.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendant shall be required to attend and
successfully complete a corrections-based sex offense specific treatment program to assist him
in understanding the dynamics of his sexual offending behaviors. Such a program should
nclude, at a minimum, concepis consisting of thinking errors, boundaries, deviant versus
healthy sexual fantasies, sexual assault cycles, maintenance eycles, victim empathy and relapse
pnevéntian. In addition, other areas that should be addressed in counseling are problem
solving and communication skills, dating and relationship issues, and healthy lifestyle
concepts.

The Defendant shall submit to polygraph testing and/or other sexual interest measures
(i.e. the Abel Assessment) so as to more accurately assess his sexual history, his sexual arousal
patterns, and to assist the Court and his treatment provider in ensuring compliance with Court
stipulations and treatment requirements,

The Defendant shall not be allowed contact of any kimnd (direct, mail or third party)
with the victim. If the Defendant does have regular contact with minor children, it shall be
approved by an officer of the Court and it should be under the supervision of an adult who is
fully aware of his sexual history, Court stipulations, and who agrees to take the legal/civil
responsibilities of being a chaperone.

The Defendant shall not be allowed to work as a volunteer for any organization or

church due to the potential for him to have unsupervised contact with vulnerable people.

0306




The Defendant shall pay to the clerk of the court an administrative fee of $25.00.

=i

The Defendant shall pay to the clerk of the court a DNA fee of $150.00.
The Defendant shall pay to the clerk of the court a DNA Administrative Assessment
Fee of $3.00.

The Defendant shall pay to the clerk of the court a Psychosexual Evaluation fee of
$1100.00. _

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any bond in this matter be exone rated, unless
previously ordered by this court for forfeiture or any other purpose,

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned hereby affirms this document does not

O O ™ N 0 B WM

—

contain the social security number of any person.

—
—

DATED this_‘2S _day of March 2014,

%ISTMC’F JUDGE
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ESMERALDA, MINERAL AND NYE COUNTIES
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CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE
; ; 7
The undersigned hereby certifies that on the 2% day of March 201 4, she mailed (or

hand delivered) copies of the foregoing Judgment of Conviction to the following:

NYE CO. DISTRICT ATTORNEY
PAHRUMP, NV

NEVADA DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION

PAHRUMP, NV

THOMAS GIBSON, ESQ
LAS VEGAS, NV

NYE CO. SHERIFF
PAHRUMP, NV

CARLA BEG[P%S;E’}@m

DISTRICT JUD
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I do certify that I mailed a true and correct copy of the
foregoing NOTICE OF APEEAL to the below address(es) on this
gﬁj’ day of FrEZRuARy + 20 /5" , by placing same in the

U.S. Mail via prisen law library staff:

BRIAN T, Kunz/{
NYE couNTY BISTRICE Arrorvsy
Po.Box 39

PaieumpP , NEVADA 7o/

CLeRK oFcouzTs
NYE County BicriteT Courr

/520 2457 BAas/A/
PAHRAMP , NEVADA £98242

LovELock CORRECLTIONAL CENTER WARDEN, RobERT L E GRAMN

C’ﬂ-S Pfﬁfﬂﬂjﬂ-{) £iCv Lo
|l 200 PRis2M R2AD

LovElock, NEVADA 9419

TroRVEY CenerAl e P e
e
HERCES MpemoRint Bau/tDing 1e/14. LLE,
Jod NORTH CARSON STRECT Lovelock Correctional Center
vaDd F T 1200 Prison Road
CAR Sod/ e Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petiticner In Pro Se

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
NOTICE OF APPEAL filed in District Court Case No. CR75Y4 A

does not contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this /2% day of fEgruaaly ; B0
DVttt S ek
AEL ALLEN mAc MW7

Petitioner In Pro Se
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

L Mictner .fu.t-.&af maek _, hereby certify pursuant to N.R.C.P. 3(b), that on this LA 7day
of _fFLBrusey

,Zﬂ_ﬁ,‘lhmﬁedtoapﬁsonoﬁcialﬁarmaiﬁngatmeandmmctmpyof

€C LERK oF courTs

NYE County DISTRICT Cpyet-
F8 20 Enst Aasm/
PaHRwmp ), NEVADA 87047

BRIAN T. Kuwnz/
NYE CounTy bISHRICT ATIORNEY

P;Ot 3oX 3?
PalRUMP Nevaha ¥9¢4/

Lovelock CoRREcHIoNPL CENTER WARDEN, RoBeer Le Grand .

( AS PERSONAL) Lt &t C
I oo Pris o RoAD
lovElsck , NV ADA  E7Y17

ATTORNEY GENERAL

HERES - MEM 0RiAL BeitDIvE
J00 NeRTH CARSon) STRELT

CAaRsoN City, NE/AVA 87 7/D

e
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Case No. CR7444A
Dept. No. 1

Petitioner,
VS.

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,

THE STATE OF NEVADA; NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS;
OVELOCK CORRETIONAL CENTER,
WARDEN, ROBERT LEGRAND

FILED

lq ﬁ:&ﬁﬂﬁ:

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF T SIAT 0 I;YQDA
P{ ] E "L» ' -1 F _\-' i
) T

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYEY LUEPU

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

Respondent,

I T

1. Name cf the appeliant filing the case appeal statement. Michael Allen Mack.

2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed from:
Honorable Kimberly A. Wanker.

3. Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant;

Michae!l Allen Mack, in proper person. The appeliant’s address is:

Michael Allen Mack #1117749
Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, NV 85419

4. Identify each respondent and the name and address of appeliate counsel, if
unknown, for each respondent (if thé name of the respondent’s appellate
counsel is unknown, indicate as much and provide the name and address of the
respondent’s trial counset): The St;ta of Nevada; Nevada Department of
Corrections; Lovelock Correctional Center, Warden, Robert LeGrand are
listed Respondents. The State of Nevada is represented by the Nye County
District Attorney, whose

address is:
0316
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5. Indicate whether any attorney identified above in response to question 3 or 4 is

6. Indicate whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained counsel in

7. Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed or retained counsel on

8. Indicate whether appellant was granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis, and

9. Indicate the date the proceedmgs ccmmencad in the district court (e.g., date

Nye County Dis Attorney @
1520 E. Basin Ro3, Suite 107
Pahrump, NV 89060

not licensed to practice law in Nevada and, if so, whether the district court
granted that attorney permission to.appear under SCR 42 (attach a copy of any
district court order granting such permission): All attorneys are licensed to

practice law in the State of Nevada.

the district court: Appellant was represented by Thomas Gibson, Esq., who

was appointed.
appeal: Appellant is representing himself, in proper person.

the date of ﬁ-ntryr of the district court order granting such leave: The Appellant
filed an Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis February 19', 2015. The

Order is currently pandmg Judge s slgnature

complaint, mdlctment |nformat|on or petrtmn was fi Ied} Proceedmgs in The
Fifth Judicial District Court commenc&d May 14", 2013 with the filing of thq
Bindover Order.

10. Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district
court, including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief
granted by the district court: This.case is a criminal pmcéeding that was
bound over to District Court May 14", 2013, The Appellant pled guilty
(Pursuant to Alford) on ﬁecémhér 4™, 2013 to Attempted Sexual Assault and
was sentenced March 21‘_‘, 20:1410 96/240 months in the Nevada Department
of Corrections. The Appellant is not specific what order is being appealed
or relief that is being sought.

11. Indicate whether the case hag pre%.‘"inusly been the subject of an appeal to or

original writ proceeding in the Supreme Court and, if so, the caption and
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Cage No. CR7ZHH4H4AH
Dept. No. [« F s

IN THE 5 r# JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF AN YE

® X kK % ®

MICHBEL pLren MAcK r

Petitioner,
e PETITION FOR WRIT

iy - - . ; . - 8
STATE GF NEVADA' NEVAHA DEMLT: OF HABEAS CORPU
MENT OF CoRREctfoNs, toveiock  AROST-CONVICTTION)
COoRREECTTONAL CENTER , WAR DEW, - B
ROBERT Le &fand

Respondent.

INSTRUCTIONS:

(1) This petition must be legibly handwritten or
Cypewritten, signed by the petitioner and verified.

(2) Additional pages are not permitted except where noted
or with respect to the facts which you rely upon to support your
grounds for relief. No citation of authorities need be
furnished. If briefs or arguments are submitted, they should be
submitted in the form of a separate memorandum.

(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete
the Affidavit in Support of Request to Proceed in Forma
Pauperis. You must have an authorized officer at the prison
complete the certificate as to the amount of mcney and
securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the
institution.

(4) You must name as respondent the person by whom you are
confined or restrained. If you are in a specific institution of
the Department of Corrections, name the warden or head of the
institution. If you are not in a specific institution of the
Department but within its custody, name the Director of the
Department of Corrections.

(5) You must include all grounds or claims for relief which

you may have regarding your conviction or sentence. Failure to
raise all grounds in this petition may preclude you from filing

0318
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future petitions challenging your conviction and sentence,

(6) You must allege specific facts supporting the claims in
the petition you file seeking relief from any conviction or
sentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause your petition to be dismigsed., If your
petition containg a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel ,
that claim will operate to waive the attormey-client privilege
for the proceeding in which you claim your counsel was

(7) When the petition is fully completed, the original and
cone copy must be filed with the clerk of the state district
court for the county in which You were convicted., One COpYy must
be mailed to the respondent, one copy to the Attorney General's
Office, and one copy to the district attorney of the county in
which you were convicted or to the original prosecutor if you
are challenging your original conviction or sentence. Copies
must conform in all particulars Lo the original submitted for
filing.

PETITION
1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently
imprisoned or where and how YOu are pregently restrained of your
liberty: Lovelock Correctional Center, Pershing County, Nevada.
2. Name and location of court which entered the judgment of
conviction under attack: THE FreTH Tm%cf}f. DiSTRICT couny— o £ 5L
STATE X NEVADA EN A4y For THE CouNTYy vF NYE « papaur MEVADR
REH ZP 301y

3. Date of judgment of conviction:

4. Case number: (R 7yyypn

5. (@) Length of sentence: Srasr T2 TWENTY (9 weARs
& b -
/ .
(b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which
execution is scheduled: N/A

6. Are you presently serving a sentence for a conviction
other than the conviction under attack in this motion?

Yea No g

If "yes," list crime, case number and sentence being
A

served at this time: A
f}
7
7 Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged:

ATTEMPTED SEXUAL A S5 A LT

8. What was your pPlea? (check one)

2 0319
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(a) Not guilty .

(b) Guilty

(¢) Guilty but mentally 111 _
(d) HNolo contendere X

9. If you entered a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill
to one count of an indictment or information, and a plea of not
guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if a
Plea of guilty or guilty but me tally ill was negotiated, give
details: ,\f/;,nd

Fd

Fa

10, If you were found guilty or guilty but mentally ill after
a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check one)

(a) Jury ' (b) Judge without a jury

. o £ Did you testify at the trial? Yes No

—

12, Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction?

Yes = No ___
13, If you did appeal, answer the following:
(a) Name of court:
(b) Case number or citation:
(c) Result:
(d) Date of result:
(Attach copy of order or decigion, if available.)

14. If you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did not:

1B Other than a direct appeal from the judgment of conviction
and sentence, have you previously filed any petitions,
applications or motions with respect to this judgment in any
court, state or federal? Yes ___ No >

16. 1f your answer to No. 15 was "yes, " give the following
information:
(a) (1) Name of court:
(2) Nature of proceeding:
(3) Grounds raised:
(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your
petition, application or motion? Yes - No

3" 0320
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(5) Result:
(6) Date of result:
(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or

date of orders entered pursuant to such result:

(b) As to any second petition, application or motion,
give the =same information:

(1) Name of court: '/,

(2) Nature of prceeeding;///

(3) Grounds raised: /!/{
/

(4) Did you receiyé an evidentiary hearing on your
petition, application or motich? Yes No

(5) Result:

(6) Date of sult:

{7} If knowsl, citations of any written opinion or
date of orders entered pursuant to such result:

(e} As to any/third or subsequent additional applications
Oor motions, give th¢ same information as above, list them on a
separate sheet and Aattach.

(d) Did yor appeal te the highegt state or federal court
having jurisdictfon, the result or action taken on any retition,
application or glotion?

First petition, application or motion?
Yes No '

—rr

Citation or date of decision:

Second petition, application or motion?
Yes No

Citation or date of decigion:

(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or

motions? Yes No

P
4

—_—

Citation or date of decision:

- 0321
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(e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any
petition, application or motion, explain briefly why you did
not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this
question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2
by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not
exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)

: e Has any ground being raised in this petition been
previcusly presented to this or any other court by way of
petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other
postconviction proceeding? If so, identify:

(a) Which of the grounds is tke same:

S O 0 - Oy W B W R

(b} The proceedings in w?xéL these grounds were raised:

(c) Briefly explain why you are again raising these
grounds. (You must relate spgecific facts in response to this
13 question. Your response may included on paper which is 8 1/2
by 11 inches attached to t petition. Your response may not
exceed five handwritten or/ typewritten pages in length.)

16 18. If any of the grgunds listed in Nos. 23(a), (b), {(c) and

17 (d), or listed on any Additional pages you have attached, were
not previously presenfed in any other court, state or federal,

st were not go presented, and give your

reagsons for not presgnting them. (You must relate specific facts

19 in response to this guestion. Your response may be included on
paper which is 8 1/2 by 11 inches attached to the petition., Your

20 || FeSponse may not ceed five handwritten or Lypewritten pages in
length.)

22 19. Are you filing this petition more than 1 year following

73 the filing of fhe judgment of conviction or the filing of a
decision on difrect appeal? If so, state briefly the reascns for

24| the delay. (Ybu must relate specific facts in response to this
question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 1/2

25 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not
exceed five/ handwritten or typewritten pages in length., )

26 7
27 /

28 20. qg!ycu have any petition or appeal now pending in any
court, /either state or federal, as to the judgment under attack?
/

T 0322
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Yes No M

If yes, state what court and the case number:

21. Glve the name of each attorney who represented you in the
proceeding resulting in your conviction and on direct appeal:

THOMAS CIBSON, 5

22, Do you have any future sentences to serve after you
complete the sentanii:imposed by the judgment under attack?
Yes No X

If yes, specify where and when it is to be served, if you
know: :

23, State concisely every ground on which you claim that you
are being held unlawfully. Summarize briefly the facts
supporting each ground. If necessary you may attach pages
stating additional grounds and facts gupporting same.

(a) Ground one: Qeliliwers S 97 pp 197 clorer omn

Supporting FACTS
citing casges or law.): o

LT b3 AT 1A C AT,
e L =T 4 ) (i1 Aaf O

(Tell your story bri

Sy ] =

efly without

ROrETING

Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without

citing cases or law.): Pje.c S AT

Eﬂ&.FAC’TE} as THis is ~NoT oo ieEsrer ?-chﬁ o slelazdrian ..,

0323
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7 oF 30 1
2
4 (¢} Ground three:
4 ¥ _-._ —
3 Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without
6 citing cases or law.):
ﬁa@ﬁ*ﬁéi SCE JfTTaﬂﬁﬁEELfﬂﬁEEE“IEEsaﬁﬁﬂéﬂE&:_
7 —MMMM%iMTMﬁ .
8
9
10
11
12
13
14 Supporting FACTS (Tell your story briefly without

15 citing cases or law.):

16 Ll == - e
17 A 3

r%mm‘w Ed TN A8 THIL 7€ AT S —

18 fcir‘a«*r* Jigae g renz E’%Qmaﬂm
19 £

20

21

WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that the court grant petitioner
29 || ¥elief to which he may be entitled in this proceeding.

23 EXECUTED at Lovelock Correctional Center on the /& 7r¥ day of
the month of [frgrasc~ of the year 20 ¢ .
24 I A el L VPt
Lovelock Correcticnal Center
26 , 1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se

0324
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VERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he
is the petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the
contents thereof; that the pleading is true of his own
knowledge, except as tec those matters stated on information and
belief, and as to such matters he believes them to be true,

ﬂ7w1g;41¢é£4:7vt¢&£#’

Metines. A én’ $L12749
Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MATL

I, MILHAREL RLLEN maek , hereby certify,pursuant to
N.R.C.P. 5(b), that on this /% day of the month of
FEBRuney of the year 20 /47, I mailed a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
addresged to:

Warden, ReGERT Le GRaND

Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada

8 ATTORNEY CEVERAL

B HEROES MEMORIAL Bt tDING
loe NopTH SAASSN SrRrssr

N CARS oW ciT¥, NEVADA §F7/0

BRIAN 77 kunzs
NYE County District Attorney
P.o:« Box 32

DapRunp , Nevada 8S o4y

(District Attorney of County of Conviction)

CLERIK pF cownTs eyt i s P E Do
NYE CounTy DISTRICT CoulRTS MICHAEL Aizin pAcie B 1177777
IS 20 Easr Bas/WV Lovelocl-_c Correctional Center
PaHRWLMpP, NEVADA 87060 1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se
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Case No. PC 7444 e 5
Dept. 1 E G
I FES 23 2 oouy
. S_teP hanlﬁ May
IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF
THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
ORDER APPOINTING
Petitioner, DAVID NEELY.E
VS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.
/
Good cause appearing therefor,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that DAVID NEELY, ESQ., is appointed to represent
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that supplemental points and authorities shall be filed
within 435 days if needed.
DATED this_ 12 day of February, 2015,
KIVERLY WANKER
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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CER TION O VICE
The undersigned hereby certities that on the @ day of February, 2015, she

delivered by US mail (or hand delivery) a copy of the foregoing ORDER to the following:

David Neely, Esq.
3520 E. Tropicana, D-1
Las Vegas, NV 89048
{(Hand Delivered)

Nve County District Attorney’s Office
1520 E. Basin Ave.

Pahrump, NV 89060

(Hand Delivered)

Michael Allen Mack #1117749
Lovelock Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, NV 89419

(bl (umondc

CHRISTEL RAIMONDO, Clerk to
DISTRICT JUDGE

AFFIRMATION

The undersigned hereby affirms that this Court Order does not contain the social

CHRISTEL RAIMONDO, Clerk to
DISTRICT JUDGE

security number of any person.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, No. 67441
Appellant,
Vs,
THE STATE OF NEVADA, F g g« % B
Respondent. FEB 77 205

ORDER DISMISSING APPEAL

This is a pro se appeal “of case number CR7444A.” Fifth
Judicial District Court, Nye County; Kimberly A, Wanker, Judge.

The notice of appeal fails to designate the specific order or
Judgment being challenged on appeal. See NRAP 3(c)(1)(B). To the extent
that appellant appeals from the judgment of conviction entered on March
25, 2014, the appeal is mtimeig filed. See NRAP 4(b)(1)(A) (prescribing a
30-day appeal period from the entry of the judgment of conviction).
Further, it does not appear from the documents submitted with this
appeal that the district court has entered any other appealable order. We
therefore lack jurisdiction to consider this appeal, see Lozada v. State, 110
Nev. 349, 352, 871 P.2d 944, 946 (1994) (“[Aln untimely notice of appeal
fails to vest jurisdiction in this court.”), and we

ORDER this appeal DISMISSED.

Q“)@"%V'— J

""j Parraguirre
Jw&’j@é_’ J. C)'\Mmdf J
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MEvADA

12678 il

ce:

Hon. Kimberly A. Wanker, District Judge
Michael Allen Mack

Attorney General/Carson City

Nye County District Attorney

Nye County Clerk

0354




W Mm

W

CASE NO. PC-7444
DEPT. NO. 1

DAVID H. NEELY III, ESQ. i“'g
Nevada State Bar No. 03891
3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1.

Las Vﬂﬁla, NV 88048 1015 §PD -7 |
(702) 565-0716 .
Attorney for Petitioner n.{ff;.. v \ERK

U*”ﬁihf' -
By BEFETY

i
H
Ll

IN THE FIFTE JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

9
10

L

12
13
14

15§

16
17
18
19
20
21

22§

23

2y

25 §

e ..- ! : I ! - ]
i S% tpdoanha Avg.
i Las Vegds, Nevada 8912

i Attorney for Petiticner

28

STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

MICHAEL A. MACE,
STIPULATION AND ORDER
FOR EXTENSION OF TIME
TO FILE SUPPLEMENT

Petiticner,
ve.
STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent,

Sl Sl T Nl i Wl W Vot Sl W

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between DAVID H,

NEELY, III, Esg., attorney for Petitioner, MICHAEL A. MACK, and

Nye County Chief Deputy District Attorney KIRK VITTQO, Esqg., for
3"‘"

the STATE OF NEVADA, that the Petitioner has until the l_ day of

ar—

_\iu-l‘.% , 2015 to file his Supplement.

This stipulatien is at the request of DAVID H. NEELY ITI,

Esq., and is because more time is needed to prepare the

Supplement.

a"day of April, 2015,

ANGELA BELLO, ESQ.
NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

7 LA

TTO,£3q.

Deputy District Attorney
. Box 385

Pahrump, NV 85041

AVtorney for Respondent
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26
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28

ORDER

Upon Stipulation for the parties hereto, and good cause

appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the

Fetitioner in this case has until the 2 déy of

i

Duly » 2018, to file his Supplement.
o :
DATED this ﬂi@? day of April, 2015.
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NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

P.C. BOX 35
PAHRUMP, NEVADA 53041

e

{775) 751-7080
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this document does not contain 25

the social security number of
any person

Case No, PC7444 Lk “ )

Department {l S & s
_ZIL\K Lo Lmd e wn

The undersigned affirms that NNEH DAV iS

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

MICHAEL A, MACK,

Petitioner, ANSWER AND MOTION TO
DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF
Vs, HABEAS CORPUS (POST-
CONVICTION)

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

COMES NOW, Respondent, State of Nevada, by and through its attorney,
ANGELA A, BELLO, NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, through counsel, Chief
Deputy District Attorney, Kirk D. Vitto, and requests that the Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction) filed by the Petitioner be dismissed. This Petition is subject
to paragraph one of NRS 34 810, and relief should clearly be summarily denled,

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Pursuant to NRS 34,810,

The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:
I

I
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a) The petitioner's conviction was upon a plea of guilty and the petition

is not based upon an allegation that the plea was involuntary or

unknowingly entered or that the plea was entered without effective

assistance of counsel.

The defendant acknowledges that his conviction was the result of his having
pled guilty, (pursuant to the Aiford decision) and, as a basls for relief makes the

following six claims that he asserts represent his plea being received by the court

without effective assistance of counsel.
A, Trial counse! did not effectively investigate the case before plea entering,
B. Trial counsel was ineffective for allowing the defendant to plead guilty while
suffering under the sequela of a medical episode;

C. Trial counsel failed to inform the defendant of Tier 11l sex offender

consequences,
0. Trial counsel falled to adequately review the facts of the case and discuss
potential defenses;
E. Trial counsel failed to adequately inform the defendant of the potential
sentence as a result of pleading guilty to attempt sexual assault;
F. Trial counsel labored under an undisclosed conflict of interest,
By far the most common claim raised within a request for relief in a post-
conviction petition is that the petitioner received ineffective assistance of counsel, The

controlling authority stems from the threshold and landmark case when considering

such a claim, Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 685-86 (1984), That case set

forth a twe-prong test. The petitioner must show that his counsel's performance was
deficient, and that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. Warden v.

Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432 (1984). An analysis does not require that both prongs be
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addressed if either is an insufficient showing. [n order to meet the first prong, the
petitioner woulid have to show that his atlorney's performance fell below an objective

standard of reasonableness. Means v, State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011 (2004). A ecourt's

scrutiny here is highly deferential. Hindsight is discouraged. in order to show
prejudice, the petitioner must show “a reasonable probabiiity that, but for counsel’s
unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 894. “A reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to
undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. It is the petitioner's burden to establish

this claim, both prongs.

In United States v. Arvanitis, 902 F.2d 489, 494-495 (7" Cir. Il 1990), the

Supreme Court stated:

To establish prejudice in the guilty plea context, a defendant must show
that ‘counsel's constitutionally defective performance affected the
outcome of the plea process. In other words, the defendant must show
that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, [the
defendant] would not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on
going fo trial.” Hill, 474 U.S. at 59. A mere allegation by the dafendant
that he would have insisted on going to trial is insufficient to establish
prejudice. (emphasis added)

In Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52 56-57 (U.S. 1985), the US Supreme Court said.

The government is not responsible for, and hence not able to prevent,
attorney errors that will result in reversal of a conviction or sentence.
Attorney errors come in an infinite variety and are as likely to be utterly
harmless in a particular case as they are to be prejudicial. They cannot
be classified according to likelihood of causing prejudice. Nor can they
be defined with sufficient precision to inform defense attorneys correctly
just what conduct to avoid. Representation is an art, and an act or
omission that is unprofessional in one case may be sound or even
brifliant in another. Even if a defendant shows that particular errors of
counsel were unreasonable, therefore, the defendant must show that
they actually had an adverse effect on the defense.

/i
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In addition, we believe that requiring a showing of "prejudice” from
defendants who seek to challenge the validity of their guilty pleas on the
ground of ineffective assistance of counsel will serve the fundamental

interest in the finality of guilty pleas we identified in United States v.
Timmreck, 441 U.S. 780 (1979)" (emphasis added).

In Hodges v. State, 118 Nev, 479, 482 (2003) the Court stated:

NRS 34,810(1)(a) provides that a court shall dismiss a post-conviction
habeas petition challenging a conviction based on a guilty plea unless
the petition alleges ‘that the plea was involuntarily or unknowingly
antared or that the plea was entered without effective assistance of
counsel.' A petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing only If he
supports his claims with specific factual allegations that if true would
entitle him to relief. The petitioner is not entitied to an evidentiary
hearing if the factual allegations are belied or repelled by the record.

All six claims are guickly eliminated as having any weight for consideration as

they run afoul of NRS 34.810.

In Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, at 621 (2001) the court said:

A defendant seeking post-conviction relief cannot rely on conclusory
claims for relief but must support any claims with specific factual
allegations that if true would entitle him or her to relief. The defendant
is not entitled to an evidentiary hearing if the allegations are belied or
repelled by the record (emphasis added).

The court in Evans also said,

Judicial review of a lawyer's representation is highly deferential, and a
defendant must overcome the presumption that a challenged action
might be considered sound strateqy. The reviewing court must try to
avoid the distorting effects of hindsight and evaluate the conduct
under the circumstances and from counsel’'s perspective at the time. [d.
at 622, (emphasis added).

Bare claims, such as the ones presented in the criginal petition and both
supplements, are insufficient to demonstrate a basis for relief. See Hargrove supra.
1

Hrl
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The claims before the court are legally without merit and subject to summary
dismissal because he has not adequately expressed to this court why what he claims
as ineffectiveness would have made an outcome determinative difference and it is his
burden. His claims of ineffectiveness are belied by the record. The defendant has not
set forth, expressed or explained the value of a more comprehensive investigation if
he couid show that one was not conducted. The defendant has claimed he would not
have pled guilty but for the effect of a medical episode yet the arraignment transcript
clearly reflects the court being aware of the situation and addressing it. Transcript of
Proceedings Change of Plea, (T) December 8, 2013, page 2, 4. The court specifically
asked the defendant, "Are you under any medications that would affect your ability to
understand the proceedings and what's going on today? THE DEFENDANT: No,
ma'am.” T12.

The transcript and Guiity Plea Agreement (GPA) clearly set forth the notice
required as It pertains to sex-offender status and failing to inform the defendant of Tier
IIt sex offender consequences is nowhere specifically required by law to an extent
greater than the notice provided. The tier's were specifically addressed in the
defendant's presence. T2, 21-23. The matter was specifically addressed to the
defendant, the court making inquiry whether the defendant initialed the change being
discussed in his presence, and trial counsel acknowledging “we're all in agreement.”
T3, The defendant seeks to Impose an obligation nowhere required by law. The
defendant has failed to meet his burden to establish that trial counsel failed to
adequately review the facts, or what discussing the potential defenses would have
benefitted. The defendant claims that trial counse] failed to explain the potential

sentence he faced, yet the arraignment transcript and GPA are undeniably clear on
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the matter. T19, 20, 21. Lastly, the defendant would have this court believe that trial
counsel labored under an undisclosed conflict of interest that prejudiced him, although
he makes no showing in that regard, and it Is his burden. The defendant expressly
represented to the court that he had no concerns about either trial counsel or the
defense investigator and that he was satisfied with the representation he had received.
T186.

The defendant has to show, with particularity, why what he alleges would have
made a difference. He has not done that. What the defendant has alleged instantly is
exactly like what the court in Evans clearly said was just not going to be sufficient, As
examples, the court in Evans said,

Evans asserts that his trial counsel did not conduct adequate pretrial

investigation and were thus unprepared to cross-examine scme

witnesses or call others, [Very similar to the defendant's claim instantly]

His claims remain vaque, failing to include specific factual

allegations that, if true, establish prejudice. |d at 644 (emphasis
added).

Later, the court continued, remarking that Evans,

had gone so far as to claim that the district court ‘refused to allow
portions of the trial to be recorded.’ He fails to substantiate this
irresponsible claim in any way ... he has done nothing to support his
vague accusations of wronqgdoing and prejudice with any

discussion of the record or a single affidavit, id. at 845 (emphasis
added).

The court went on:

Evans claims that his counsel failed to challenge the prosecutor's
endorsement of witnesses and to prepare adequately for the examination
of witnesses. The gist of this claim seems to be that the prosecutor's
endorsement of witnesses was excessive and untimely. Evans does
not specify how his_counsel could have better cross-examined the
State's witnesses and thus fails to show prejudice, id., (emphasis
added).
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Evans claimed his attorney should have called an expert, but failed “to allege

specifically what these experts could have done to make a different result

teasonabie” |d., (emphasis added). Evans claimed his trial counsel did not

adequately prepare for the penalty phase, but did not identify “any fact they should

have discovered or any specific deficiency in the way they handled the penalty

phase”, id. at 646, (emphasis added).
The defendant has to demonstrate prejudice. He cannot simply say, as an
example, "Failed to Interview and investigate state witnesses’, as we see from the

numerous examples quoted from Evans supra, He has to state, with particularity,

what that would have accomplished, why it was objectionably reasonable to do, if it
was not done, and, something the defendant has not done at ail, on any claim, how

and why the outcome would have been different. Doing so is the only way a

reviewing court can differentiate the claim with merit from the claim without, and in that
regard the defendant has done nothing, and it is his burden.

The record before the court, the canvass and GPA unequivocally manifests a
willing, voluntary, knowing Alford plea to Attempted Sexual Assault, he did not even
have to admit what the evidence proved he had done. "It is appeliant's responsibility
to present relevant authority and cogent argument; issues not so presented need not

be addressed by this court.” Maresca v. State, 103 Nev, 669, 673 (1987). "A

petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if he (1) alleges facts, which, if proven,
would entitle him to relief; and (2) show that he did not receive a full and fair hearing in

state court . . . attrialf.]" Alberniv. McDaniel, 468 F.3d 860, 873 (9th Cir. 2008). "A

claim is ‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed

at the time the claim was made.” Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354 (2002).
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. IF NOT DISMISSED SUMMARILY, THE DEFENDANT HAS NOT
SET FORTH ANY BASIS FOR A HEARING

According to the law in Nevada, the defendant is obligated to attach whatever is
necessary, affidavits, records, other documents, some evidence to support what it i
he claims. There must be substantiation. NRS 34.370(4). He can not merely make
the claim that his trial counsel failed to pursue (whatever the claim may be) this, that or
the other thing without a basis for the claim which otherwise is nothing other than
speculation. He must tender evidence tending to establish that there in fact is
adequate reason to believe what he is saying as a threshold starting point. He has not

done that.

. THE PETITION IS UNSUPPORTED BY "“SPECIFIC FACTUAL,
ALLEGATIONS THAT IF TRUE WOULD ENTITLE [THE
DEFENDANT] TO RELIEF”

The claims for relief as alleged, viewed in light of the record extant, dramatically
impact this court's decision regarding whether an evidentiary hearing is necessary
according to NRS 34.770 which says “The judge or justice, upen review of the return,
answer and all supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether an
evidentiary hearing is required.” At paragraph 2 the statute says, “If the judge or
justice determines that the petitioner is not entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing

is not required, he shall dismiss the petition without a hearing.”

v HIS NAKED CLAIMS FOR RELIEF ARE BELIED BY THE
RECORD

In Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev, 488, at 502, 503, 686 P.2d 222 (1984), the court

said that "bare” or "naked” claims for relief "did not entitle [the defendant] to an

evidentiary hearing." The court further stated,
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To the extent that the motion and supplemental authorities raised
allegations supported by factual claims, particularly the allegation of
ineffective counsel, we note that the factual claims were belied by the
record, especially the transcript of the change of plea canvass. A
defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled to an evidentiary
hearing on factual allegations belied or repelled by the record.

Each of the defendant's claims, set forth supra, must be reviewed in conjunction

with the record to see whether the claims are belied as the prosecution asserts to the

extent they are even at all cognizable, To the extent any ciaims survive the mandatory

dismissal aspect of this response; the claims brought in the original petition are wild

ramblings that amount to nothing other than bare claims insufficient to demaonstrate

that he is entitled to relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502-03 (1984).

Furthermore, the defendant hag utterly failed to demonstrate how any of the above

actions alleged to have been ineffectiveness would have affected the outcome at trial.

Therefore, the district court should deny the claims as unsupported, unsubstantiated,

and bereft of merit.

says:

CONCLUSION

Because the controlling authority, the law in the State of Nevada, NRS 34.810,

The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that,

a) The petitioner's conviction was upon a plea of guilty and the petition
ls not based upon an allegation that the plea was involuntary or

unknowingly entered or that the plea was entered without effective
assistance of counsel,”

The defendant’s petition should be dismissed based upon the record. He has,

as the moving party with the burden, failed to establish a cognizable claim.

1
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Belied by the record as it is, this court should congider that not only is the

defendant's claim without merit, but his claims do not warrant an evidentiary hearing.
The record extant demonstrates that with a strong factual basis for denying a hearing,
and setting forth the strength of the record in regard to the defendant’s instant claim,
the court should consider dismissing this action based upon the pleadings and the
record with full confidence that the ruling will survive judicial scrutiny upon review, The

defendant simply has utterly failed to establish what difference it would have made if
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anything he asserts were factually accurate, which he has not done, and it is his
burden.
DATED this /() _day of May, 2015.

ANGELA A. BELLO
NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

Deputy District Attorney

10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
|, Kayta MaKinsey Ball, Executive Legal Secretary, Office of the Nye County
District Attorney, P. O. Box 39, Pahrump, Nevada 89041, do hereby certify that | have
served the following:

ANSWER AND MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

in5' " JDC Case No. PC7444

STATE v. MICHAEL ALLEN MACK

upon said Defendant herein by hand delivering a true and correct copy thereof on

Q[Z[L to the following:

DAVID NEELY

AT THE NYE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEYS OFFICE
IN PAHRUMP, NEVADA

¢

HAYWKIN L

11
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CASE NO. PC7444
Dept 1

e e ey

Bl a5 25 B 3 ul
IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE smﬁ@ﬁf@ﬂﬂ%ﬂw

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE | <+ ¢ 1

MICHAEL A. MACK,

Petitioner,

=
5
e
~

V.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.
/

On July 1, 2015, David H. Neely [I1, Esq. filed Petitioner s Supplemental Points and
Authorities in Support of Post-Conviction Writ. In said pleading, Petitioner asks the Court to
consider the original Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus that was filed on February 19, 2015.

The Court, upon review of the Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on February 19,
20135, finds that pages 8 through 25 of said document are written in a manner that is illegible to
the Court.

Therefore good cause appearing,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petitioner file an Amended Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus ina 12 peint font. The Petitioner shall have 30 days from the filing of this court

order, to file the amended petition.

DATED this 2_; day of August 2015.

- e
KIMBEREPY A. WANKER
DISTRICT JUDGE
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1 CE OF SERVICE
2' The undersigned hereby certifies that on the é day-of August 20135, she mailed
3
(or hand delivered) copies of the foregoing ORDER to the following:
4
5] NYE cO. DISTRICT ATTORNEY
gl PAHRUMP, NV 89060
(HAND DELIVERED)
7
DAVID NEELY, III, ESQ.
81 3520 E. TROPICANA, D-1
o] LAS VEGAS, NV 89121
. B (HAND DELIVERED)
2 10
S 3 -
1 %}ﬂi& Chomondo
3 :
=
z S e STEL RAIMONDO, Clerk to
~ 2 13 DISTRICT JUDGE
54
g 2 14
5 2
E E 15
=2 16

AFFIRMATION

-
=

The undersigned hereby affirms that this Court Order does not contain the sociat security

CHRISTEL RAIMONDO, Clerk to
DISTRICT JUDGE

-k
0

number of any person.
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DAVID H. NEELY III
Nevada Bar Ne. 003891 P RIR B0 A Q EY
3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1 bl s S R TV
lLas Vegas, NV 89121 ”“_stepham%_jﬂ&y
(702) 565-07186 5 He . ST
Attorney for Petitioner et aradioh

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
AMENDED
PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS
(POST~CONVICTION)

MICHAEL A, MACK,

Petitionerxr,

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

)
)}
)
)
vs, }
)
)
Respondent, ]

)

Petitioner, MICHAREL AR. MACK, by and through his Attorney,
DAVID H. NEELY III, Esqg., hereby files the following Amended
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction), pursuant to
NRS 34.750, and in support of hias request for an Evidentiary
Hearing pursuant to NRS 34.770 in the above captioned matter.

1. FACTS

On May 14, 2013, an Information was filed charging
Petiticoner with COUNT I: SEXUAL ASSAULT, in wviolation cof NRS
200.336, a Category A Felony, Count II: SEXUAL ASSAULT, in
violation of NRS 200.366, a Category A Feleny, Count III:
PREVENTING OR DISSUADING VICTIM FROM REPORTING CRIME, COMMENCING
PROSECUTION OR CAUSING ARRREST, in violation of NRS 199.303, a
Category D Felony, Count IV: UNLAWFUL CONTACT WITH PERSON WITH
MENTAL ILLNESS, in vieclation of NRS 207.260, a Gross Misdemeanor,

Count V: ABUSE OF VULNERABLE PERSON, in wvioclation of NRS
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200.5099, a Gross Misdemeanor, Count VI: SEXUARL ASSAULT, in
violation of MRS 200,366, a Category A Felony, Count VII:
UNLAWFUL CONTACT WITH PERSON WITH MENTAL ILLNESS, in viglation of
207.260, a Gross Misdemeanor, Count VIII: ABUSE OF VULNERABLE
PERSON, in violation of NRS 200.5099, a Gross Mlsdemeanor. On Hay
17, 2013, an Arraignment is held where the Petitioner pleads Not
Guilty to all charges contained in the Information. On September
20, 2013, Motion for OR Release is heard and denied by the Trial
Court. On October 23, 2013, a Motion to Sever is heard by the
Trial Court and is granted. On Neovember 26. 2013, an Amended
Information id filed charging Petitioner with Count I: ATTEMPTED
SEXUAL ASSAULT, in violation of NRS 200.366, a Category B Felony.
On December 4, 2013, an Arraignment/Change of Plea is held but
continued due to unavailability of the Petitioner who is in the
hospital due to a stroke. On December 5, 2013, a Secconded Amended
Information is filed charging Petioner with Count I: ATTEMPTED
SEXUAL ASSBULT, in violation of NRS 200.366/1893.330, a Category B
Felony., On December 6, 2013, another Arraignment/Change of Plea
is held where the Petitioner pleads Guilty pursuant to ALFORD to
Count T: ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT, in violation of NRS
200.366/193.330, a Category B Felony. On March 21, 2014, a
Sentencing Hearing is held where the Petitioner is sentenced to
96/240 months in prison, reglster as a Sex Offender with Lifetime
Supervision, Ordered to complete & Corrections based Sex Offense
Treatment Program, 345 days Credit Time Served. On February 19,
2015, the Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction) in the above entitled matter. On February 19,
2015, a Motion for Appointment of Counsel and Request for

2
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Evidentiary Hearing was filed in the above-entitled matter. An
prder Appointing David Neely, Esg. Was filed on February 23,
2015,

pPetitioner is currently incarcerated at the Lovelock
Correctional Center in Pershing County, State of Nevada.

2., STANDARD UPON REVIEW OF PETITION

NRS 34.770 sets forth the Standard for this Court’s review
of the instant Petition and supporting documentation. NRS 34.770
states:

1. The judge or justice, upon review of the return,

answer and all supporting documents which are filed,

shall determine whether an evidentiary hearing is

required. A petitioner must not be discharged or

committed to the custody of a person other than the

respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2. If the judge or justice determines that the

petitioner is not entitled to relief and an evidentiary

hearing is not reguired, he shall dismiss the petition

without a hearing.

3, If the judge or justice determines that an

evidentiary hearing is required, he shall grant the

writ and ghall set a date for the hearing.

Where as here, the Petition sets forth specific allegations
in the Petitiocn or accompanying brief which if true, would

entitle the petitiocner to an evidentiary hearing unless those

claims are repelled by the record. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev.

498, 686 P.2d 222, (1984); Mazshall v. State, 110 Nev 1328, BBS

P.2d 602 (1994), Bs stated in Drake v. State, 108 Nev. 323, 836

P.2d 52 (19922):

The question in this case is not whether appellant proved
his counsel was ineffective, but whether appellant made
allegations which entitled him to an evidentiary hearing. 3eg
B ve v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 686 P.2d 222 (1984); Grondin v,
State, 97 Nev. 454, 634 P,2d 456 [1981). [emphasis added]

3. INEFFECTIVENESS OF COUNSEL UNDER STRICKLAND
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To state a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel that
is sufficient to invalidate a judgment of conviction, a defendant
must demonstrate that counsel’s performance fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, and that counsel’s errors
were 50 severe that they rendered the jury’s verdict unreliable,

land v. Washington, 466 0.3. 668 (1984); Warden wv. Lvons,

100 Nev 430, 683 P.2d 504 (1984), cert. denied, 471 U.5. 1004
(1985)

In Strickland v. Washinagton, 466 U.5.668; 692, 104 5.Ct.
2052, 2067, 8L.Ed.2d €674 (1984) the United States Suprems Court
reaffirmed the “Actual or constructive denial of the assistance
of counsel altogether is legally presumed to result in

prejudice”. The Supreme Court further reaffirmed this ruling in

penison v, Ohio, 488 U.S5. 73, 109 S.Ct. 346, 102 L.Ed.2d 300,
(12848).

Counsel must adequately prepare the case at all levels,
including preliminary matters in Justice Court. Sanborn v,
State, 107 NWewv. B56, B22 P.2d 11 (1951).

Here, as in Marshall v. State, 110 New, 1328, B85 P.2Z2d ©03

(1994), the Petitioner alleged acts which, if true, entitle him
to relief as ineffective assistance of counsel.

4, COUNSEL’'S CONSTITUTIONALLY DEFECTIVE PERFORMANCE AFFECTED
THE OUTCOME OF THE PLEA PROCESS.

In United States V., Arvantis, 902 F.2d 483, 494-495 (1™
Cir. III. 199%90), the Supreme Court stated:

To establish prejudice in the guilty plea context, a
defendant must show that ‘counsel’s constituticnally defective

performance affected the outcome of the plea process. In other
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words, the defendant must show that there is a reasonablie
probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the defendant would
not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to
trial’. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.5. 59, 106 5. Ct. 266, 88 L.Ed.
2d 203 (L985).

Theée United States Supreme Court in Hill, 474 U.S. 38,

stated that,”the two part Strigkland v. Washington test applies

to challengss to guilty pleas on ineffective assistance of
counsel. In the context of guilty pleas, the first half of the
Strickland v. Washington test is nothing more than a restatement
of the standard of attorney competence already set forth... The
second, or prejudice reguirement, on the other hand, focuses on
whether counsel’s constitutionally ineffective performance
affected the outcome of the plea preocess. In other words, in
order to satisfy the prejudice reguirement, the defendant must
show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for
counsel’s errors, he would have insisted on going to trial.

In many guilty plea cases, the “prejudice” ingquiry will
closely resemble the inguiry engaged in by courts reviewing
ineffective-assistance challenges to conwvictions obtained through
a trial. For example, where the alleged error of counsel is a
failure to investigate or discover potentially exculpatory
evidence, the determination whether the error “prejudiced” the
defendant by causing him to plead guilty rather than go to trial
will depend on the likelihood that discovery of the evidence
would have led counsel to change his recommendation as to the
plea. This assessment, in turn, will depend in large part on a
prediction whether the evidence likely would have changed the

8
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gutcome of the trial. Hill, 474 V.5. 32,

When a petitioner alleges ineffective assistance of
counsel, he must establish the factual allegations which form the
basie for his claim of ineffective asslistance by a preponderance
of the evidence., Next, as stated in STRICKLAND, the petitioner
must establigh that those facts show counsel’s performance fell
pelow a standard of objective reasonableness, and finally the
petitioner must establish prejudice by showing a reasonable that,
but for counsel’s deficient performance, the outcome would have

been different. Means v. State of Nevada, 120 Wev. 1001, 103 P.3d

25 (2004).

In Hodges v, State, 119 Nev. 473, 482 (Newv.2003), the
Nevada Supreme Court stated:

NRS 34.810(1) (a) provides that a court shall dismiss a
post-conviction habeas petition challenging a conviction based on
a guilty plea unless the petition alleges ‘that the plea was
involuntary ¢r unknowingly entered without effective assistance
of counsel.’ A petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing
only if he supports his claims with specific allegations that 1f
true would entitle him to relief. The petitiocner is not entitled
to an evidentiary hearing if his claims are belied or repelled by
the record.

5. INSTANCES OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OR COUNSEL

Petitioner alleges that his attorney has fallen below that
standard in the following eight (8} instances which if, taken on
their own may not be enough to render the Petitioner’s guilty
plea unreliable but when taken together, Petitioner believes, and
I hope this Court agrees, that taken together, the Petitioner's

G
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guilty plea is unreliable. The eight (8) instances are as
follows:

A. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO USE RELEVANT INFORMATION IN HIS
INVESTIGATICN PROVIDED BY PETITIONER.

Petitioner provided Trial Counsel with at least 10
witnesses which included friends and members of the alleged
victim’s family with their phone numbers to interview prior te
trial. Trial Counsel and his investigator failed to contact any
of the witnesses. As a result no background information on the
alleged victim was ever obtained in preparation for trial. These
witnesses possessed information on the alleged victim’s life that
could have proven useful at trial. In addition, these witnesses
could have been useful as cross-references to other witnesses.

B. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO MOTION TOC HAVE HIS STATEMENTS
SUPPRESSED THAT WERE MADE TO THE STATE AT TIME OF ARREST.

Petiticner feels that Trial Counsel had a2 duty to suppress
his statements that were made to Detective David Boruchowitz at
the time of his arrest. Petiticoner maintains that his Miranda
Rights were violated during this interview and a Metion to
Suppress these statements was a necessity in his defense. “The
arresting cofficers came to Petitioner’s home with an arrest
warrant and a recording device, with every intent to arrest and
record as soon as the arresting offlcer ascertained that
petitioner was the individual named on the arrest warrant, he
should have been placed under arrest in handcuffs and notified of
his rights, 1f not warned that he was being recorded”,

C. TRIAL COUNSEL DELIBERATELY LIED ABOUT THE TIER STATUS

THAT PETITIONER FACED AS A RESULT OF HIS PLEA OF GUILTY .
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Trial Counsel failed to advise the Petitioner what it
meant to be a Tier III Sex Offender prior to entry of his plea.
Petitioner was criginally told that he would be a Tier LI Sex
Offender prior toe discovering at the Arraignment that he was
going to be & Tier III Sex Offender. Petitioner would not have
entered a plea of Guilty to an offense that reguired Tier III Sex
Offender status if he had understood the conseguences.

D. TRIAL COQUNSEL FRILED TO INFORM PETITIONER THAT THE
INFORMATION OBTAINED DURING THE PSYCHO-SEXUAL EXAM CCULD BE USED
AGRINST HIM AT SENTENCING.

Trial Counsel had a duty to inform Petiticoner that ths
information provided in the Psycho-Sexual Exam weould be included
in & report to the Trial Court and used against him at his
Sentencing. “Petitioner would have refused to provide damning
partial information toc a psycholcgist whose report and
recommendations was instrumental in the Trial Court’s decision to
sentence Petitioner to an 8 to 20 prison sentence rather than 2
to 20 that was in the plea agreement”.

E. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO MOTION TO HAVE THE TRIAL JUDGE
RECUSE HERSELF FROM PETITIONER'S CASE FOR BIAS.

“Petitioner had formal and informal private and very
public social, political and communal ties and affiliations to
and with the Trial Court, for approximately 18 months before
Petitioner's arrest. At thils time, Her Honor acknowledged that
she knew Petitioner, and that she had conducted some research
into some rules regarding a possible recusal and then asked Trial
Counsel to conduct his own research intc the matter; and that if
he could find any reason as to why she should recuse herself, she

8
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would consider it then. Trial counsel railed to research the
jssue as instructed by the Trial Court. Petitioner feels that any
competent attorney would know that it is not in the best
interests of a criminal defendant to go before any elected
official in election season; especially when sald criminal
dafendant was not only being charged with particularly heinous
corimes but the criminal defendant has very public formal and
informal, social, communal, and even political ties to the Trial
Court: who is also a prominent and widely known flgure in the
communal, political and social arenas; as well as in the media”.
"Prial Counsel failed to consider these realities and try
everything he could, within reason, to get a different judge
appointed, he sabotaged this pPetitioner by further putting Judge
Wanker in an even tighter situation as well as the Petitioner’'s ;
as, in light of the listed facts alone, 1f this particular judge
gave any impression to the community that she was extending any
form of leniency toward Petitioner especially with the nature of
the criminal charges; it would have been detrimental to her
elected judicial position. Her Honor would have no other choice
but to make a point of not showing any favor. Hex Honor would
have immediately recognized the necessity of severing any
publicly perceived friendship or affiliation with Petitioner and
distance herself from Petiticner toc preserve her own reputation”.
Petitioner was the Trial Court's sponsor for membership
in the Kiwanis Club, attended the same public meetings and
functiens as Petitioner in Pahrump, Nevada, publicly endorsed the
Trial Court’'s first election, after her appointment as the
Distriet Judge, by placing an electoral campaign support ad for

9
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Her in a community event ad brochure, by placing election support
banners at a local event as well as verbal endorsements of her
during her campaign, attended fund ralsing events and working on
her campaign after hours in her chambers, preparing materials for
a not for profit rodeo event and manned an election booth at that
event in 2012 in support of the Trial Court’s election, was
helpful in supporting the Drug Court program by supplying service
volunteers for the Drug Court, participated with the Trial Court
in the Path of Hope Food Bank, Petitioner being Coordinater of
Community Operations at the New Hepe Fellowship Church Community
Food Bank.

Trial Counsel had a duty te Motion the Trial Court to
Recuse Herself for Bias based on the relationship between the
Petitioner and the Trial Court.

F. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO REVIEW THE FACTS OF THE CASE AND
DISCUSS ANY DEFENSES WITH PETITIONER.

Trial Counsel failled to review the facts of the case with
Petitioner and never discussed any defenses that Petitioner may
have had based on the facts of his case. The Petitioner spent the
entire time he was being prosecuted in the above-entitled matter
in the Nye County Jail in Pahrump. Trial Counsel rarely visited
the Petitioner and when he did visit he failed to discuss the
facte of the case or any defenses, Petltlioner was given an
ultimatum of take it or leave it in the jail priox to his entry
of plea and opted to take it because he had no knowledge of the
facts of his case or if any defenses existed.

G. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TC INFORM PETITIONER OF THE

CONSEQUENCES OF PLEADING GUILTY TO ATTEMPTED SEXUAL RSSAULT.
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Prior to the entry of a plea of GUILTY pursuant to ALEORD,
Trial Counsel failed to inform Petitioner that he could be
sentenced to a maximum sentence of 20 years with a minimum
sentence of 8 years. Petitioner understcod that he would only
have to serve a minimum 2 years bhefore he was allowed parcle and
Trial Counsel never informed him of the 40% Rule that governs
Sentensing in Nevada. Trial Counsel had a duty to inform his
elient that he could serve 8 years before being eligible for
parole and a maximum of 20 years.

H. TRIAI. COUNSEL FAILED TO REQUEST A CONTINUAMNCE OF
PETITIONER'S TRIAL DATE AFTER HE WAS TOLD TO DO 5C BY PETITIONER,
CAUSING PETITIONER TO ENTER A PLEA WHILE NOT OF SOUND MIND.

FPetitioner wrote letters te Trial Counssal reguesting that
his trial date be continued due to Petitioner’s declining health.
Petitioner’s reguest was ignored. Petitiocner ended up in the
hospital after having a stroke and was admitted for 2 days. After
being released the Petitioner was not of sound mind and in no
condition to be dealing with anything pertaining to his case at
that time. Trial Counsel showed up at the Detention Center with a
plea agreement for a 2 to 20 year prison sentence after a plea of
guilty. At that time Petitlioner was in no shape physically or
mentally, to deal with or discuss anything like that; and even
told Trial Counsel that, but Trial Counsel continued to pressure
Petitioner to review and discuss the deal. With absolutely no
energy to debate, Petitioner reluctantly agreed to the terms of
the deal. Petitioner cbjected to pleading Guilty and Trial
Counsel amended the Blea Agreement to reflect an Alford Plsa the

next day. Petitioner was not of sound mind when he signed the
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plea agreement and entered his Alford Plea while under the
effects of the stroke he suffered while in custody prior to entry
of his plea. Trial Counsel had a duty to continue Petitioner’s
trial and his plea hearing to allow Petitioner to recover from a
stroke he had suffered and regain his mental capacity.
&. CONMCLUSION

hs stated above, all of the above, and some standing alone,
add up to ineffective assistance of counsel which makes the
Petitioner's guilty plea unreliable in viclation of STRICELAND.
Counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of
reasonableness, and thelr errors were so severe that it caused
their client to plead guilty in violation of STRICKLAND since
there was a reascnable probability that he would have chosen to
go trial.

I ask this Court to set an evidentiary hearing in this
matter, and I believe that after sald hearing, this Court will

order a new trial. /
et

SUBMITTED this ~F3 day of September, 201

ciffg“; L‘-"‘éqﬁ“""‘-‘

DAVID H. NEELY IIL

Mev., Bar Mo, 0D3851

3520 E. Tropicana Ave, #D-1
Las Vegas, NV §9121
Attorney for Petitlioner

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an agent or employee of the above
attorney, and that on the 4§ha~day of September, 2015, I served
the above and foregoing AMENDED PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
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(POST-CONVICTION) by depositing a copy in the United States
mails, postage prepaid, addressed to the following persons or
parties at their last known addresses as indicated helow:

KIRKE VITTO, Esdg.

Chief Deputy District Attorney
P.0. Box 3%

Pahrump, NV 82041

EMPLOYEE OR AGENT Sl
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Casa No. PC-T7444 @PY : -
Dapt. No. 1 | FELED

DAVID H. NEELY III

Nevada Bar No. 003891 \ :
3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1 b waY -u i P - 25 g
Las Vegas, NV B9121

(702) 565-0716 HQ‘N@ME?CDE‘N
Attorney for Petitioner BYmDEPUTY

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE COF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

MICHAEL A. MACK, ) PETITIONER'S OPPOSITICN
) AND REPLY TO STATE'S ANSWER AND
Petitiocner, ) MOTIOCN TC DISMISS PETITION FOR

) WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Vs, (POST-CONVICTION)

)
)
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Respondent. )

)

Petiticner, MICHAEL A. MACK, by and through his Attorney,
DAVID H., NEELY I1III, Esg., hereby files the following Petiticner’s
Opposition and ﬁéply te State’s Rnswer aand Motion to Pismiss
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

1. FACTS

On May 14, 2013, an Information was filed charging
Petitioner with COUNT I: SEXUAL ASSAULT, in violation of HNRS
200.336, a Category A Felony, Count II: SEXUARL ASSAULT, in
violation of NR& 200.366, a Category A Felony, Count III:
PREVENTING OR DIZ3UADING VICTIM FROM REPORTING CRIME, COMMENCING
PROSECUTION OR CAUSING ARREST, in viclation of NRS 189,305, a
Category D Felony, Count IV: UNLAWFUL CONTACT WITH PERSON WITH
MENTAL ILLNE3S, in wiglation of NRS 207.260, a Gross Misdemeanor,
Count Vi ABUSE OF WULNERABLE PERSON, 1in wviglatiocn of WRS

200.5089, a Gross Misdemeanor, Count VI: SEXUBL ASSAULT, in
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violation of NRS 200.366, a Category A Felony, Count VII:
UNLAWFUL CCNTACT WITH PERSON WITH MENTAL ILLNESS, in wvioclation of
207.260, a Gross Misdemeancr, Count VIIT: ABUSE OF VULNERABLE

PERSON, in violation of NRS 200.509%9, a Gross Misdemeanor. On May

17, 2013, an Arraignment is held where the Petitioner pleads Not

Guilty to all charges contained in the Information. On September
20, 2013, Motion for OR Release is heard and denied by the Trial
Court. On October 23, 2013, a Motion to Sever is heard by the
Trial Court and is granted, On November 26. 2013, an Amended
Information id filed charging Petitioner with Count I: ATTEMPTED
SEXUAL ASSAULT, in violation of NRS 200.366, a Category B Felony.
On December 4, 2013, an Arraignment/Change of Plea is held but
continued due to unavailability of the Petitioner who i in the
hespital due to a stroke. On December 5, 2013, a Seconded Amended
Information is filed chaxging Petioner with Count I: ATTEMPTED
SEXUARL ASSAULT, in wioclation of NRS 200.366/193.330, a Category B
Felony.lOn December 6, 2013, another Arvaignment/Change of Plea
1 held where the Petitioner pleads Guilty pursuant to ALFORD to
Count I: ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULY, in violation of NRS
200.366/193.330, a Category B Felony. DOn March 21, 2014, a
Sentencing Hearing is held where the Petitioner is sentenced to
96/240 months in prison, register as a Sex Qffender with Lifetime
Supervision, Ordered to complete a Corrections based Sex Offense
Treatment Program, 345 days Credit Time Served. On February 19,
2015, the Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
{Post-Conviction) in the above entitled matter. On February 19,
2015, a Motion for Appointment of Counsel and Request for

Evidentiary Hearing was filed in the above-entitled matter. An
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Order Appointing David Neely, Esq. Was filed on February 23,
2015,
2. STANDARD UPON REVIEW OF PETITION
NRS 34.770 sets forth the Standard for this Court’s review
of the instant Petition and supporting documentation. NRS 34.770
states:

1. The judge or justice, upon review of the return,
answer and all supporting documents which are filed,
shall determine whether an evidentiary hearing is
regquired. B petiticner must not be discharged ot
committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2, If the judge or justice determines that the

petitioner is not entitled to relief and an evidentiary

hearing is not reguired, he shall dismiss the petitlon

without a hearing.

3, If the judge or justice determines that an

evidentiary hearing is required, he shall grant the

writ and shaill set a date for the hearing.

Where as here, the Petition sets forth specific allegations
in the Petition or accompanying brief which if true, would
entitle the petitiocner to an evidentiary hearing unless those

claims are repelled by the record. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev.

498, 686 P.2d 222, (1984); Marshall v. State, 110 Nev 1328, 885

.2d 603 (1994). As stated in Drake v, State, 108 Newv. 523, 836

P.2d 52 (1992):
The question in this case is not whether appellant proved

his counsel was ineffective, but whether appellant made
ailegations which entitled him to an evidentiary hearing. GSee

Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev. 498, 686 P.2d 222 (1984): Grondin v,
State, 97 Newv. 454, 634 P.2d 456 (1981). [emphasis added)]
3. INEFFECTIVENESS Of COUNSEL UNDER STRICELAND
To state a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel that

is sufficient to invalidate a judgment of conviction, & defendant

must demonstrate that counsel’s performance fell below an

3
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objective standard of reasonableness, and that counsel's errors
were so severe that they rendered the jury’s verdict unreliable.

Strickland v. Washipgton, 466 U.S5. 668 (1984); Warden v. Lyons,
100 Nev 430, 6832 P.2d 504 (1984), cert. denied, 471 U,3. 1004

(1985)

In Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.5.688, 692, 104 3.Ct.
2052, 20687, BL.Ed.2d 674 (1984} the United States Supreme Court
reaffirmed the “Actual or constructive denial of the assistance
of counsel altogether is legally presumed to result in
prejudice”. The Supreme Court further reaffirmed this ruling in
Pensen v, Qhio, 488 U.3, 75, 1092 s.ct. 346, 102 L.Ed.2d 300,
(1988) .

Counsel must adequately prepare the case at all levels,
including preliminary ﬁatters in Justice Court. Sanhorn v.
State, 107 Nev. 856, H22 P.24 11 (199l}.

Here, as in Marshall v. State, 110 Newv. 1328, 885 P.Z2d 603
(1994), the Petitioner alleged acts which, if true, entitle him
to relief as ineffective assistance ¢f counsel.

4. COUNSEL'S CONSTITUTIONALLY DEFECTIVE PERFORMANCE AFFECTED
THE OUTCOME OF THE PLEA PROCESS.

In United States V. Arvantis, 902 F.2d 489, 49%4-495 (7
Cir. III. 1990}, the Supreme Court stated:

T§ establish prejudice in the guilty plea context, a
defendant must show that ‘'‘counsel’s constituticnally defective
performance affected the outcome of the plea process. In other
words, the defendant must show that there is a reasonable
probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the defendant would

not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to
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trial’®. Hill . Lockhart, 474 U.S. 59, 108 5. Ct. 366, BB L.Ed.

2d 203 (1985).
The United States Supreme Court in Hill, 474 U.3., 58,

stated that,“the two part Strickland v. Washington test applies

to challenges to guilty pleas on ineffectlive assistance of
counsel. In the context of guilty pleas, the first half of the
Strickland v. Washington test is nothing more than a restatement
of the standard of attorney compstence already set forth... The
second, o©or prejudice requirement, on the c¢other hand, focuses on
whether counsel’s constitutionally ineffective performance
affected the outcome of the plea process. In other words, in
crder to satisfy the prejudice requirement, the defendant must
show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for
counsael’s errgrsg, he would have insisted on going te trial.

In many guilty plea cases, the “prejudice” inguiry will
closely resemble the inguiry engaged in by courts reviewing
ineffective-assistance challenges to convictions cbtained through
a trial, For example, where the alleged error of counsel is a
failure to investigate or discover potentially exculpatory
evidence, the determination whether the srror “prejudiced” the
defendant by causing him to plead guilty rather than go to trial
will depend on the likelihood that discovery of the evidence
would have led counsel to change his recommendation as to the
plea. This assessment, in turn, will depend in large part on a
prediction whether the evidence likely would have changed the
outcome of the trial. Hill, 474 U.S5. 58.

When a petitioner alleges ineffective assistance of

counsel, he must establish the factual allegations which form the
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basis for his ¢laim of ineffective assistance by a preponderance

of the evidence. Next, as stated in STRICKLAND, the petitioner

must establish that those facts show counsel’s performance fell
below a standard of objective reascnableness, and finally the
petitioner must establish prejudice by showing a reasonable that,
but for counsel’s deficient performance, the outcome would have

been different. Means v. Stzte of Nevada, 120 Nev. 1001, 103 P.3d
25 (2004},

In Hodges v. State, 119 Nev. 479, 4B2 (Nev.2003), the
Nevada Supreme Court stated:

MRS 34.810(1) (a) provides that a court shall dismiss a
post-conviction habeas petition challenging a conviction based on
a guilty plea unless the petition alleges ‘that the plea was
inveluntary or unknowingly entered without effective assistance
of counsel.' A petiticner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing

only if he supports his claims with specific allegations that 1f

true would entitle him to relief. The petiticoner is not entitled
to an evidentiary hearing if his claims are belied or repelled by
the record.

Petitioner and his counsel are well aware of the provisions
of the above-mentioned NRS 34.810(2) and deny that the following
six (6) instances of Ineffective Assistance of Counsel falil teo
demonstrate a basis of relief.

5. INSTANCES OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OR COUNSEL

Petitioner alleges that his attorney has fallen below that
standard in the following six {6) instances which if, taken on
their own may not be enough to render the Petitioner’s guilty

plea unreliable but when taken tougether, this attorney believes,

0N

0388




10
11
12
13
14
15

17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
2%
26
27
28

and I hope this Court agrees, that taken together, the
Petitioner’s guilty plea is unreliable. The six (6) instances
ére as follows:

INVESTIGATION

A. TRIAL COUNSEL’S INVESTIGATOR TO FAILED 1O COWDUCT AN
EFFECTIVE INVESTIGATION OF THE CASE PRIOR TO THE ENTRY OF
PETITIONER'S PLEA OQF GUILTY,

Trial Counsel retained an investigator but his investigator
failed to conduct an effective investigation of the Petitioner’s
case., The investigator never interviewed the alleged victim’s
husbands from her 4 previous marriages as to the mental capacity
of the alleged wvictim. The investigator never interviewed any of
the friends or acquaintances of the alleged victim as to the
mental capacity of the alleged victim. The investigator never
interviewed the Petiticoner’s daughter as to her thoughts as to
the mental capacity of her aunt, The mental capacity of the
alleged victim was never properly investigated to show that the
alleged victim was not a “person with mental illness” as alleged
in Count IV and Count VII nor was she a “vulnerable person” as
alleged in Count V and Count VIII in the Information. The
investigator never attempted to track down any of the alleged
victim’s history of mental illness. The likelihood of the
Petitioner having a defense that would work at trial is highly
unlikely with respect to Count’s IV and Count VII and Count V and

Count VIII.

In the Supreme Court Case of Sanborn v. State, 107 Nev. 399,

812 p.2d 1279. 1283. the Court held:

Focusing on counsel's performance as a whole, and with due
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regard for the strong presumption of effective assistance
accorded counsel by this court and > Strickland, we hold
that Sanborn's representation indeed fell below an objective
standard of reasonableness. Trial counsel did not
adequately perform pretrial investigation, falled te pursue

avidence supportive of a claim of self-defense, and failed

to explore allegations of the victim's propensity towards

violenca. Thus, he "was not functioning as the 'sounsel!
guaranteed the defendant by the Sixth Amendment." >

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S.Ct. at 2064,

This was an example of the poor pre-trial investigation, or
the lack thereof, done by the defense prior to trial that led
their client to plsad guilty. Counsel must prepare the case at
all levels, including preliminary matters in Justice Court.
Sanborn v. State, 107 New. 886, 822 P.2d. 11 (1881). Counsel’s
performance fell below an objective standard of reascnableness,
and their errors were so severe that 1t caused their client te
plead guilty in vioclation of STRICKLAND since there was a
reasonable-probability that he would have chosen to ¢go To trial.

PLEA HEARING

B. TRIAL COUNSEL CAUSED HIS CLIENT TO ENTER A GUILTY PLEA

WHILE THE PETITIONER WAS SUFFERING THE EFFECTS OF A STROKE.

Trial Counsel knew that the Petitloner had just been

released from the hospital as the result of a stroke he suffered

while in the jail but still went forward with the Arraignment and

subsequent Guilty Plea pursuant to ALFORD when he was aware that

his client had just been released from the hospital as the result

of a stroke and was still in recovery. Petitioner was not of
sound mind at the time of entry of his plea and Trial Counsel
should not have allowed his client to plead Guilty until

petitioner had regained his sound mind to enter a plea of Guilty

pursuant te BLEORD. Petitioner reguested a continuance but was
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told by Trial Counsel to take the deal. Trial Counsel had a duty
to request an Mental Competency Evaluation after the Petitioner
suffered a stroke to ensure that at the time of entry of plea he
was of sound mind.

Counsel’'s performance fell below an cbjective standard of
reascnableness, and their errors were so savere that it caused
their elient te plead guilty in viclation of STRICKLAND since
there was a reasonable probability that he would have chosen to
go to trial.

SEX OFFENDER STATUS

C. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TQ INFORM PETITIONER THE
CONSEQUENCES OF BEING A TIER III SEX OFFENDER PRIOR TO ENTRY OF
PLEA.

Trial Counsel failed to advise the Petitioner what it meant
to be a Tier I1I 8ex Offender prior to entry of his plea.
Petitioner was originally told that he would be a Tier II Sex
Qffender prior to discovering at the Arraignment that he was
going to be a Tier III Sex Offender. Petitioner would not have
entered a plea of Guilty to an offense that reguired Tier III Sex
Offender status if he had understood the conseqguences.

Counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of
reasonableness, and their error’s were so severe that 1t caused
their client to plead guilty in violation of ZTRICHKLAND since
there was a reasonable probability that Hhe would have chosen to
go to trial.

PRETRIAL PREPARATION

D. TRIAL COUNSEL FATLED TO REVIEW THE FACTS OF THE CASE AND

DISCUSS ANY DEFENSES WITH PETITIONER.
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Trial Counsel failed to review the facts of the case with
Petitioner and never discussed any defenses that Petitioner may
have had based on the facts of his case. The Petitioner spent the
entire time he was being presecuted in the above-—entitled matter
in the Nye County Jail in Pahrump. Trial Counsel rarely visited
the Petitioner and when he did visit he failed to discuss the
facts of the case or any defenses. Petitioner was given an
ultimatum of take it or leave it in the jail priocr to his entry
of plea and opted to take it because he had nc knowledge of the
facts of his case or if any defenses existed.

Counsel’s performance fell pelow an objective standard of
reascnableness, and thelr errors were so severe that 1t caused
their client to plead guilty in wvioclation of STRICKLAND since
there was a reasonable probability that he would have chosen to
go to trial.

E. TRIAL COUNSEIL FAILED TO INFORM PETITIONER OF THE
CONSEQUENCES OF PLEADING GUILTY TC ATTEMPTED SEXUAL ASSAULT.

Prior to the entry of a plea of GUILTY pursuant to ALFORD,
Trial Counsel falled to inform Petitioner that he could be
sentenced to a maximum sentence of 20 years with a minimum
sentence of 8 years, Petitioner understood that he would only
have to serve a minimum 2 years before he was allowed parole and
Trial Counsel never informed him of the 40% Rule that governs
Sentencing in Nevada. Trial Counsel had a duty to inform his
client that he could serve B years before being eligible for
parole and a maximum of 20 years.

Counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of

reasonableness, and their errors were so severe it caused their
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client to plead Guilty in violation of STRICKLAND since there was
s reasonable probability he would have chosen to go to trial.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

F. TRIAL COUNSEL HAD A CONFLICT OF INTEREST DURING HIS
REPRESENTATION OF THE PETITIONER WHICH HE NEVER DISCLOSED TO
FETITIONER.

Representation of a criminal defendant entails certain baslc
duties. Counsel’s function is to assist the defendant, and hence
counsel owes the client a duty of loyalty, a duty to avoid

conflicts of interest. See Cuyler v. Sullivan, supra 446 U.S., at

348, 90 5.Ct., at 1717. From the counsel’s furiction as.assistant
to the defendant derive the overarching duty to advocate the
defendant’s cause and the more particular duties to censult with
the defendant on important decislons and teo keep the defendant
informed of important developments in the course of the
prosecution. Counsel alse has a duty to bring to bear guch skill
and knowledge as will render the trial a reliable adversarial
testing process. See Powell w. Alabama, 287 U.S5., at 68-69, B3

§,0t., at 63-64. Strickland v. Washington, 466 0.3, 668, 104

S.Ct., 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984).

One type of actual ineffectiveness ¢laim warrants a similar,
though more limited, presumption of prejudice. In Cuvler v.
sullivan, 446 U.8.,, at 345-350, 100 5.Ct., at 1716=171%9, the
Court held that prejudice is presumed when counsel is burdened by
an actual conflict of interest., In these circumstances, counsel
breaches the duty of loyalty, perhaps the most basic of counsel’s
duties. Moreover, it is difficult to measure the precise esffect

on the defense of representation corrupted by conflicting

11
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interests. Given the obligation of counsel to aveid conflicts Df.
interest and the ability of trial courts tc make early inguiry in
certain situations likely to give rise to conflicts, see, €.9.
Fed. Rule Crim. Proc. 44®, it is reasonable for the criminal
justice system to maintain a fairly rigid rule of presumed
prejudice for conflicts of interest. Even so, the rule is not
gquite the per se rule of prejudice that exists for the 3ixth
Amendment claims mentioned above. Prejudice is presumed only if
the defendant demonstrates that counsel “actively represented
conflicting interests” and that “an conflict of interest
adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.” Cuvler v, Sullivan,
supra, 446 U.S8., at 350, 348, 100 8, ¢, at 1719, 1718,
Strickland v, Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 5. Ct. 2052, B0 L,
Ed. 2d 674 (1984).

Trial Counsel had negotiated the terms of his contract to
perform public defender services in Nye County with the Nys
County District Attorney. In fact, Trial Counsel negotlated the
termination of his previcus contract that his firm, Gibscn and
Kuehn, had in effect as the Nye County Public Defender with the
Nye County District Attorney. The Nye County District Attorney
represented Trial Counsel at two separate hearings before the Nye
County Board of County Commissioners as an advocate and as
counsel to Trial Counsel in his bid to be awarded a contract as
public Defender after the terminaticn eof his firm’s contract as
the Nye County Public Defender. Rfter being awarded a contract to
perform public defender services, the Nye County District
attorney assumed control of the public defender contractls and was
Trial Counsel’s supervisor.

12
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Trial Counsel never discleosed this relationship to
Petitioner during his representation. Petitioner had a right to
counsel that was independent of the District Atteorney who was

prosecuting him. In Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.3., at 345-350, 100

3. Ct., at 1716-1719%, the Court held that prejudice is presumed
when counsel is burdened by an actual conflict of interest which
15 present in this case. In those circumstances, counsel breaches
the duty of loyalty, perhaps the most basic of counsel’s dutiss,
Trial Counsel has breachedlhis duty of loyalty by negetiating his
contract toe perform public defender services with the Nye County
District Rttorney and by working under the supervisicn of the Nye
County District Attorney after that contract was obtained.

Prejudice is presumed only if the Petitioner demonstrates
that counsel “actively represented conflicting interests” which
is present since Trial Counsel owed his continued employment to
serving the interests of the Nye County District Attorney. This
actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s
performance since the Petitioner received representation from
Trial Counsel that the Nye County District Attorney felt he was
entitled to, not what he deserved.

The Sixth Amendment recognizes the right tce the assistance
of counsel because it envisions counsel’s playing a role that is
critical to the ability of the adversarial system teo produce ijust
results. Strickland v, Washington, 466 U,.S. 668, 104 S, Ct., 2052,
80 L, Ed.2d 674, (1984}, There was not an adversarial system
present in Nye County at this time and as a result there were no
Just results.

7. CONCLUSION

13 '
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As stated abowe, all of the above, and some standing alone,
add up to ineffective assistance of counsel which makes the
Petitioner’s guilty plea unreliable in viclation of STIRICKELAND.
Counsel’s performance fell below an objective standard of
reasonableness, and their errors were so severe that it caused
their client to plead guilty in wviolation of STRICKLAND since
there was a reasonable probability that he would have chosen to
go trial.

This case involves a serious miscarriage of justice as the
result of the actions of Trial Counsel and the Nye County
District Attorney.

I ask this Court to deny State’s Motion to Dismiss Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Convictilon) and set an

Evidentiary Hearing in this matter,.

LN
r i

SUBMITTED this day of May,

“CAVID Ao NEELY TII S —.
Nev. Bar No. 003891 ~

3520 E. Tropicana Ave, #D-1
Las Vegas, NV 89121

Bttorney for Petitioner

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an asgent or employee of the above
attorney, and that on the _ji%pﬂay of May, 2016, I served the
above and foregoing PETITIONER'S OQPPOSITION AND REPLY TO STATE'S
ANSWER AND MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
POST-CONVICTION by depositing a cepy in the United States mails,

postage prepaid, addressed to the following persons or parties at

14
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their last known addresses as indicated below:

KIRK VITTO, Esq. .
Chief Deputy District Attorney "o
P.O. Box 39 5
Pahrump, NV 88041
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Case No. PC7444A

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
Petitioner,
-y- ORDER FOR HEARING ON WRIT
OF HABEAS CORP.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

/

The hearing on the Post Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is set for
February 21, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the Pahrump District Court in Pahrump, Nevada. Counsel for

the Defendant shall make the necessary arrangements to have the Defendant present.

A, <l

~DISTRICT JUDGE

DATED this | S'&diy of November 2017,
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CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE

2
3 The undersigned hereby certifies that on the al.r) day of November, 2017 she
4] ailed (or hand delivered) copies of the foregoing ORDER to the following:
D
David Neely Esq.
61 3520 E. Tropicana Ave # D1
. Las Vegas, Nv. 89121
8 Nye County District Attorney's Office
Tonopah, Nv. 89049
9
=
£, 10 ﬂ PR I 4
- GERIE CLIFFORD\Secretary to
<3 DISTRICT JUDGE
Es 12
Az
; z 13
¢ 8
a 3 14
-~ 3
E i 15
" 16

0399




5 Dapt. No. 1 FIFTHJUD!clnanmmcoum
DAVID H. NEELY III, ESQ. JAN 2 § 2018
3 || Nevada State Bar No. 003891 '
3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1 “;E_“OUNWBEPUTYGLER«
4 | Las Vegas, NV 89121 Puw——'—ﬁmm
(702) 565-0716 DEBRA
5§ Attorney for Petiticoner
6
7 IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRTCT COURT OF THE
8 STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
9 | MICHAEL A. MACK,
10 FPetitioner, ORDER TO TRANSPORT PRISONER
TO COURT FOR HEARING
11 vs.

12 § STATE OF NEVADA,

S e S Mt Vst el Sl '

13 Respondant,
14

Upon ex parte application of the Defendant, Michael A. Mack,
' by and through his attorney, David H. Neely III, Esq., and the
16‘ Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file herein,
! being fully advised in the premises, pursuant to NRS 209.274, and
H2 good cause appearing therefor,
o THIS COURT FINDS that Michael A. Mack, Prisoner No. 1117749,
20 «Lovelock Correcticnal Center, Lovelock, Nevada, is a necessary
= and material witness in the Evidentiary Hearing, to be held in
22 Pahrump, Nye County on February 21, 2018 at 9:00 A.M.
<2 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Michael A. Mack, Prisoner No.
2 1117749, be transported, together with all personal effects,
“ documents and papers pertinent to the above case, from the
26 Lovelock Correctional Center in Lovelock, Nevada, to the Nye
Z: County Courthouse, 1520 East Basin Ave., Pahrump, Nevada, in

0400
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order to allow said Priscner to appear and give testimony at the

Evidentiary Hearing in the above captioned matter set for

February 21, 2018 at 9:00 A.M.

1

2

3

4 DATED this l.*Fﬁhy of January, 2018.
5

6

7

8
) RESEECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

Nevw. Bar No. ﬁGBBBl
| 141 S. Frontage Road, Ste. D-1
Las Vegas, NV 89121
| Attorney for Petitioner
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FILED

FIFTH SUDICIAL DISTRICT
JuL 23
Case No, PC7444A 2018
Nye County Clerk
_Debra L. Melott Deputy
IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
Petitioner,
M ORDER FOR HEARING ON WRIT
OF HABEAS CORPUS
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.
/
The hearing on the Post Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus is set for August

29, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. in the Pahrump District Court in Pahrump, Nevada. Counsel for the

Defendant shall make the necessary arrangements to have the Defendant present.

ésmm‘ JUDGE

{7
DATED this Ei day of July 2018,
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TIFICATION OF VICE
The undersigned hereby certifies that on the 7 3" day of July, 2018 she mailed (or
hand delivered) copies of the foregoing ORDER to the following:
David Neely Esq.
3520 E. Tropicana Ave # D1
Las Vegas, Nv. 89121

Nye County District Attorney’s Office

Pahrump, Nv, 89060 a@
5 s ]

GERIE CLIFFORD, Secretary to
DISTRICT JUDGE
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CASE NC. PC~7444h
DEPT. NO. 1

FILED

FIFTH JUDIGIAL PISTRIGT COURT
DAVID H. NEELY III, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No, 003891 AUG ~ 2 2018
3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1 Ny
Las Vegas, NV 89121 E§°W“TDEmnvm£RK
(702) 565-0716 ETT
Attorney for Petitioner

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

MICHAEYL, ALLEN MACK,

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR

ORDER TO TRANSPORT PRISONER

TO COURT FOR EVIDENTIARY
HEARING

Petitioner,

va.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

Petitioner, MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, by and through his
attorney, DAVID H, NEELY III, hereby the following ex parte
application to this Court for an Order that the Petitioner,
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, Priscner #1117749 , be transported from the
Lovelock Correctional Center, in Lovelock, Nevada, to the tye
County Courtheouse, 1520 E. Basin Ave., Pahrump, Nevada, in order
toc allow said Petiticoner to appear at the evidentiary hearing in
the above capticned matter set for August 22, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.

Good cause exlists for an ex parte ﬁature of this
application, since the prisoner 1s currently in the custedy of
the Nevada Department of Corrections. Petitioner and his attorney
cannot reasonably proceed to prepare for the evidentiary hearing

without an immediate order.

SUBMITTED this 3 "‘%ay of July, 2018.
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Nev. Bar No. @ .

3520 East Tropi&smd Ave., D-1
Las Vegas, NV 8%121
Attorney for

Petiticner

DECLARATION OF DAVID H. NEELY IIX

STATE CF NEVADA ¥
) 88
CQUNTY OF CLARK |

I, DAVID H, MEELY, IIT, Esq., do solemnly swear under
penalty of perjury, pursuant to NRS 53,045, that the assertions
of the following Declaration hereinbelow are true:

1. I am the attorney for the Petiticner and licensed to
practice law in the State of Nevada. I can testify as to all
matters herein on personal knowledge, except for those matters, I
believe them true after reasonable investigation.

2. I am competent to testify to all matters herein on
personal knowledge, except as to those matters stated on
information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to
be true after diligent investigation.

i The above Application should be considered and granted
by this Court ex parte, and outside the normal course for motions
because the normal subpoena process is not applicable to
prisoners given that they are incarcerated.

T declare under penalty of perjury by virtue of the laws of
the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

EXECUTED on this 3! day of July, 201s.

2 0405




10
11
12
13
14
15
leé
17
1B
18
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

R

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MATL

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an agent or employee of the above
attorney, and that on the ii¢§éy of August, 2018, I served the
above and foregoing EX PARTE AFPPLICATION FOR ORDER TRANSPORTING
PRISONER by depositing a copy in the United States mails, postage
prepaid, addressed to the following persons or parties at their
last known addresses as indicated below:
ANGELA BELLO, Esg.
Nye County District Attorney

P.O. Box 593
Tonopah, Nevada 8504%

EMPOYE:E OR: AQENT. T
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Case No. PC-7444A
Dept. No. 1
FILEB

DAVID H, NEELY III, ESQ,. IﬁFTH]LEHCLELIﬁSTRﬂET

Nevada State Bar No. 003891 .

3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1 B
Las Vegas, NV 89121 ' AlG ~ 62018
(702) 565~0716

Attorney for Petitioner

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NWYE

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, )

ty Clerk ‘
Deputy

} i
R e e S R Pﬁtittﬁﬁﬁ#}” ) TORDER TO TRANSPORT PRISONER

vs.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

el e

TCO COURT FOR HEARING

ﬁpon ex parte application of the Petitioner, MICHAEL ALLEN

MACK, by and through his attorney, DAVID H. NEELY III,

Esg., and

the Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file

herein, being fully advised in the premises, pursuant toc NRS .

209.274, and good cause appearing therefor,

THIS COURT FINDS that MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, Priscner No,

1117749, Lovelock Correcticnal Center, Lovelock, Nevada, is a

necessary and material party in the evidentiary hearing, to be

held in Pahrump, Nye County, Nevada on Rugust 29, 2018

leo

at 1:30

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, Prisoner No.

1117749, be transported, together with all personal effects,

documents and papers pertinent to the above case, from

the

Lovelock Correctional Center in Lovelock, Nevada, to the Nye

County Courthouse, 1520 East Basin Ave,'#IDE, Pahrump,

Nevada, in

0407




1|l order to allow sald Prisoner to appear and give testimony at the
2 || evidentiary hearing in the above captioned matter set for 29th
3 | day of August, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.
4 DATED this jrp_a'day of August, 2018.
; .
6 DI 1CT JUDGE
7
B8
9 | RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:
10 %‘?
11 Ledto )y T
. NEELG/TIT4
12 | Nev. Bar No. 00389 .
3520 East TropicanmT Ave., Ste. D-1
13 | Las Vegas, NV 89121
Attorney for Petitioner

14
15 :

document to which this certificate is attached
16 Thigamllu_ma and corract copy! f_‘t['lE_l‘_ ariginal

on file ang-f re IR
= Sandra L. Viarihe, cark of 1o ifth Judicial
18 G - ' Y f"' w@‘ % ':E'.
19 | But A o y ol the documer

kit 7O
20 N
21 £
22 |
23
24
25
26
27
28 |
2
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CASE NO. PC 74443

DEPT NO. 1

IN AND FOR THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

COURTY QF NYE, STATE OF NEVADA

MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
Petitioner, TRANSCRIPT QF PROCEEDINGS

VE. WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

e e

BEFORE THE HONORABLE KIMBERLY WANKER,
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
1520 EAST BASIN AVENUE, PAHRUMP, NEVADA 89060

ON WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018

T COPRY

For the Respondent: Kirk Vitto, Es=sqg.

APPEARANCES:
Chief Nye County Deputy District
Attorney

For the Petitioner: David H. Neely III, Esd.

Reported By: Tracy A. Manning, CCR No. 785
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WITNESSES FOR THE PETITIONER

THOMAS GIEBSON
Direct Examination by Mr. HNe
Cross—-Examination by Mr. Vit

Redirect Examination by MIr.

EXHIEB

ely
to

Neely

T T8

PREITIONER'S EXHIBITS

MARKED

PAGE
&
22
32
ADMITTED

(No exhibits were marked or admitted by the

petitioner or the State.)
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WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 2%, 2018
—=—=plg-==-

THE CQURT: Good afternocn, Mr. Mack. How
are you today?

THE DEFENDANT: Good afternoon. I'm doing
pretty good, thank you.

THE COURT: Good. This is the time and
place set for a hearing on the writ of habeas
corpus. I sebt it for hearing.

Basically, Mr. Mack filed a writ of habeas
corpus and a supplemental writ of hakbeas corpus,
alleging ineffective assistance of counsel. And
basically, there wvere 11 bases for that.

The f£irst was that the trial court's
investigator -- IL'm sorry, trial counsel's
investigator failed to conduct an effective
investigation ¢f the case prior to the entry of
Mr., Mack's plea of guilty.

Second, trial counsel caused his client to
enter a plea of gullity while the -- while Mr. Mack
was suffering froem the efﬁects of a stroke.

Third, trial counsel failed to inform
Mr. Mack of the conseguences of being a Tier III sex
offender prior to entry of plea.

Four, trial counsel failed to review the
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facts of the case and discuss any defenses with
Mr. Mack.

Five, trial counsel failed to inform
Mr. Mack of the consequences of pleading guilty to
attempted sexual assault. And I will note he did
not plead guilty but guilty pursuant to Alford.

gix, trial counsel had a conflict of
interest during his representation of Mr. Mack which
he never disclosed to petitioner, which is Mr, Mack.

Seven, trial counsel failed to request &
continuance of Mr. Mack's trial date after he was
told to do so by Mr. Mack, causing Mr. Mack to enter
a plea while not of sound mind.

Eight, trial counsel failed to inform
Mr. Mack that the informatlon gbtained during the
psychosexual examination could be used against him
at sentencing.

Nine, trial counsel failed to use relevant
information in his investigation previded Dby
Mr. Mack.

Ten, trial counsel failed to make -- t©
motisn to have Mr. Mack's statements supressed that
were made to the State at. the time of arrest.

And eleven, trial counsel failed To move

to have the trial court judge recuse herself from

0412



10
11
12
13

14

16
17
18

19

Mr. Mack's case for bilas.

@g Mr. Neely, have I covered all of the
bases for --

MR, NEELY: Well, yeah, those were --— many
sf those were hlis and some were mine.

THE COURT: .ﬁll right, all rigﬁt. But
that would be the sumland substancse -~

MR. NEELY: Yes, ma'am, that would be
complete for sure.

THE COURT: All right, okay. This is your
writ of habeas corpus, so let me hear -- and I
thoroughly examined the file and the trial file
before coming in today, so I think I'm up to speed.

MR. NEELY: Okay. We would call
Mr. Gibson, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

THOMAS GIBSON,
having peen duly sworn

was examined and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Mr. Gibson, please be seated.
Would you please state and spell your first and last
name for the court reporter?

THE WITNESS: Thomas Gibson, G-i-b-s-o-m.
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THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Gibson.
Mr. Neely, you may proceed.
MRE. NEELY: Thank you, Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. NEELY:

g Mr. Gibson, were you appointed to
represent Mr. Mack?

L. Yes, 1 was.

0. And my notes indicate the date you were
appointed was approximately 4-16-2013; is that youx
recollection, To07?

A. That sounds correct.

Q. .Okay. and at that time, were ¥you &
contract attorney with Nye County to provide
indigent defense?

A, I was.

Q. Okay. And you were appointed in the
Pahrump Justice Court?

A. My recollectlion, yes.

Q. Okay. And when you got the case, Mr. Mack
was facing numerous Category A felonies?

A. Yes.

Q. and, in fact, they were sexual assault
Category A feloniles, weren't they?

L, Correct.
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(9 And wasn't it your usual practice to

retain an investigater in such a serious case?

A, Not always. 1t depends. If it looks like
the case is going to trial, of course. We, from the
very beginning, were trying to find a -- trying to

negotiate the matter because of the strength of the
case against the defendant.

Q. And did you hire an investigator in the
matter?

B. 1 dgid not,

Q. and wasn't the alleged victim's mental

capacity an issue in the case?

L. Yas.

Qs And at the preliminary hearing, I think
you raised that issue with -- with the alleged
victim.

n. 1 did.

2. And I think you also raised that issue

with Susan Kallaher from the State of Nevada's
rehabilitation services?

A. That, I don't -- I don't recall.

Q. So at that time you didn't have your
investigator interview any of the alleged victim's
four ex-husbands as to her mental capacity?

A, I did not.
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0. And -- so you didn't have an inveztigator,
so I take it you didn't interview any of the alleged

victim's friends or acguaintances as to her mental

capacity?
A. No.
Q. And both vou and =-- like we spoke earlier,

poth you and Mr. Gensler, who was representing the

so-defendant, cross examined Susan Kallaher for the

State?

A, T don't recall that. But it -- it's been
a while.

Q. and during the preliminary hearing,
when -- T don't know if you recall, Mr. Gensler had

Ms. Kallaher admit that the alleged victim had a
long history of creating lies, fabrications and
stories?

A, Yes, I remember that.

Q. And you didn't feollow up with an
investigator yourself on any -- upon any of those
allegations?

A. Na.

Q. Okay. ©On -- looks like on December the
4th an arraignment was held, but it was canceled due
to an illness Mr. Mack had suffered?

A. I can't -- I gouldn't hear you.
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Q. There was an arraignment held on 12-4 1n
the District Court here, but it was canceled.

Al I have no independent recollection of
that.

Q. Okay. So if I were -- if I told you that
it was canceled because Mr. Mack had been taken to
the hospital due to a strocke, would you remember
that?

. T do remember him having some medical
lssues.

O Okay. And then two days later on 12-6; 1f
you remember another arraignment was held where
Mr. Mack pled guilty to the Count T of attempted
sexual assault?

Al Yes.

fs Were you aware that Mr. Mack had just been
released from the hospital, a result of a stroke,
and was 1in recovery?

A, T recall he was released from the hogpital
and had medical issues. To the extent what it was,

T don't remember.

Q. ind did Mr. Mack ask you to continue the
arralgnment?

E, I don't remember that.

0. My. Mack alleges that you told him to take
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the deal.

A. I'm sorry?

. Mr. Mack alleges that you told him to take
the deal.
A. I don't remember the specific language

between us tweo, but I do recall that after

reading -- after the preliminary heaying and reading
the discovery on file. And then there was another
witness, I believe, and I can't recall -- another
alleged victim was going €O materialize or —= I got
information on that. And based on the totality, I
told him the best option -- and this is my -- I'm
paraphrasing, but the best cpticon he had was to try
to minimize his exposure rather than run the risk of
getting, you know, a greater sentence.

Q. Thank you. BAnd after -— after you heard
he had been 111, had a stroke, you didn't ask for a
competency evaluation as a result of his stroke?

2. He was communicating with me, so 1 saw no
reason for it. And based on my history with the -=
with Lake's Crossing and they would find even people
that are absolutely raving blathering lunatics to be
competent, it doesn't -- I only play that card when
it's absolutely necessary.

Q. T understand. And it appears that
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Mr. Mack's arraignment, that the -- actually, the
District Court said that she understood he had been
ander the weather during the arraignment; do you
remember the Court ==

A. I don't remember that.

Qs and I think, if vou rémember, the Court
ssked -- he asked the Court if he could sit down and
she agreea?

A. I don't recall that.

Q. And do you recall she allowed him to sit
during the proceedings?

A. Same answer.

Q. Okay. And may I ask you, when you
discussed the plea memorandum with Mr. Mack, you
told him at that point he was going to be a Tier Il
sex offender?

E. We were given information at the time
that -- whatever I told him it was, I, IT, cr III.
ind then later on they changed the law, or the law
was changed, and it was retroactive. And there's —=
but that's true.

Q. You were wrong about his tier level,
weren't you?

A. Yes,

0. Bng, in fact, he was subject to Tier TTE
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registration, wasn't he?

A. I found that out after the fact, yes. I
mean, after we had already entered our plea.

Q. And you had to amend the plea memorandum
to reflect Tier IIIL, didn't you?

A. That did -- again, up to that point,
though, we were thought =-- we wWere ~=' 1 was -—- we
were going under the assumptlon il was geing te be a
IT.

18 When you talked to him in the jail, you

told him he was going to be Tier IT after he took

the plea.
A. That was my understanding.
Q. and was -— and Mr. Mack was surprised Eo

find out he was going to be a Tier III, wasn't he?
A, He was disappointed. I den't know how

surprised he was.

1 Did you review the facts of the case with
Mr, Mack?

A, Oh, yeah.

Q. And did you discuss any defenses that were

available to him?
A, Yes.
Q. And approximately how many times did you

visit him in the jail?
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a. I don't know. I don't remember. More
than one, I know that. And more than a few.

3 Did you give Mr. Mack an ultimatum of take
it or leave it in the jail after discussing his plea
bargain?

A. That's not my style. I don't recall doing
that. I don't think I did that.

Q. And did you discuss the range of
punishments that was possible pursuant te his guilty
plea with Mr. Mack?

A, Yes.

Yy 2nd did you discuss the 40 percent rule
with Mr. Mack?

B. I don't recall if I discussed the
40 percent rule.

Q. Did -- did you tell Mr. Mack he'd be
facing a maximum sentence of 20 years and a minimum
sentence of eight years prior to entering his plea?

B, Tf that were the parameters. Again, I
don't have everything in front of me. BEut if that
was what was in the plea agreement, then I would
have gone over that with him in detail.

a. pid you inform Mr. Mack that he would only
be facing a minimum two-year sentence?

A- NO“
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Q. And a couple more guestions here.

Sc pricr to your contract as an individual
contractor, your prior firm Gibson & Kuehn had the
public defender contract, didn't 1t?

A. Yes.

Q2. And your pricr firm, Gibson & Kuehn began
to kind of break apart due to Mr. Kuehn's legal and
ethical issues?

A Yes.

Q. And it was a result of the Fellini (ph)
case, which is a case everybody heard about, the cow
getting hit and he got in a lot of trouble with the

State bar.

B, Yeah. I think he was disbarred, actually.
Q. He actuwally became disbarred. And had it
become apparent that your -- Mr. Kuehn could lose

his license at one point?

A. Repeat?

¥, Did it become apparent to you when you
were still his partner that he could lose his
licensge?

. Tt -- that was an issue. 1 felt that
based on the circumstances, that he -- he could lose
his license, at the very minimum being suspended.

And Mr. Earnest disagreed with me. He said Harry
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wonld just get a slap on the wrist based on his

research. BAnd Harry ran with that.

Q. And did you consider dissolving your law
firm?

A. Did I what?

g. Consider dissolving Gibson & Kuehn?

a4, It's ne longer in existence.

Q. 8¢ it actually did dissolve.

A. No, we actually haven't closed it up yet,
because there's still -- I haven't -- there's tax
issues and other things that were -- it's in the
process. But --

Q. That's not relevant. We're not going to

get into that.

A. It's a slow -- it's a slow death.

Q. I understand. Now, did you approach the
then DA, Brian Kunzi, about taking over the public
defender contract you had?

A. I think, if I recall, Mr. Earnest and
Mr. Kuehn explained to me that they had been in
conversations with Mr. Kunzi about this -- the new
Humboldt plan that they wanted to get into. And we
ware told -- well, ves.

Q. Okay. And what was your understanding of

the offer Mr. Kunzi made to you? I kpow you just
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referred it as a Humbelt =--

A. Take it or leave it. If we -- if we
agreed to go aleng with —-- and opt out of our
contract early and take -- and submit to the

Humboldt plan, that we would be given a contract by
the county that he =-- wasn't guaranteed, but he
would pe urging the county commission to approve the
plan. BAnd that we would be the first three
contracts that would be approved. If we -- 1f I --
any one of us did not agree with it, then there
would be no promises.

Q. Was it a take it or leave it kind of a
deal?

A, Absolutely. That's how I took it.

0. And was your understanding that if you
fought him you wouldn't get a contract?

A. My understanding if I fought him, that is
a possibility I wouldn't have gotten the contract.
Because I was led to believe that he had great

influence over the commlissioners.

o. And who drafted the contracts?

A, Kunzl.

L And who sent the contracts out?

A. Who sent it out?

Q. Yeah. Did you receive the contracts from
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Mr. Kunzi?

A. I got -- I got a copy of it, yes.

Q. Okay. ABnd did Mr. Kunzi represent you at
the commissioners' meeting when they heard the pitch
for the contracts?

A, That's my recollection.

Q. And -—--

THE COUDRT: I've got a guestion on that.
You said represent. Did Mr. —-- was Mr., Kunzi
retained as your counsel? That's the allegation =-

THE WITHESG: Never.

THE CQURT: =- that's the guestion.

Maybe yvou need to clarify that, Mr. Neely.
Because you're saving that he -- that Mr. Kunzi
represented. And in the legal context, legal
representation is he would have acted as counsel for
Mr. Kuehn and Mr. Gibson. ITs that what you'zre
asking?

ME. NEELY: Let me put it -- let me
rephrase it.

Kb Sco when you went to the commissioners'
meeting, Mr. Xunzil was there, he put forward the
idea of the Humboldt plan?

A He -- yes, he was the one who was there

representing the county commission -- or the -- he
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was the DA who represents the commission, and he was
the one that was speaking to the commissioners.
Now, I don't remember if he gct up and spoke in
front of them in detail, but I believe most of the
bargaining was done behind closed doors.

Qs ckay. BAnd was it ~- was 1t Mr. Kunzi who

was really the driving force behind the Humboldt

‘plan?

A. Yes.

Q. And was it your understanding that it
would be Pam Webster who was golng to be the
supervisor of the public defenders?

A, Ne.

Q. Did you -- was it your understanding that
the plan that he put forward would probably save the
county half a million dollars?

A. Something like that, veah.

2. That would be because they would not be
using any of the other conflict lawyers?

A. That's my understanding.

Q. Yeah. A&nd would you -- was it your
understanding the desire was to eliminate the
expense of paying separate lawyers?

A. Yes.

B And did you ultimately lose your job as a
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contract public defender?

A. Yes. Well, it wasn't renewed. I didn't

lose it, it -- veah, they didn't renew it
Q. Was it over insurancea?
A No.
Q. T thartik --—
A, No. But if you want to ask a follow-up

gquesticn.

Q. Yeah. What was 1t over?

A. T was accuszed of not having insurance.
And I -- and I showed my proef of insurance. And
they said, oh, this is just a -- I believe a rider
or a proof that I had -- had insurance. But they
wanted -- then Pam asked for the policy, which I

didn't have handy and I had to order it and get 1t.
And then I went over to her office, dropped it on
her desk and said, "There it is, knock yourself

cut.” Politely.

2. Did you feel set up in the way Yyour
contract --

A, Oh; yes. Yes.

Q. -— anded?

And who do you think was setting you up?
B, Well, my understanding -- my belilef 18 —=—

set —-- when you say "set up," please be more
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specific. What do you mean by that?
Q. Do you feel like, you know, the fix was in

that you would lose your contract after one year?

B There were —-- there was ancther ilssue that
carie up before the -- 1 mean right after the
insurance. And that was the retention of files.

Which belonged to the former firm of Gensler,
Earnest. And Harry Kuehn chartered —- whatever
Harry was going under at that time. Those are all
old files, that they were not public defender files
that we were maintaining. Those were old other
independent files.

And I got a frantic call from Pam Webster
demanding I go pick them up in -- in Tonopah. And I
got a call from the State bar and Brian Kunzi. And
I had to -~ said the same thing to all three of
those entities. "Not my files, not my problem.

Talk to Earnest or Kuehn or Gensler.”

Znd so that was all -- that was another
rift that we had. Begcause they, for somg regason,
presumed it was going to be my problem. And then --
but then Earnest actually went and picked all those
files up in Tonopah later. They were being stored
up there by Bob Bruschetta in one of his bulldings.

L Mr. Gibson, who do you think was the --
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was the ultimate boss on the contract attorheys at
that -- when you were working there? Who had hiring
and firing -- did Mr. Kunzi have the ability to get

vou fired if he wanted?

A. Do I know or do I suspect?
518 Do you suspect.
A. I suspect that Mr, Kunzi had control over

+He situation, and that Pam Webster pretty much did
whatever he wanted her to do. And I -- and I —-- and
kunzi had a history of when he decided that somecne
needed to leave, he slowly built up a file in order
to get rid of them, as evidenced by some of the
people who used to work in his office, some of the
attorneys. But what he did with -- with -- with me
was, he started that deal with the no insurance and
then with the -- with the maintaining files.

Neither one of those had anything to do with me, but
I know that they were using that as thelr ~--

MR. VITTQ: Your Honor, I'm going to

cbject at this point. I mean, I've allowed a lot of
leeway here. I think we're getting really far
afield —-

MR. NEELY: This is going to be my last
guestion.

MR. VITTO:

- any of this is relevant.
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THE COURT: 1I'm going to sustain it. This
is way off the field. Whether or not he has a
contract. There's been ﬁothing established on time
frame. I think it's totally irrelevant.
| The issue here are addressing the number
of complaints that were raised by Mr. Mack for the
basis he accepted a guilty plea, there is a standard
by which counsel must establish ineffective
assistance of counsel, and bias and prejudice of the
judge, which are the bases for all of this.

And this is speculation and I suspect this
and I suspect that. Has nothing to do —— there's
been no nexus.

The objection is sustained. Let's stick
tn the issues of the writ ¢f habeas corpus.

MR. NEELY: I've got no further guestions,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Vitte? Do you have any
questions of the witness?

MR. VITTO: Just a couple, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. VITTO:
Q. Mr. Gibson, how strong was the State's
case agalnst your client?

A. Extremely strong.
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Q. Extremely strong. In fact, he had nade

admissions that could be considered confessions?

A, tnder attorney-client privilege, I'm
rnot -— defer to the Court whether I should answer
that.

Q. Attorney-client privilege is gone. &S

soon as he brings a claim against you.

B, Mo, I understand.

Q. But I have nc problem with you asking the
Court for permission to answer.

THE COURT: I think you should answer.
Ha's alleged attorney malpractice -- OI ineffective
assistance of counsel.

THE WITNESS: Okay. So -- and repeat the
question, Mr. Vitto,.
BY MR. VITTO:

Q. Did, in fact, voéur glient make admizssions
during interviews that could be considered
confessions to the crimes that were alleged?

B, Early on in the case he was in denial.
Later on, when he saw most of the evidence and we
saw the thing coming together, and he -- in fact,
that he was going to have to plead -- that the offer
was to plead guilty --

Q. Hold on a second, Counsel. I'm sorry.
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I'm not asking you what your client teld you. I'm
asking what is reflected in the police reports, in
his interviews with pclice.

A. Yes, is my recollectien.

R Okay. Wew, looking at what he was
originally charged with, multiple counts of sexual
assault, each of which carried a life sentence that
could have been run consecutively, -loeking at that,
in conjunction with what he ultimately pled guilty
to and was sentenced upon, looking at just the
record itself, it appears to me, and I'm asking your
opinien, it appears to me that through your
representation of him, you were able to remarkably
and dramatically reduce his exposure to the criminal
justice system.

A. Correct. A&nd that's why I ——- we didn't
have —- the investigator didn't go to trial mode.
Cbviously, most cases you should start off being
ready to go to trial mode. &nd other times you
don't because why would you kick a person in the
shins that you're asking for a favor or a reduction?

. And, you know, maybe it's important for
the Court to understand. Counsel, how long have you
been practicing law?

A, Too long. Since -- since I graduated law
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school in '87, started practicing regular practice
in January '88.

Q. So you'we worked as a prosecutor?

A, es.

Q. Federal public defender?

A, No.

Did you work --

A. I'm sorry, 1'm sorry. I -- my -- the
first job I had was a -- was a state prosecutor out
of Buffalo County, Carney, Nebraska. I have besn a
federal public defender for four and a half years
out of the Western District of Tennessee.

O Ckay. And then, of course, you worked as
a Nye County public defender, you've worked --
you've represented ciients, defendants privately,
you worked as a prosecutor here in Nye County; all
of that is true, correct?

A. Yes.

. How many defendants do you think you've
represented in your legal career?

A. Thousands, tens of thousands.

Q. Okay. Counsel, at some point during these
proceedings, did there come a time when there was no
need to further investigate this matter?

A. That's —-- that was my professicnal
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cpinion.

Q. And at what point was that?

A. Early on, when we decided that we wanted
to seek a reasonable resolution to the -- to the
charges. And as you said, based on my reading of

what he was locoking at wversus what Mr. Mack would
have received had we -- probably would have received
had we gone to trial, the only sane thing to do was
to minimize his exposure, which I believe we did.

Q. Now, there's been some talk about medical
issues. Were you aware or was it obvious that there
were some kind of medical issue that should preclude
the process going forward at any time?

A. When I spoke with him, even after he was
in the hospital, he was able to answer questions
clearly and concisely. He had no apparent issues
with recollection or being able to assist counsel.
Those are the things that a medical provider would
look at for —-- for competency or insanity.

Q. And you were there when the Court
canvassed the defendant. You were right next to the
defendant when the Court canvassed him in regard to
there being any reason why we shouldn't go forward
today.

. Correct.
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Q. And Her Honor usually asked something to
the effect, "How are you feeling today?" Do you
remember something like that?

A. T don't remember those words, but she --
yes, in the normal course.

. Now, Ceounsel, we know, we read the case
law, we know that a defendant needs to know whether
an offense 1s probaticnable or not before they plead
guilty or when they plead guilty, right?

A. Correct.

Q. And we know that advising them of duties
to register as a sex offender, lifetime supervision,
those are all good things to canvas a person

regarding, right?

A. Correct.
Q. How about specifically referencing tiler
levels? Are you -- let me ask you the guestion.

In regard to tier levels, are you aware of
any legal requirement that reguires anybody toO
canvas anyone on that particular subject?

A. Not to my recocllection, no. TIf the
guestion is asked, I'll go do some research for A g
And as a matter of fact -- I -- looking back on 1it,
I think that this was the first time that a tier --

tier issue ever even came up in my experience.
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Where -- where the thing -- we thought it was one
and it was another. Or that they had -- because I
remember, I think they had changed -- they had

changed the tiers, and that's what would cause this
issue to come up. So this was the first time it
ever was an issue.

Q. Sg just let me ask you directly, Counsel.
As pointed out by the Court, the defendant is
alleging that you were ineffective for failing to
investigate the case before plea entering. But ==

well, is that true?

AL T didn't fail. I told him that I was
going -- that -- I didn't tell him I wasn't going to
get an investigator, T told him we were in -— in

negotiation mode, not trial mode.
0. And that was the decision that the two of

you reached --

A. Ch, yeah.
Qs -— in negotiating your posture,
A I don't -- I never tell anvone they have

to take a deal.

Q. Do you feel that you had an adequate
understanding of the facts of the case?

A. Yes,

Q. One of the issues, which apparently is why
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some of the guestions were asked during direct
examination, has to do with you having some kind of
undisclosed conflict of interest.

Do you have any idea what the defendant is

referencing?

B, HNo.
Q. So there are gquestions about your
contract, Pam Webster, Mr. Kunzi. pid any of that

or anything that you were testifylng about have
anything to do with your representatiocn of the
defendant?

L. Not at all.

Q. Did it interfere with your representation
of the defendant?

A. Mo. That would have been just personal to
me and them.

48 The defendant 1s making reference to
something about failing to continue the trial date
when you were told to by him. Do you know what he's
talking about?

A. No.

g, He's referencing something about a fallure
to inform that psychosexual interview information
could be reviewed and used by the Court or counsel.

Do you know what he's talking about?
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A, Ne, I mean —-- I don't —-- I den't know.

0. NDid he -- was there any discussion about
suppressing statements he made to law enforcement?

A. If those —- if that was an issue, and I
don't recall that specific issue, but I mean, in my
normal course, 1f there are things that could or
should be suppressed then I will discuss that with
the ¢lient. And then again, it's -- everything is
always tempered with if, we're trying -- 1f our goal
is to negotiate the best deal possible for fear of
what the worst case scenario being convicted of alil
charges, then, yeah, we'll go over all those things
in great detail.

But -- and they were menticned, they're

discussed. But beyond that, we didn't -- I dida't
get into all the psychosexual issue. 1 mean,
that's -- I do explain it to the client that if they

take the plea, a plea, anything that is in the
record can be used against them. And the judge has
access to those materials if they're provided to the
judge.

0. You know, in our line of work, it seems Lo
me that issue spotting is probably one of the most
important things that we can do to speed the process

aleng. What is a case? What isn't a case? In line
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with that, as it pertains to suppressing statements
made to law enforcement, is that something that you

could possibly miss?

A, No.
Q. And lastly here, the defendant has
referenced something about the Court and bias. Do

vou have any idea what he's talking about?

A. No.
Q. Did he ever say something to you?
b, Bctually, my recollection is that -- that

Mr. Mack was very happy that Judge Wanker was the
judge because he had worked with her at the Food
Bank. I believe it was the Food Bank. Something
through New Hope. And that his experience with her
was always very positive, and s0 he was very
comfortable with —- with her being the judge.

418 Okay. @S¢ he was hoping that perhaps his

familiarity with the Court would put him in good

graces.
A. I believe he was counting on it.
Q. Ckay.
A. Although I did explain to him that -- that

regardless of how friendly a judge is with you, the
judge is going to follow the law. I did temper it

with that. But he was very positive about having
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Judge Wanker the sitting judge in this matter.

ME. VITTO: I have no more guestions, Your
Honor.

MR. NEELY: I just have one, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. NEELY:
2. Did Mr. Mack send you a letter asking you
to postpone his trial due teo illness?
A. I do not recall.

MR. MNEELY: Mo further guestions, Your
Honor.

THE COQURT: ©Okay, all right. Thank you,
Mr. Gibson. Appreciate your time today.

Mr. Neely, who's your next witness?

MR. MEELY: That was the only witness
we're going to call, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ©Okay, all right.

Mr. Vitto, do you have any witnesses?

MR. VITTO: I have no witnesses, Judge,

THE COURT: Okay. Do ydu have argument?

MR. VITTO: You know, this is so brief.
I'll be glad to go first.

MR. NEELY: Sure.

MR. VITTO: This is just a petition that
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is legally, woefully deficient. The defendant 1is
the moving party. He has the burden ¢f presenting
to this Court something that is ocutcome
determinative and something that reflects on the
plea process. He has to show that his counsel,

Mr. Gibson, having represented defendants as leong as
he has, in as many different places as he has, in
many different capacities, tens of thousands of
clients, with the canvas that we have that's a part
of the record, the defendant bears the burden of
demonstrating to this Court that counsel was
ineffective during the plea process.

And would not only have to show that
counsel was ineffective, but then have to show that
what it is that counsel was ineffective at was
actually outcome determinative. That it actually
would have made a difference. He's fallen woefully
short. He hasn't come anywhere near the burden that
he would have to manifest to this Court. This
petitlion should be dismissed.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Mr. Meely?

MR. NEELY: Thank you, Your Honor.

90, of course, we feel differently. Just

quickly go through our issues here. Qur position 1is
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that at trial, that counsel's failure to hire an
investigator to do an effective investigation of the
case prior to petitioner's plea of guilty.

Rﬁd Mr. Mack has always alleged that trial
counsel caused his client tc enter a guilty plea
while petitioner was suffering from the effects of a
stroke.

And this is something else Mr. Mack's
always alleged, Your Honor. The trial counsel
failed to infeorm the petiticner of the conseguence
of being a Tier II1II sex offender prior to entry of
the plea.

In addition, trial counsel failed to
review the facts of the case or discussing the
defense with petitloner.

And trial counsel failed -- failled to
inform the petitioner the conseguence of pleading
guilty to attempted sexual assault and the
punishments therefore.

And as far a: the conflict of Lnterest,
our position is that given the relationship that
Mr. Gibson had with the DA's office in procuring and
having a contract at that time when he was the
generating force behind the Humboldt system, that

there was a conflict of interest between Mr. Gibson
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and any criminal defendant under that contract.

Thank you, very much.

THE COURT: Thank you. ARll right.

Anything else from anyone?

ME. HNEELY: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Qkay.

So the Court's loocked very carefully, went
back through the entire trial file and read
everything, including the preliminary hearing
transcript, the transcripts of all the hearings that
were held in this case by this Court.

and I want to address a couple of things.
One, it's a difficult -- it's a difficult burden to
set aside a guilty plea when there's been a written
guilty plea agreement. The defendant was
thoroughly, thoroughly canvassed Dy the Court .at the
time that he entered his plea. So I want to go
through the bases that he setl forth in his writ.

Trial counsel's investigator failed to
conduct an effective investigation on the case prior

to the entry of petiticner's plea of guilty. HNow,

i

actually, Mr. Gibson did have an investigator. Hi
name was Mark?
MR. NEELY: Henry.

THE COURT: Henry. And, in fact, the
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issue came up at the time of the arraignment.
Because previocusly, the Court had received a letter
in November of -- November, must have been 2000- -=
the arraignment was on December 6th, 2013. Must
have been November 19th, 2913. ind the Court
‘nquired about it at the time of arraignment.

The Court said, at that time, brought it
to Mr. -- now, this is what I said to Mr. Mack on
page 16 of the arraignment transcript dated
December 6th, 2013.

Now, this is me talking. "Now, T raé
received a letter from you that was dated
November 19%th, 2013 that -- that you -- that was
addressed to Mr. Gibson that you had sent me
indicating you were concerned because -- with the
representation, because he had not met with you and

Mr. Zane, the investigator, had not met with you.

You still have concerns regarding Mr. Gibsen and

Mr. Zane." And Mr. Mack said, "Neo, I do nogt." The
Court said, "At this point, are you satisfied with
the representation that has been provided to you by
Myr. Gibson?" And Mr. Mack said, "Yes, Your Honoxr."
Mr. Gibson said, "Your Honor, may I
clarify something? Mark Henry is our investigator.”

And I said, "I'm sorry, Mr. Mark Henry. I
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apologize. This said Mark and I assumed it was

Mr. Zane." And Mr. Gibson said, "No, Mr. Henry."
And the Court said, "So, Mr. Henry, okay. AL this
point as of today, December 6th, 2013, those
concerns that you set forth in your November 13th
letter have all been resclved; is that right?” And
Mr. Mack said, "Yes, Your Honor."

and then Mr. Gibsen said, "Your Honor, for
+he record, Mr., Henry and I have met with Mr. Mack.
I met with him on multiple occasions since that
letter, and Mr. Henry did at least one meeting with
him and was working on the case up until the time we
decided to reach this agreement.” And I said,
"Okay. Thank yon, Mr. Gibson. I appreciate that.”

and I said, "Now, do you think you've had
enough time to discuss all the various aspects of
this case with Mr. Gibson?" I asked that of
Mr. Mack. And Mr. Mack said, "Yes."

And so then we went on further to talk
about some of the —- some of the issues.

So trying to say that trial counsel == the
hindsight is always 50-50 when you're sitting —-- or
maybe when you're sitting at the Nevada Department
of Correctione for a lengthy period of time,

Somehow, the memory gets dashed of your opinion.
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Aut at that -- I made it very clear, I wanted to be
sure that if there were any issues with counsel, and
with the investigator that they were resclved at the
time of the arraignment. And Mr. Mack indicated to
me that they were.

Now, 80 the Court doesn't find,.really,
any merit to the argument that trial counsel's
investigator failed to conduct an effective
investigation of the case prior to the entry of
petitioner's plea of guilty.

I want to bring up two other things in
that regard. WNo. 1 is, I reviewed the preliminary
hearing transcript. The victim in this case
testified. She testified very graphically about
what happened to her.

But Detective Boruchowitz alsc testified.
He testified about the admissions that were made by
Mr. Mack when he went out to the house to interview
and subsequently arrested Mr. Mack.

Subseguent to that time, Mr. Mack had a
couple of other statements. One was that he teold --
he admitted certain allegations to John Pacault, who
performed the psychosexual evaluation. &nd I'll get
into that a little bit later as I go down through

these claims.
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And then finally, on his presentence
investigation report, he admitted the conduct. In
fact, I can --= I will read you the statement that
was attached to the PSI report, about what Mr. Mack
had to say.

Mr. Mack said, "I'm sorry for what
happensed with my adopted sister and I take full
responsibility. Even though what toock place was
consensual, my adopted sister was living with me at
that time -- at the time of this offsnse.”™ B0 he
said yes, I did it. And he admitted it on his
presentence lnvestigation statement that was
submitted to the Court.

Whether it was -- now that raises a whole
other issue of guestions. It's net —- it's not
disputed that the victim in this case was described
pasically of having an I0 of less t+han 70, which
would have made her mentally vulnerable. I think
the old vernacular might have been, and this is no
disrespect intended, mentally retarded. But
nonetheless -- 50 the defendant admitted it there,
he admitted to Detective Boruchowitz and he admitted
i+ when he was interviewed by John Pacault.

3¢ taking a look at the standard for

ineffective assistance of counsel, that somehow he
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nad an ineffective investigation, the Court finds no
merit teo that argumsnt.

The second basis for the writ is trial
counsel caused the client to enter a plea of guilty
while Mr. Mack was suffering the effects of the
stroke. BAnd I want to talk about that as well.

if we go back to the arraignment, the
Court asked Mr. Maek if he would like a continuance
of the trial, and if he would like to -- 1f he was
capable of moving forward on the day -- date of
December 6th, 2013. To which Mr. Mack replied he
didn't need a continuance -- if I can find it here.
T said, right from the get-go, T announced the case.
This is on page 4 of the transcript. I said, "Are
the parties prepared to go forward?” Everybody said
yes. I went on to say, "It's my understanding this
matter has been negotiated.” Everybody sald yes.

Now, this is where we get to talk about
the plea. And the Court says, and you -- the Court,
this is on page 6. "You've been provided a CoOpy of
+he second amended information wherein you've been
charged with attempted sexual assault. It's a
violation of Nevada Revised Statute 200.336 and
Nevada Revised Statute 193.330. It's a Category B

felony. Do you understand the nature of the charge
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set forth in the second amended information?"

Mr. Mack replied, "Yes, ma'am." And the Court then
went on and asked, "Have you had the opportunity to
discuss this charge with your atiorney, Mr. Gibson?"
The defendant, "Yes." "And as to the charge set
forth in the second amended information, how do vou
plead?" Mr. Mack said, "Guilty as offered.”

Mr. Gibson says, "Under Alford." The defendant,
"Guilty under Alford." The Court, "you are making a
guilty plea pursuant to the Alford plea?"” The
defendant says, "Yes, ma'am." The Court, "Okay.
Alford versus North Carclina is a U.S5. Supreme Court
decision from 1970. That is essentially —- 1tie &
guilty plea, but what you're saying is the State can
prove -— you're not necessarily admitting that
you're guilty, you're saying that the State has
sufficient evidence and can prove the allegations
cat forth in the information beyond a reasonable
doubt if the case went to trial. So I want to be
sure you understand that and that's the plea you
want to enter." And Mr. Mack said, "vyes.," And the
Court says, "Okay. BAnd if you don't, Mr. Mack, it's
fine. We're happy to provide you with a trial.

It's really up te you. I don't want anyone ever in

my courtroom to feel pressured, that they've been
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pressured —--" And Mr. Mack interrupts me and says,
"No, I understand, Your Honor." And the Court says,
",..into some type cof plea agreement.

Before I can accept your Alford plea, 1
want to pbe certain that the plea has been knowingly,
freely and voluntarily entered into. And in
addition, the guilty plea agreement that you signed,
that you signed it knowing the terms and conditions
of that, knowing and understanding the terms and
conditions of that agreement, and knowing that you
knowingly, freely and wvoluntarily entered into that
agreement. So I'm going to ask you some guestions."

And then I proceseded over -- that was on
page B. I proceeded for -- from page 8 of a written
transcript to page 27 to canvas him concerning his
understanding of the Alford plea, the penalties he
waa facing. I thoroughly canvassed him with regard
to that, went through the charge. And so at no time
did he appear to the Court, did he indicate that he
couldn't move forward, that he was suffering under
the effects of a stroke. 8o I find that =-- that
basis for the ineffective assistance of counsel to
be without merit.

The third ineffective assistance of

counsel claim is that trial counsel failed to inform
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petitioner of the conseguences of being a Tier IIL
sex offender prior to entry of plea.

Now, I think there's two things that we
need to look at there. One 1is, what did the guilty
plea agreement tell him, that he signed and
initialed and that I reviewed with him at the time
of arraignment? And then what did the Court tell
him about that? And I think you will see in both --
in the -- from the transcript of the proceedings
that Mr. Mack was well aware of being a Tier III
offender and what that was going to entail.

In fact, I'il find the pages of the
transcript where we went over that. We went over 1t
first right in the beginning. And that was
because -- thig 1s on the first page --— well,
there's a cover page and then the next page of the
transcript I say, "We're Jjust waiting, I think, on
Mr. Mack." Because he was in custody. And
Mr. Gibson says, "Judge we have a little
housekeeping matter." And I said, "sure." And
Mr. Gibson says, "We have interlineated that -- the
third T to make it a Tier III from IT." I gaid;
"Okay." Mr. Gibson says; "*So there's no
photocopies, we only have one copy. That 1s an

original so we'll need to make copies.”™ And I said,
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na'!ll make copies of that. I'm not sure where
Christel is."

Then Mr. Mack came out and I said teo

Mr. Gibson, "Do you have the executed guilty plea
agreement?" Mr. Gibson says, "Right here in front
of me.” And I said, "And Mr. Mack initialed that

clause, that change from the second to the third
leval of tier offense?" And Mr. Gibson SayS, "Your
Honor, I suggest that both counsel also initial,
too." And I said, "Yes. Showing that we're all in
agreement." "HNeed your signature and make copies."
T think he was talking to -— he was talking to

Mr. Treffinger.

End then Mr. Gibson says, "apnd Your Honor,
can we all get copies of this?" And so I got my
steff out here. BAnd my staff is the one that made
copies of everycone lsic) before we proceeded with
the arralgnment.

Then I went through the second amended
information. I offered to read the second amended
information, have the clerk read 1it. He waived that
reading. I asked, "And you've had the opportunity

to discuss this charge with your attorney,

s
w

Sibsan?" Mr. Mack said, "Yes." I asked him how

he plead -- how he wanted to plead. He pled gullty
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pursuant to Alford. Then I went through and
explained what the Alford plea was.

And at one point I asked him, "Mr. Mack,
yvou understand that the Court will rely on the facts
just stated by Mr. Treffinger," who was the deputy
DA in the courtrooem that day, w 4in determining the
factual basis for your plea since it was an Alford
plea?" The defendant said, "Yes, I do." "And da
you agree that the State has sufficient evidence to
prove the charges against you beyond a reasonable
doubt to those facts as stated?” And the defendant
says, "Well, I don't know if they have --" And I
interrupted him and I said, "You know, Mr. Mack, 4if
you -- 1f you don't know == and like I saild, i1f you
don't want to take this plea, that's fine. I'wve got
it set for trial. Actually, I can also reset {£- Eor
trial." 8o I gave you twg oppeortunities. One toO
move forward with the trial that was a weelk away,
and second, I was happy to give you -— TG give you
an extension of the time for trial. "ITt's really up
te you," is what I said. "I don't want you in any
way to feel pressured 1into this plea.”™ And you
said, "Yeah, I understand, Your Honaor. I agree."

And I said, "Okay. I want to be sure that

you agree. You're kind of hesitant here. Do you
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think that the State -- do you think that the State
doesn't have sufficlient evidence or you just == I'm
trying to figure out what you're thinking here.”
and Mr. Mack says, "Well, I don't -- I accepkt what
he's saying," meaning Mr. Treffinger, "...but I
don't -- how would I know if he had insufficient
evidence?" I said, "Okay."

And Mr. Gibson says, "Your Honor, I think
what he's trying to say 1is that it appears the State

would be able to prove their case beyond a

reasonable doubt. He's not sure until he Sees the
whites of everyone's eyes. But to avolid that
greater situation,” and I said, "Right." Mr. Gibson

says, "He's pleading guilty pursuant to Alford."
And I said, "Mr. Mack, have you made & determination
that it's in your best interest to accept the plea
bargain and enter into this TYpPe of guilty plea?”
And Mr. Mack said, "Yes." B2And I said, "And 1s one
of the reasons you've decided to enter this plea,
+his Alford plea, is to avoid the possible harsher
penalty if you were convicted of the orlginal
charges at trial?” and he said, "Yes."

and I said, "And you understand that
originally you were charged with sexual assault on

Count I, a Category A felony? You were charged on
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Count II with sexual assault, Category A felony.
You were charged with Count III of preventing or
dissuading a wvictim from reporting a crime,
commencing prosecution, or causing arrest. It's a
Category D felony. That you Wwezxe charged with
Count IV of unlawful contact with a person with
mental illness, a gross misdemeanor. <Count Vv, abuse
of a vulnerakble person. It's a gross migdemeanocr.
And that by what you're doing in this case, instead
of being -- going to trial on those charges, you
have agreed to plead guilty pursuant te Alford to &
single count of attempted gsexual assault.™ And

Mr. Mack said, "I agree."™ And I said, "And do you
think it's in your best interest to do that rather
than to proceed to trial on the original counts?"”
And Mr. Mack said, "Yes."

So -- and I asked him about his -- his
abllity to go forward. I said, "And are you under
the influence of any drugs, alcochel, or other
medications at this time?" And Mr. Mack sald,
"Wfell, just doctor's medications, yes." And I said,
"and -- and you -- under any medications that would
affect your ability to understand the proceedings
and what's going on today?" And the defendant said,

"No, ma'am."
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as for him to claim that somehow he was
suffering the effects of a stroke, he could have
told me at any time during that arralgnment. I
would have been happy te continue the arraignment.
T'd have been happy t¢ continue the rrial. But he
told me he was able to go forward.

and I said, "Do you understand that when
you enter an Blford plea; Alford plea, guilty plea
pursuant to Alford, that you're giving up certain
constitutional rights; de you understand that?" He
said, "Yes."™ Then we went through each and every
right, constitutional right that he was giving up at
that time.

ond actually, as we go on, and I even told
him, "By entering a guilty plea pursuant to Alford,
you're giving up your right against
self-incrimination and you're, in fact, convieting
yourself. Because you are saying to this Court, I
am guilty of the crime of attempted sexual assault,
a Category B felony; do you understand this?™ And
he said, "Yes, I do."

and I said, "And do you want to do this?"
and he sald, "Yes." And then we talked about what
happened to -- what would happen toc your appellate

rights by entering a plea of guilty pursuant to
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Alford. And I said -- again, then I -- we went
through -- I covered the concerns of his
Novemper 19th, 2013 letter about his counsel. He
told me there weren't any problems.

So, now we're going to talk about the
Tier ITT offender. And the sentence. T said, ™I
want to cover some things with you about that guilty
plea agreement. Do you understand that as a result
of your plea, the maximum possible sentence that the
Court could impeose is 20 years in the Nevada
Department of Corrections?" Mr. Mack saild, "Yeg."
"and I want to be sure that because this is a 8gex

offense, do you understand that you will be required

to undergo a psychosexual evaluation?" Mr. Mack
said, "I didn't know that, but, yes," "Do you
understand that -- now I'm telling you, yes, that

you will be at some point required to undergo a
psychosexual evaluation.” Mr. Mack says, "Uh-huh.”
"Recause this is a sex cffense, do you understand
that you're going to have certain sex offender
registration reguirements and supervision
requirements, and the supervision regquirement will
be lifetime. They will be lifetime reguirements; do
you understand that?" Mr. Mack says, "Yeg, NOW-'"

"Okay. And has Mr. Gibson talked te you about the
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registration and the supervision reguirements that
yvou're going to have to be required to follow
pursuant to the Nevada Revised Statutes by entering
this plea?” Aand the defendant, Mr. Mack, s53a¥s, "He
told me that I had to register, but I don't know the
details of the requirements, the procedures." And
the Court said, "Would you like —- would you like

Mr. Gibson to go through those requirements with

you?" BAnd the defendant says, "Yeah, I don't have
the details. I mean, I know -- 1 =aw it that I have
to register."” And Mr. Gibson said, "We discussed

this yesterday, remember? We talked akbout the

48-hour reguirement, having to register within 48

hours of being convicted. And that you're required
to, whenever you change residence." "Yeah, I knew
the residence. But not all when --" and the Court

said, "Do you understand that within 48 hours of
entering this plea, vyou're geing to be required to
register with the Nye County Sheriff's Qffice as &
sex offender?"” BAnd the defendant says, "48 hours of
this plea? Yeah. Register." The Court says,
"Right." The defendant says, "Yes, Okay."

and I said, "Do yeu understand that as a
result of entering this plea, that you will have -—-

you will be subject to 1iferime supervision by
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Parole & Probation; do you understand that?" And
then -- and Mr. Mack says, "No, I didn't know that,
but that's --" and I said, "Okay. Knowing that --"
and then Mr. Mack =ays, "Okay." "Now, I'm telling
rhat -— telling you --" this 1ils the Court, ", oeEhat
you will be required tec be subject to lifetime
supervision by Parocle & Probation. Do you still
want to enter your Alford plea?” The defendant
says, "I guess."

and the Court says, "Okay. And you're
also going to have certain registration
requirements. Those registration requirements are
going te be with the law enforcement agency. You're
going to be in a reglstry, a sex offense registry.
Knowing -- by me telling you, and you're also going
to be classified as a Category Tler III sex
offender, do you still want to enter your Alford
plea?" And Mr. Mack aaid, TTeg"

And I said, "Okay. And do you understand
that if you fail to register when you're not
reguired to do -- register when you're reguired to
do so, you can be subject to a separate Category 0
felony?" BAnd Mr. Mack says, "Separate what, ma'am?"
and T said, "Category D felony for falling teo

register." And M. Mack said "Yes."
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And then 1 also said, "Okay, all rights
alsc want to be sure that you understand that you
may be subject to community neotification provisions

designed to reach members of the public likely toO

encounter you. And so knowing that, do you still
want to enter your Alford plea?" And Mr. Mack said,
"YES-"

and I said, "Okay, all right. Now, I
notice that on the Alford plea on page 6 there's a
signature line for Michael E. Mack. Is that your
signature?” And Mr. Mack says, "Yes, it is.” "and
did you sign this agreement on December 5th, 201327
And Mr. Mack said, "Yes, I did." And the Court
satid, "Now, I want to be sure one thing of the
agreement that was changed this morning. Aand it is
on page 4, 1s that the conscequences of this sex
offerise, the agreement originally read that you
would be considered a Tier 11 sex offender, but is
aotually a Tier 111 sex offender; do you understand
that?" And Mr. Mack said, "Yes, I do."™ "And dad
you initial next to that, that you understood that?"
And he said, "Yes."

T gaid, "Now, I notice in the bottom
right-hand corner of page 1 through 7 of the

agreement are some initials. Are thoses your

0460




11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
13
20
21
22
23
24

2

53

initials?" “"Yes, it is."™ "Ckay." and I =said,

"Now, prior to the time that you signed and

initialed this agreement did you read iHE* "Y¥es,; 1
did." "Did you understand everything that was set
forth in the agreement?" 7Yes, T did.”™ "Prior to

the time that you signed and initialed the
agreement, did you have the oppeortunity to discuss
this agreement with Mr. Mack?" I gaid, "I'm scrry,
Mr. Cibson." "Yes, I did.™ ."And did Mr. Gibson
satisfactorily answer any guestions you might have
about the written guilty plea agreement?" "Yes."
"Do you have any questions for the Court about the
agreement?" "No, I do not." "Did you sign and
initial the agreement freely and voluntarily?”

"Yes, I did."™ "Did anyone threaten you, coerce you,
or otherwise force you in any way to enter into the
written quilty plea agreement?" The defendant says,
"No." So, then, going on, I say, "Now, hers's your
opportunity, Mr. Mack, if you'd like to change your
mind. After we've gone through it's a Tier IIL
offender, the conseguences could be 20 years in
prison." I say, "Here's your opportunity, Mr. Mack,
if you'd like to change your mind. 2and if you truly
feel you don't want to enter this plea, I'm fine

with that. I'm happy te set it for trial. What I
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want to be certain is that you want to enter —-- you
enter the plea that you want to enter. That you
don't feel pressured or otherwise forced in any way
ta enter a plea. While we do Dave it set on
calendar next week, I'm even happy to continue the
trial if you would like that. If you decide that
you want to go to trial, okay." And Mr. Mack savs,
"yas." 8o I'm -- and I said, "So I'm geing to ask
you now, here's going tc be the moment of truth.
It's your kind of last and final chance to enter
your plea here.

Based upon my questions and our discussion
here this morning, what 1is your plea to the charge
in the second amended information of attempted
sexual assault, a Category B felony?" And Mr. Mack
says, "What is my plea? Guilty. I'm sorry, Your
Henor." And the Court said, "Okay. And that guilty
plea will be entered pursuant to Alford; is that
right?" And Mr. Mack said, "Yes."

And then and only then did the Couxt
accept his plea of gullty pursuant to alford and
make the findings that it did.

56 the claim that -- that trial counsel
caused him to enter a plea of guilty while the

petitioner was suffering the effects of a stroke 1
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£ind absolutely no basis for that. The transcript
speaks for itself. It was lengthy. It was -- the
Court carefully guestioned Mr. Mack. And even gfter
he entered the plea of guilty pursuant to alford,
after the Court went through the penalties, after
the Court went through eaverything, the Court gave
Mr. Mack a final opportunity to change that plea to
not guilty, offered to continue the trial. So I
find that his argument has no merit.

Now, the third item was trial counsel
failed to inform petitioner of the consequences ol
being a Tier III szex affender pursuant to -- 3ok e s

to the entry of plea.

T do want to say this. I'm not sure
that —- that it is a reguirement that you givs the
defendant every little nitty-gritty detail of -— of

+his is a Tier III versus a Tier II versus a Tier T.
But it is set forth about the registration
regquirements in the guilty plea agreement. And
clearly, clearly, clearly the Court went through it
carefully with Mr. Mack and gave him an opportunity
to change his plea to not guilty. and so I find
that's without merit.

In our fourth, trial counsel failed to

review the facts of the case and discuss any
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defenses with the petitioner. Well, Mr. Glbson
restified today that he -- that he did speak with
Mr. Mack, and Mr. Mack told me at the time of
arraignment that any concerns that he had with
Myr. Gibson had been resolved.

The other thing is that again, the
testimony of Mr. Gibson and the Court's review of
the file, pretty strong case against Mr. Mack. And
se I find -- and even if he had done that, there's
no proof that somsehow that would have changed the
outcome of this gase. There was a confession, and
Mr. Mack himself, like I said, on two other
instances has admitted that he's guilty of the
offense.

The trial court failed to inform the
petitioner of the conseguences of pleading gullty to
attempted sexual assaunlt. Again, I think that's
pelied by the guilty plea agreement. Bul even i
that's true, the Court told him what the
conseguences of -- were of pleading guilty to the
attempted sexual asszault. The Court also told
Mr. Mack, and I can go point to the -- the portion
of the transcript. That the person that --
sentencing is solely 1in +he discretion of the

District Court judge. And as long as the District
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Court judge sentences within the parameters of the
law, the Court is not bound by -- by the guilty plea
agreement. And, in fact, this Court sentenced
My, Mack pursuant to the recommendations of Parole &
probation of the presentence lnvestigation report.
The Court -- that's the recommendations that the
Court followed, were the ones done by Parole &
Probation. 8o I don't find that causse has any
merit.

8ixth, trial counsel had a conflict of
interest during his representation of petitioner
which he never disclosed to petitioner.

Apparently, Mr. Mack claims that because
Mr. Gibson had a contract, and -- with —= as a
public defender, and somehow that contract was
changing, that that somehow prejudiced his -- his
defense. Or prejudiced him in this case. And that
had he known that, that that would have affected the

outcome of this case. And I just don't think that

has any -- [ don't find any basis for that.
3eventh —-- so again, that -- that basis in
the writ of habeas corpus is without merit -—- trial

court counsel's failure to request & continuance of
petitioner's trial date after he was told to do 80O

by petiticner, causing petitioner to enter a plea
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while not of sound mind.

Well, trial counsel may not have done
that, that may ke a subject of debate, but the Court
clearly, before accepting his plea on December 6th,
told him on two occasions during that plea canvas,
that she would be happy to continue the trial date.
So again, that -- there's no indication that trial
counsel -- first of all, that he failed to regquest
to make the continuance regquest. But even if he
did -- did not make that reguest, when the Court
asked the defendant 1f he wanted a trial continuance
he said no.

rrial counsel failed te inform petitiener
that the information obtained during the
psychosezual exam could be used against him at
sentencing.

Well, clearly, Jchn Pacault, the
evaluator, told him that at the start of the
evaluation. And I'll read to you from the written
report of the psychosexual evaluation. The
psychosexual evaluation says, "This evaluater met
with Mr. Mack on January Tth, 2014 at the Nye County
jail. For purposes of this evaluatlon, this
evaluator utilized documents that were provided by

the Division of Parcle & Probation. They consisted
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of Mr. Mack's District Court petitions, guilty plea
agreement and information, multiple Nye County
Sheriff's Department incidence reports and a
declaration of arrest report, a NYe County Child
Advocacy Center report concerning the wvictim, along
with assessments of the primary victim and her
intellectual and behavioral functioning and the
legal guardianship paperwork concerning Mr. Mack's
aister."

Informed consent is the topic. "MI. Mack
was given a full description of the evaluaticn
process, the risks and benefits invelved and the
rationale for the evaluation. He was informed of
the use of confrontation detailed gquesticning and
explicit language during the interview. He was also
advised of the importance of cooperation and honesty
in order for the =valuation to be effective. Tnhe
parameters of confidentiality were carefully
explained, and in particular, when it had to be
broken in accordance with the.law.

While acknowledging the Court's directive
+hat he pe evaluated, the voluntary nature of the
evaluation was emphasized. Comprehension of these
issues was confirmed, and any questions Mr. Mack had

were answered. Written and voluntary consent to
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proceed was cobtained prior to starting the
evaluation.”

So it appears to me that Mr. Mack was well
aware, actually from the evaluator himself, at the
very start of the evaluation about what the use was
of that information, and Mr. Mack verbally and in
writing agreed to that. SO T find that argument to
be without merit.

The next claim for ineffective assistance
of counsel was trial counsel falled to use relevant
infermation in his investigation provided by
petitioner.

Again, Mr. Gibson testified and the record
is very clear that the evidence against Mr. Mack was
strong. Including svidence that had come up of
possible additicnal victims after it was -=- it was
mentioned in the psychosexual evaluation that
another wvictim had come forward after Mr. Mack's
arrest. Claiming he, too, was a person of
diminished capacity. He, too, had been sexually
assaulted by Mr. Mack.

ind then according to the psychosexual
evaluation, there was allegations involving &
stepbrother or feater brother, and then allegations

of sexual misconduct and a dishonorable discharge
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from the Coast Guard.

So I again find that cause of -=- on the
pasis for the petition for the writ of habeas corpus
to be without merit.

Trial counsel failed to motion Lo have his
statements suppressed that were made to the State at
the time of arrest.

That's just a bald statement, and Mr. Mack
has provided nothing that -- it's his burden here --
t+hat would suggest that there was & basis to
suppress those motions. So the mere statement that
counsel did not make the motiorn, somehow that's a
pasis for the Court to grant the writ, 1s Jjust
simply without merit. In fact, trial counsel,
anless there is a good faith hasis for making that
motion, cannot, as an attorney in good standing, he
could be brought up for wviclation of the Code of
Professional Conduct.

8¢ again, without more, other than just a
bald statement, the Court finds that without merit.

Final claim was that trial counsel failed
to motion to have the +rrial court judge recuse
herself from petitioner's case for bias.

T would like to go back to the first time

this case came before the court. And the Court, on
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her own initiative, raised the sections of the code
of judicial conduct with the parties, explained that
this Court is very active in the community,
especially as the Drug Court judge.

That 1 had worked with Mr. Mack as part of
the New Hope PBath of Hope Food Bank. That I was in
Kiwanis with Mr. Mack. That I had done a number of
community activities with Mr. Mack. But I also
disclosed that I was in the community, but that I
had never gone ocut and had dinner with him or any
sort of social relationship. I went through the
case authority. BAnd, in fact, ¢ ean find the: --
I went through a very, very extensive disclosure,
including the case authority and the sections of the
code of judicial conduct. And 1 gave both sides an
opportunity and time o file a motion for recusal.
Neither side moved to recuse me. and, in fact, as I
explained to them, I, too, have locked at the code
and at the case authority, and explained that a
judge has a duty not to recuse themselves if there
iz not a basis to do so.

With that, I would clearly be open-minded
and entertain anything that anyone wanted to bring
forward. And -- and defense indicated they had no

problem with me proceeding as the judge. They had
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no problem with me proceeding as the judge until it
came to sentencing and I sentenced Mr. Mack 1n
saccordance with the recommendations of Parole &
Probation. Which was the maximum underlying
sentence, So it was after the fact, then, that that
issue was raised.

So trying to look at that in the totality,
looking at it, at the disclosures that were made at
the time and trying to sit as an appellate court
would, and saying did the judge -- did the judge
follow the proper protocols? Yes, the judge did.
Was the judge biased or prejudiced? HNo, the judge
was not. Did the judge come to some outlandish
conclusion? Mo, the judge followsd the
recommendations of Parole & Probation who prepared
the presentence investigation report. It wasn't
outside the parameters of that. It was clearly
within the confines and authority of the District
Court.

So I'wve gone through all 11 bases that
Mr. Mack had for the writ of habeas corpus.
Especially as it applies to a guilty plea agreement.
The Court finds that they are without merit and the
writ of habeas corpus is denied.

Thank you.
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MR. VITTO: Thank you,
MR, NEELY: Thank you,
THE COURT: Thank you.
MR. NEELY: Thanks for

(Proceedings concluded

Your Honor.

Your Honor.

the opportunity.

at 2:51 p.m.)
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That I reported the taking of the proceedings,
at the time and place aforesaid;

That I thereafter transcribed my said shorthand
noctes into typewriting and that the typewritten
transcript of said proceeding is a complete, true
and accurate record of statements provided by the
parties at said time to the best of my ability.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
i MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
Petitioner, ORDER DENYING WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS
.v- -
STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.
{
History of Case
On May 14, 2014, the State filed an Information charging Michael A. Mack ("Mack”)

with Count I: Sexual Assault, a GEHEQD;? “A" felany; Count il Sexual Assault, a category
“A" felony; Count lll: Preventing Or Dissuading Victim From Reporting Crime,
Commencing Prosecution Or Causing Arrest, a category "D” felony; Count IV; Unlawfut
Contact With Person With Mental ltiness, a Gross Misdemeanaor; and, Count V: Abuse Of
AVunerable Person, a Gross Misdemeanor. Mack was arraigned on May 17, 2013. Mack
nled not guilty, Mack waived his right to a speedy trial and both primary and secondary
trial setting dates wete provided. .

On November 26, 2013, the State filed an Amended Information cﬂarging Mack
with Attempted Sexual Assault, a category "B" felony. A Second Arnendejﬂ Information
charging Mack with Attempted Sexual Assault, a category "B” felony was filed December

1
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5, 2013, and was filed to correct the omission of the aitempt statute, left out of the
Amended Information.

L On December 6, 2013, the case was set for a change of plea. On December 8,
2013, Mack pled Guilty Pursuant to Alford to the charge of Attempted Sexual Assault, a

1
2
3
4
5 category "B’ felony. Mack also entered into a Written Guilty Plea Agreement which was
61 filed with the Court at the time of arraignment. At the arraignment on December 6, 2013,
’ the Court thoroughly canvassed Mack on his Alford Plea and on the terms of the written
¢ guilty plea agreement and gave him several opportunities to change his mind. Mack
2 decided to proceed with his “Guilty Pursuant to Alford"” Plea.

On March 21, 2014, Mack appeared before the Court for sentencing. The Court

adjudged Mack guilty of Attempted Sexual Assault, a category “B" felony, and sentenced

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

him to a minimum term of €6 and a maximum term of 240 months in the Nevada
Department of Corrections. Mack subsequently filed an appeal to the Nevada Supreme
Court. The supreme court appeal was dismissed as untimely, Mack then filed a Petition
For Writ of Habeas Corpus. The Court appointed David Neely, Esqg. to represent Mack.

Firra JuDiciar. Dastrrcer CoURT
ESMERALDA AND MYE COUNTIES

Attorney Neely filed a Supplemental Writ of Habeas Corpus. The Court held a hearing on
the Writ on August 29, 2018. The Court, after hearing testimony of trial counsel Thomas
Gibson, Esq., and after hearing the arguments of counsel, denied the Writ. The Court
outlined in great detail the basis for her denial of the Writ. This can be found in the

21| Transeript_of Eroceeding-s, Writ of Habeas Corpus, dated August 29, 2018., filed

22| September 11, 2018. These reascns are summarized below.

23 Issues Before The Court
24 Mack claims he received ineffective assistance of trial counsel and has alleged

25| several different ciaims he believes supports his assertion. To prove ineffectiVe assistance

28| of counsel, Mack must demonstrate that his trial counsel's performance wais deficient in
27 I

2 [
28 i
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that it fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and resulting prejudice such

that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, the outcome of the

proceedings would have been different. Sfrickland v. Washington, 466 US 668, 687-88
(1984); Warden v. Lyons, 100 Nev, 430, 432-33, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the
test in Strickland). Both compenents of the inquiry must be shown, Sfrickland, 466 US at
697. In this case, Mack has failed to satisfy the Strickland standard. The Court will now
address Mack's 11 assertions.

1, Trial counsel's investigator failed to conduct an effective investigation
of the case prior to Mack entering an Alford Guilty Plea.

The Court notes that at the time she arraigned Mack on December 8, 2013, the
Court addressed with Mack, a letter written to the Court by Mack dated November 18,
2013, wherein Mack complained that his attorney, Thomas Gibson, and the investigator,
Mark Henry, had not met with him.
THE COURT:
Now | have received a letter from you that was dated
November 19" 2013, that you — that was addressed tc Mr.
Gibson that you had sent me indicating you were concerned
because — with the representation because he had not met
with you, and Mr, Zane, the investigator, had not met with
you. Do you still have concerns ragarding Mr. Glbson and Mr,
Zane?
THE DEFENDANT:
No, | do not.
THE COURT:
And at this point are you satisfisd with the representatmn‘

that's been provided to you by Mr. Gibson?
Hi
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THE DEFENDANT:
Yes, Your Honor.
MR, GIBSON:

Your Honor, may | clarify something? Mark Henry is our
investigator.

THE COURT:

I'm sorry, Mark Henry. | apologize. This said Mark and |
assumed it was Mr, Zane,

MR. GIBSON:

o W o N B G b WO =

e

No. Henry

—
—h

THE COURT:

-
L)

So Mr. Henry, okay. And at this point as of today, December
6™, 2013, those concerns that you set forth in your November
19" |etier have all been resolved, is that right?

— ok
4= 0D

THE DEFENDANT:

i
[#)]

Fwrra Juorcrar. Dstract COURT
ESMERALDA AMD NYE COUNTISS

—_
LE2]

Yes, Your Honor,

—
-J

MR. GIBSON:

ey
{2e]

Your Honor, for the record Mr. Henry and | have met with Mr.
Mack. | met with him on multiple occasions since-that letter,
and Mr. Henry did at least one meeting with him and was

—
s=]

20 working on the case up until the time we decided to reach this
o1 agreement,
Do THE COURT: _
23 Okay. Thank you, Mr. Gibson. | appreciate that.

i
24 Now do you think you've had enough time to discuss all the
o5 various aspects of this case with Mr. Gibson?
ogd Il
2T
5 4
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THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.
See: Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December 6, 2013, p. 16, Ii.
2-25: p. 17, 1. 1-12.
Thus, by Mack's own admissions, there is no merit to his claim that the investigator
| Mark Henry failed to properly investigate Mack's clairr;s

2. Trial counsel caused Mack to enter a guiity plea while suffering the effects of
a stroke.,

o o N O O b~ W@ M

10 Mack claims he pled Guilty Pursuant to Alford under the effects of a stroke. The

11§ Court thoroughly canvassed Mack at the December 8, 2013 arraignment, The Court
12} asked Mack If he was capabte of moving forward on December 6, 2013 and also inquired

13 as to whether Mack needed a continuance,
14

15

THE COURT:

ESMERALDA AND MY E COUNTIES

Firra JUDICIAL IDMSTRICT COURY

You've been provided a copy of the second amended
16 Information wherein you've been charged with attempted
: sexual assault. It's a violation of Nevada Revised Statute
200.336 and Nevada Revised Statute 193.330. It's a category
B felony, Do you understand the nature of the charge set forth
in the second amended Information?

THE DEFENDANT:
21 Yes, ma'am,
o0 THE COURT:
23“ And have you had the opportunity to discuss this charge with
04 your attorney, Mr. Gibson? .
25 THE DEFENDANT: . |
286 Yes.
27
5 I
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THE COURT:

And as to the charge set forth in the second amended
Information, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:
Guilty as offered.

WR. GIBSON:
Under Alford.

THE DEFENDANT:
Guilty under Afford.

THE COURT:
You're make a guilty pursuant to Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT:
Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT:
Okay. Alford versus North Carolina is a U.S., Supreme Court
decision from 1970 that is essentially —it's a guilty plea but
what you're saying is the State can prove - you're not
necessarily admitting that you're guilty, you're saying that the
State has sufficient evidence and can prove the allegations
set forth in the Information beyond a reasonable doubt if the
case went to trial. So | want to be sure you understand that
and that's the plea you want to enter.

THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.

THE COURT:

Okay, And if you don't, Mr. Mack, it's fine. We're happy to
provide you with a trial. It's really up to you. | don't want

anyone ever in my courtroom to feel pressured, that they've |

6
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been pressured --
THE DEFENDANT:
No, | understand, your Honor.
THE COURT:
- - into some type of plea agreement.

Before | can accept your Alford plea, | want to be certain that
the pleas has been knowingly, freely and voluntarily entered
into, and, in addition the guilty plea agreement that you
signed, that you signed it knowing the terms and conditions of
that, knowing and understanding the terms and conditions of
that agreement and knowing that you knowingly, freely, and
voluntarily entered into that agreement, $0 | am going to ask
you some questions.

mm-qmc:bmm—n

P .
N = O

See: Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December 6, 2013, p. 6, Il. 8-

25 p. 7, i 1-25, p. 8, Il. 16,

.

l.ater, in the same canvass the Court told Mack:

ol
55

Fretal Juoicial DisTricT CoOUuRT
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e
3

THE COURT: _
And do you agree that the State has sufficient evidence to
prove the charges against you beyond a reasonable doubt to
those facts as stated?

THE DEFENDANT:

Well, | don't know if they have ...,

20 THE COURT;

23 You know, Mr. Mack, H’ycu don't know, and, like | said, if you
don't want to take this plea, that's fine. I've got it set for tnal'

24 actually, and [ can also reset it for trial. Soit's really up to you. .

o5 I don't want you in any way to feel pressured into this plea.

Esi i

2? ]

28 ! ’
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1 THE DEFENDANT:
2 Yeah, | understand that, your Honor. | agree.
9] see: Transeript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December 8, 2013, p. 9, If.
4
10-23. Some 20 pages later in the arralgnment franscript, the Court again advised
5 ;
Mack:
6
7 THE COURT:
8 Here's your opportunity, Mr, Mack, if you'd like to change your
mind. And if you truly feel you don't want to enter this plea,
9 I'm fine with that. I'm happy to set it for trial, What | want to be
y certain is that you want to enter the — you enter the plea that
0 you want to enter, that you don’t feel pressured or otherwise
11 forced in any way to enter a plea. While we do have it set on
calendar next week, I'm even happy to continue the trial if you
12 would like that, if you decide that you want to go top trial,
okay?
13
14 THE DEFENDANT:
15 Yes.
16 THE COURT:

So I'm going to ask you now, here’s going to be the moment
of truth, it's your kind of last and final chance to enter your
plea here. Based upon my questions and our discussion here
this morning, what is your plea to the charge in the second
amended Information of attempted sexual assault, a category

B felony? :
21 THE DEFENDANT:
we What is my plea? Guilty. I'm sorry, your Honor.,
23

THE COURT:

24 -
o5 Okay. And that gullty plea will be entered pursuant to Alford;

is that right?
28

i
27
]

28
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THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.
See:; Transeript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December 8, 2013, p. 24, Il
23-28; p. 25, IL. 1-21.
Based upon the numerous opportunities the Court provided to Mack to continue the
proceedings or change his mind, the Court finds Mack’s asserticn that trial counsel made
him enter & plea under the effects of a stoke to be without any merit.

3. Trial counssl failed to advise Mack of the consequences of being a Tier Il
sex offender prior to the entry of his Alford Guilty Plea.

Mack claims that he had ineffective assistance of counsel because his attorney,
Thomas Gibson, Esq. failed to advise him of the consequences of being a Tier lll sex
offender prior to the entry of the Alford guilty plea. The written Guilty Plea executed by
Mack, and the transcript of the arraignment do not support Mack's assertion, First, the
written Guilty Plea Agreement contains the following language:

CONSEQUENCES OF SEX OFFENSE

| agree to piead guilty to a sex offense, and will be considered

a Tler |l offender. As a result | understand that | AM subject

to sex-offender registration requirements as provided for in

NRS 179D.460, and that | AM also subject {o the lifetime

supervison requirements of NRS 176.0931.
See:; Guilty Plea Agreement. filed December 6, 2013, Page 4, Il. 19-23. Mr. Mack, his
attorney, and the Deputy District Attorney all placed their initials next to this provision, The
reason for this, is that originally, the parties believed it was a Tier 1l offense. At the
arraignment, the following ocourred:;

i
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1 MR, GIBSON:
a Judge, we have a little housekeeping matter.
9 THE COURT:
4
Sure.
5
8 MR, GIBSON:
7 We have interlineated that the third “I" to make it a tier [l
from Il
B
g THE COURT:
E ’ 10 Okay.
8 % e
K 11
8 THE COURT:
12
E é 13 Do you have the executed gullty plea agreement?
g g 14 MR. GIBSON:
E g 15 Right here in front of ms.
16 THE COURT:
17 And Mr. Mack initialed that clause, that change?
)19 MR. GIBSON:
19 -
- Your Honor, | suggest that both counsel aiso initial too -
o1 THE COURT:
09 Yes.
23 MR. GIBSON:
24 --showing we're all in agreement,
£ See: Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December8, 2013, p. 2, Il, 2-10,
28
7 22-25; p. 3, . 1-8. The Court then did an extensive canvass of Mack regarding the
10
28 ;
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registration and supervision requirements for as a sex offender.

THE COURT:
Now | want to cover some things with you about that guilty
plea agreement. Do you understand that as a result of your .
plea, the maximum possible sentence that the court could
impose is 20 years in the Nevada Department of Corrections?

THE DEFENDANT: -
Yes.

THE COURT:

mmwmgﬂhmm—t

And | want to be sure that because this Is a sex offense, do
you understand that you will be required to undergo a
psychosexual evaluation?

—-
Q

THE DEFENDANT:

—-
[}

| didn’t know that, but, yes.

—y
o

THE COURT:

—
o

Frorma Juoroiae Diestracy Court
ESMERALDA AND NYE COUNTIES
b ek
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PP ——

But do you understand that that will — now I'm telling you --
And | want to be sure that because this is a sex offense, do
you understand that you will be required to undergo a

ke
Le3 ]

17 psychosexual evaluation?
R THE DEFENDANT:
18
Yes.

20
o1 THE COURT:
22 — that you will be at some point required to undergo a
N psychosexual evaluation? '
5 THE DEFENDANT:
26

m
27
o 11
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THE COURT:

Because this is a sex offense, do you understand that you're .
going to have to have certain sex offender registration -
requirements and the supervision requirements wili be -
lifetime, they will be Iifetime requirements? Do vyou
understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:

Yes, now.

THE COURT:

Ckay. And has Nr. Gibzon talked to you about the registration
and the supervision requirements that you're going to be
required to follow pursuant to the Nevada Revised States by
entering this plea?

THE DEFENDANT:

He told me that | had to register but | don't know the detalls of
the requirements, the procedure.

THE COURT:

Would you like ~ would you like Mr. Gibson to go through
the requiraments with you?

THE DEFENDANT:

Yeah. | don't have the detalls. | mean, | know | saw it that |
have to register.

MR. GIBSON:

We discussed this yesterday. Remember we talked about the .
48-hour reguirement and that you're required to whenever;
you change residences? .

THE DEFENDANT: i

Yaah. | knew the residence but, | mean, not all when and -

12
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THE COURT:
Do you understand that within 48 hours of entering this
plea you're going to be required to register with the Nye
County Sheriff's Office as a sex offender?
THE DEFENDANT:
48 hours of this plea, yeah, register?
THE COURT:
Right.
THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.
THE COURT:
Okay.
THE DEFENDANT:
| am.
THE COURT: .
Do you understand that as a result of entering this plea that
you will have -- you will be subject to lifetime supervision by
parcle and probation? Do you understand that?
THE DEFENDANT:
No, | didn't know that, but that's ...
THE COURT:
Okay.Knomﬁthhat-
THE DEFENDANT:
Okay.

13
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THE COURT:

--now, I'm telling you that you will be required to be subjectto |
lifetime supervision by parole and probation, do you still want

to enter your Alford plea?

THE DEFENDANT:
| guess.

THE COURT:
Okay. And you're aiso going to have certain registration
requirements, Those registration requirements are going fo
be with the law. enforcement agency. You're going to be ina
registry, a sex offense registry. Knowing, by me telling you
that, and you're also going to be classified as a category tier
three sex offender, do you still want to enter your Aiford plea?

THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.

THE COURT:
Okay. And do you understand that if you fail to register when
you're required to do so, that you can be subject 10 a
separate category D felony?

THE DEFENDANT:
A separate what, ma'am?

THE COURT:
Category D felony for failing to register.

THE DEFENDANT:
Yes.

THE COURT:

Okay. All right. | also want to be sure that you understand that

you may be subject to community nofification provisions.

14
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designed to reach members of the public likely to encounter '
you. And knowing that do you still want to enter this Alford -

plea?
THE DEFENDANT:
Yes. _
See: Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday, December 6, 2013, p. 18, ll. 24-

35, pp 19-21, I 1-25; p. 22, Il 1-14. Based upon the forgoing discussion at his
arraignment, Mack cannot, in good faith, claim he was unaware of the tier 11l registration

and supervision requirements.

4, Trial counsel failed to review the facts of the case and discuss any
defenses with Mack.

Mack claims that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing to discuss the facts of
the case or the defenses with him. Yet, this assertion by Mack is unsupported by the
record of the arraignment in this case. As set forth in detail in Section 1, above, Mack
indicated he had enough time to discuss all the aspects of his case with Mr. Gibson his
attorney by the time of his arraignment on December 6, 2013, The bald assertion by Mack
Is contradicted by the record of the proceedings in this case.

5. Trial counsel failed to inform Mack of the consequences of pleading guiity
{pursuant to Alford) to attempted sexual assauit.

Mack claims his counsel was ineffective for failing to inform him of the
consequences of pleading guilty pursuant to Alford. Once again, one only needs to look at '
the transcript of Mack's December 6, 2013 arraignment to find that there is Ibo support for
Mack’s argument. Not only did the Court advise Mack of the maximum poa%ihle sentence
that could be Imposed in this case, the Court also advised Mack of the re;gistratkon and
supervision requirements of being a Tier Il sex offender. See: Transcript of Proceedings,

15
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Change of Plea, Friday, Dacember 6, 2013. The Guitty Piea Agreement sig}'\ad by Mack
also outlined the consequences of his Aiford gullty plea. See: Guilty Plea Agreement, filed
L.
December 8, 2013, Page 2, II. 3-25, p, 4, Il 1-13. Mack’s argument Is without merit.

6. Trial counsel had a conflict of interest during the representation of Mack
which was never disclosed with Mack, ’

Mack alleges that some sort of conflict of interest existed between Nye County and
Mr. Gibson because Mr. Gibson had a public defender contract with Nye County and the
contract was changing, so that somehow prejudiced or affected Mack's case. Thereis no
evidence that that was in fact the case, and nothing has been offered to 3upp¢-rt Mack's
unsubstantiated claim.

7. Trial counsel failed to request a continuance of Mack's trial date after he was
told to do so by Mack, causing Mack to enter a plea while not of sound mind.

Mack claims his attorney was ineffective for failing to get a trial continuance. As
detailed in Section 2 above, the Court offered Mack a continuance on at least 3 separate
occasions at his arraignment on December 8, 2013 which he declined. Mack’s argument

is without substantiation. See; Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday,

December 6, 2013,

8. Trial counsel failed to inform Mack that the informatibn obtained during the
psychosexual evaluation could be used against him at sentencing.

Mack asserts that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing to- tell him the
information obtained from Mack during the psychosexual evaluation could be used
against him. Mack was clearly aware that the information obtained by the evaluator, John
S. Pacult, could be used by the Court. The Psychosexual Evaluation Report dated

February 3, 2014, contains the following:

16
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INFORMED CONSENT

Mr. Mack was given a full description of the evaluation
pracess, the risks and benefits involved, and the rationale for
the evaluation. He was informed of the use of confrontation,
detailed questioning, and explicit language during the
interview. He was alsc advised of the importance of
cooperation and honesty in order for the valuation to be
effective. The parameters of confidentlality were carefully
explained, and, in particular, when it had to be broken in
accordance with the law. While acknowledging the Court's
directive that he be evaluated, the voluntary nature of the
evaluation was emphasized. Comprehension of these issues
wae confirmed and any questions Mr. Mack had were
answered. Written and voluntary consent to procaed was
obtained prior to starting the evaluation.

Psychosexual Evauation, dated February 3, 2014, p. 2. Thus, the Court finds that Mack
was wall aware of how the information could be used and consented to participating inthe
psychosexual evaluation. The problem appears to be that Mack did not like Mr, Pacult’s
result - a finding that Mack was a high risk to reoffend. Mack has failed to establish an
ineffective assistance of counsel claim on these facts.

9. Trial counsel failed to use relevant information in his Ihvestigation
provided by Mack.

At the hearing on the Writ, Attomey Gibson testified and the record inithe case was
very clear, that there was strong evidence against Mack in this‘case. In fact, at the time
his plea was entered, evidence had been adduced that there were poséiibla additional
victims who may have been subjected to sexual abuse by Mack. The psychosexual
evaluation noted that in addition to sexual abuse of his mentally retarded adult adopted
sister, there was accusations that had arisen that Mack may have also sexuigﬂ{y assaulted
a mentally retarded adult male in Pahrump. In fact, Mack had criginally been charged

with two counts of Sexual Assault, each a category A felony; as well as Freventing Or
17
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Dissuading Victim From Reporting Crime, Commencing Prosecution Or Causing Arrest, a

category *D" felony; Unlawful Contact With Person With Mentai liness, a Gross
Misdemeanor; and Abuse Cf A Vunerable Person, a Gross Misdemeanor l

At the time of arraignment on December 6, 2013, any concermns MacK had with his
attorney, he said were resolved, See: Transcript of Proceedings, Change of Plea, Friday,
December 6, 2013, p. 16, Il. 2-25; p. 17, 11-12. Thus, the Court finrds Mack’s assertion of
ineffactive assistance of counse! with regard to relevant information to be without merit.

10.  Trial counsel failed to make a motion to have Mack’s statements made atthe
time of arrest suppressed.

Mack fails to identify what statements he believes should have been suppressed in
this case and has further failed to set forth the legal basis for the Court to supress that
| evidence. As Attorney Tom Gibson testified at the Writ hearing, the evidence against
Mack was strong, and became stronger as the case progressed with additional possible
victims having been identified. Mack offers no insight on the specific sta:tements that
should have been suppressed, or the legal basis for the suppression. Since the burden of
proof is on Mack, the Court finds that insufficient evidence has been pmvide%:i to the Court

to sustain Mack’s ¢laim.

11.  Trial counsel failed to have trial judge recuse herself from case for blas.

F Mack claims his trial counsel was ineffective because he failed to halfve the Judge
recused for bias. Again, this claim is unfounded. Judge Wanker first saw Mack in Court on
May 17, 2013. The first thing Judge Wanker did was made a disclosure to a:II parties that
| she was active in various community organizations and that she participated in numerous

community events and activities. Judge Wanker also disclosed that she was in the

18
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Kiwanis organization with Mack and was acquainted with Mack from vaﬁnuis community
activities including the USDA Commodities Food Drive, Judge Wanker, m accordance
with the Nevada Revised Code of Judge Conduct, went through the Judicial Canons and
advised the parties that she did not believe that she held any bias or preju::iice, and felt
she could proceed with the case. The Judge advised the parties however, t&at if they felt
there were any issues they were free to file a motion for recusal. This discussion
encompasses the first 13 pages of the arraignment transcript of May 17, 2013. See;
Transcript of Proceedings, Arraignment Hearing, dated May 17, 2013, filed July 22, 2013,
At the May 17, 2013 hearing, this was the position of Mr. Mack:
THE COURT:
I'm not going to waste everybody's time. | mean, if you want
to file the motion, I've looked at it, | don't believe that | — |-
have a bias or prejudice or am required. But nonetheless, you
can follow the procedure. But I'll just continue it. And then [l
allow that,
Mr. Gibson, what's your client's - -
WMR. GIBSON:
Your Honor, Mr. Mack is comfortable with this Court hearing |
the matter and we will be making no motion for any type of |
change, |
See; Transcript of Proceedings, Arraignment Hearing, dated May 17,2013, p. 11, Il. 11-
20. filed July 22, 2013. It appears that the bias issue arose for Mack when the Court
sentenced him in accordance with the recommendations to a lawful prison sentence. As
such, there Is no basis for Mack's claim. ;
The bottom line is this: the Court thoroughly read and reviewed the ﬂle:':, and lawfully
sentenced Mack after he pled guilty pursuant to Alford. Mack was not happy with the

19
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sentence he received, This is not, however, a basis for the Court to grant aE Petition For
Wirit of Habeas Corpus. Looking at the totality of the circumstances, and the transcripts of
all the proceedings In this case, there simply is no basis for the Court to &rant Mack's
request for relief. Accordingly, _

IT1S HEREBY ORDERED that the Petitioner Michael A. Mack's Pefition for Wit of
Habeas Corpus is DENIED.

Nunc Pro Tunc to August 28, 2018

DATED this_ 4% day of June 2021,

el R
KIMBERLY A. WANKER
DISTRICT JUDGE

20
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CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE _
The undersigned hereby certifies that on the 23 day of June 2021 she mailed
(or hand delivered) copies of the foregoing ORDER DENYING WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS to the following:

Nye County District Attorney
Pahrump, Nevada 82060
(placed in folder in Clerk’s office)

David Neely, Esq.
3520 E. Tropicana Ave., Suite D-1
Las Vegas, Nevada 89121

Michael A. Mack #117749

Lovelock Correctional Center

1200 Prison Rd,

Lovelock, Nevada 88419
CHRISTEL RAIMONDQ, Judicial Clerk to
DISTRICT JUDGE
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Case No. PC-T7444A

Dept. No. 1 QE fﬁi]gﬂ %{
)

DAVID H. NEELY III 3§*@3t§é§9

Nevada State Bar No. 003891 FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT

3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1

Las Vegas, NV 89121 JUL ~ 22021

(702) 565-0716

Attorney for Petitiomner Nyﬁ: County Clerk

Deputy

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
Petitioner,
vs.

THE STATE QF NEVADA,

Respondent.

1. Name of appellant filing this case appeal statement:
MICHAEY, ALLEN MACK. |

2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, Jjudgment, or
order appealed from: Hon. KIMBERLY WANKER, Judge of the Fifth
Judicial District Court.

3. Identify all parties to the proceedings in the district
court: MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, Petitioner, and THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Rezpondent.

4. Identify all parties involved in this appeal: MICHAEL
ALLEN MACK, Appellant, and THE STATE OF NEVADA, Respondsnt.

5. Set forth the name, law firm, address, and telephone
number of all counsel on appeal and identify the party or parties
whom they represent: David H. Neely III, Esq., 3520 East ?
Tropicana Ave., Ste. D-1, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89121 (702} 565-0716

represents Petitioner, MICHAEL ALLEN MACK and Chris Arabia,
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Esqg., Nye County District Attorney, 101 Radar Rd, P.0O. Box 593,
Tonopah, Nevada, (775) 482-8166 represents Respondent, STATE OF
NEVADA .

6. Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed
or retained counsel in the district court: Appointed counsel.

7. 1Indicate whether appellant is represented by appointed
or retained counsel in this appeal: Appointed counsel.

8. Indicate whether appellant was granted leave to proceed
in forma pauperis, and the date of entry of the district court
Order granting such leava: Request to pe filed, no order lssued
as yet.

9. Indicate the date the proceedings commenced in the
district court: Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) was filed
on February 19, 2G15.q!)[,
SUBMITTED this  day of July, 2021.

ST Q;:IEAMCF Lt, o

JDA?ID q- SEELY II;g”
9 7

New. Bar Weo. 0038

3520 E. Tropicana, S5te. D=l
Las Vegas, NV 885121
Attorney for Petitioner
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
T HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an agent or employee of the above
referenced Nevada licensed attorney, and that on the éLﬁ%éy of
July, 202L, I served the above and foregoing CASE APPEAL
STATEMENT by depositing a copy in the United States mails,
postage prepaid, addressed to counsel for respondent at his last
known address, as indicated below:

Chris Arabia, Esg.
District Attorney
Nye County, Nevada
F. 0. Box 583
Tonopah, NV 89049

HON. KIMBERLY WANEKER

Fifth Judicial District Court
1520 E. Basin Ave., #105
Pahrump, NV 89060

Clerk, Nevada Supreme Court
201 South Carson Street,#300
Carson City, NV 89701

Raron Ford, Esg.

Nevada Attorney General i

100 North Carson Street oy :

Carson City, Nevada B9701-4717 _,{f#ﬁ_:).u-
o, e

agent or employee of
DAVID H. NEELY, III, E3Q.
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Case No. PC-7444A H\F\g a0

Dept. No. 1 1, F‘H. f

DAVID H. NEELY IIX FIFTH TDICIAL DISTRICT
Nev. Bar HNo. 3891

3520 East Tropicana Ave., Ste. D Elgithr Filed
Las Vegas, NV 891218 Jul 07 2021 10:43 a.m.

(702) 565-0716
Attorney for Petitioner %%g”zmgﬁfm@u rt

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE
MICHAEL ALLEN MACK ,
NOTICE OF APPEAL
Petitioner,
va.

STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.,

TO: THE HONORABLE KIMEERLY WANKER,
Fifth Judicial District Court Judge,

AND TC: ALL PARTIES AND THEIR RESPFECTIVE COUNSEL.

NOTICE IS5 HEREBY GIVEN that Petitioner, MICHAEL ALLEN MACK,
by and through his attorney of record, DAVID H. NEELY III, Esg..
pursuant to NRS 177.015 and NRAP 3B/3C(fastrack), NRAPD 3A{civil},
hereby appeals to the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from
the Order Denying Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus entered in
the Fifth Judicial District Court in the above matter on June
24,2021,

O
SUBMITTED this 5;2_ day of July, 2021,

3520 E. Tropica - $0-1

Las Vegas, NV 89121
Attorney for Petitioner

Docket 83165 Document 2021-19408
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an agent or employes of tge akbove
referenced Nevada licensed attorney, and that on the ii[?day of
July, 2021, I served the above and foregoing NOTICE OF APPEAL by
depositing a copy in the United States mails, postage prepaid,
addressed to counsel for respondent at his last known address, as
indicated below:

Kirk Vitto, Esq.

Chief Deputy

Nye County District Attorney
P. 0. Box 39

Pahrump, NV 89041

Aaron Ford, Esq.

Nevada Attorney General

100 North Carson Street

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717

Elizabeth Brown

Nevada Supreme Court Clerk
201 Bouth Carson Street, #300
Carson City, NV B9701

agédt’or’em@loyae of
DAVID H, NEELY, III, ESQ.
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MICHAEL ALLEN MACK, )

PETITIONER, )Case No., PC-7444A
' )Dept. No. 1

vs, )

STATE OF NEVADA, )

RESPONDENT . )

)
REQUEST FOR TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

TO: TRACY A, MANNING, Court Reporter

Fifth Judicial District Court, Dept. 1

Appellant requests preparation of a transcript of the
proceedings before the district court as follows:

Judge or officer hearing the proceeding: KIMBERLY WANKER,
Fifth Judicial District Court, Dept. 1.

Specific individual dates of proceedings for which
transcripts are being requested (a range of dates is not
acceptable}: August 29, 2018.

Specific portions of the transcript bkeing requested (e.g.,
suppression hearing, trial, clesing argument, etc..): Evidentiary
Hearing.

Number of Copies Required: 3
I hereby certify that on thelég day of July, 2021, I ordered

the transcript(s) listed above from the court reporter named
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above, and the required deposit on the §<l~day of July, 2020,

£l 5
DATED this day of - LL-;V' v PB23.

=

g
A ZF ) T et b T
DAVID H. NEELY III, Esgr/  \]
Nevada Bar No.: 03881 T
DAVID H. NEELY III Attorney At
Law

3520 E. Tropicana Ave., #D-1
Las Vegas, NV 89121

(702) 565-0716
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